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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Definitions

B=

“ Audit Committee”

[E%EEE]

“Board”

[EEg

“CG Code”
[ R~

“Company”/“China Dredging ENV”
(A28 ThERLER]

“Contractual Arrangements”

R=g k423

“Director(s)”

2%

llGroupII

(&E | TA%@E]

IIHK$II
[t

”

“Jiangsu Fengyu
[IT#H2F]

the audit committee of the Board

E=ZgEREEY

the board of Directors

Exg

the code provisions as confained in “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” sef out in Appendix 14 fo the Listing Rules (as amended from time
fo fime], which are adopted [with modification) by the Board as its corporate
govemance code

EFRRAMSETOAENEEE AT REEE ARE P AIIATAIEX
(EARER) EEFCMMETRAEREEEE R T

China Dredging Environment Profection Holdings Limited
PEERRRIERBR AR

a series of contracts, brief details of which are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report, pursuant to which all economic benefits and
risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are transferred to Xiangyu PRC
—ZRIEH  BNHRAFRESVBWMKRMTI7 - B IHEFHEBF
EEN—IKENaARHERENTH

director(s) of the Company
RARES

the Company and ifs subsidiaries

ZAN/NETD B4 DS NE]

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B BEEEEEH

Jiangsu Fengyu Property Development Co., lid.*, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company
THEFEXBRQR  ARA-—HE2EWERAF

—Z=—tE 3, Annual Report 2017 .
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Definitions (Continued)

B & (5

“Jiangsu Jiaolong”

I & &E

“Jiangsu Xingyu”/

“PRC Operational Entity”

CI#EF]
[HFEEEHER]

“Listing Rules”

[EmH A

“Model Code”
(28]

“Mr. Liv”

Mgl

“Ms. Zhou”
[BE 4=

“Nomination Committee”

REZEEE

IIPRCII
[E]

Jiangsu Jicolong Salvage Harbour Engineering Co. ltd.*, a nonwholly owned
subsidiary of the Company
THBEITSMBIRERRAR AR —RHFE2EWE LR

Jiangsu Xingyu Holdings Group Limited* (formerly known as Jiangsu Xingyu Port
Construction Company Llimited*), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
TaHEFEREBERAR (B IKEFERZERAA)  AAR—f2E
=N

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended from time
fo time)

B FE 2 £ R A (B ERT)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Direcfors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (as amended from time to fime)

ERRANME TSRO ETBETAZESFETESFRINRET(ETEE
77)

Mr. Liu Kaijin, chairman and an executive Director [who is the spouse of Ms. Zhou)

IRFRATERIFRERE(RARLEZERRB)

Ms. Zhou Shuhua, an executive Director (who is the spouse of Mr. Liu)

BITEEFRAREZL (REIKEZRRB)

the nomination committee of the Board

E=xgiRE%E8Y

the People’s Republic of China
FEARAME



Definitions (Continued)

B & (5

“Remuneration Committee”

FHEESE

”RMB”
[AR#]

“Reporting Period/Review Period”
(R & B/ S R[]

IISFOII
7% R ERA

“Shareholder(s)”
[BR]

“Share(s)”

)37

“Share Option Scheme”

(8RR RE T 81

“Stock Exchange”

B8 3R P

“Xiangyu Environment
Protection”

[FAFRR]

the remuneration committee of the Board
EEQFMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE - PEETEEHY

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_T—tHFT+-_A=1+T—HILFE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance [Cap 571 of the lows of Hong Kong) [as
amended from time to time)

FREOIES7 1 BE S LB G (B AFER)

shareholder(s) of the Company
EANNE) S

ordinary share(s) of the Company
RRF 2z EBR

the share option scheme of the Company approved by Shareholders on 24 May 2011
BRER-ZB-——FRAA - THBERAEZ AR A BERESE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARZMER AR

Jiangsu Xiangyu Environment Protection Equipment Company Limited*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
THATRARBEBR QR KRR —H2EWERF

—Z=—tE 3, Annual Report 2017 .
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Definitions (Continued)

B @

“Xiangyu PRC”
(AFE]

“Xiangyu Water Management”

E2ES

* For identification purpose only

Jiangsu Xiangyu Port Constructing Project Administration Co. ltd.*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
THATERIREEARAR  ARA-—H2EMERR

Jiangsu Xiangyu Water Management Company Limited*, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company
TIEHATKBEERAR KRG —H2ENBERR

* EREF



Financial Summary

EREE

The following is o summary of the published results and assets and NTAREERBELAVBFEFENEAMEEUR
liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years. BENBGBEHE-

Results E

n,

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—BLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tF ZT—RF —T—hHF ZT—NOF =—ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®BTT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARBTE

(audited) (audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)
(RER) (EE%) (&%) (e %) (e8| %)
I
Revenue W= 650,924 667,154 /700,996 Q10,592 Q73,615
Profit (loss) before tax Fr % B @ A1 (B518) 111,234 122,220 (237,333 162,145 259,817
Income tax (expense) Fris®i ()&%
credit (39,030) 46,970) 46,822 (53,5606) (78,535)
Net profit (loss) and tofal m A (B1R) F8 &
comprehensive income 2 W (B )
([expense) 4= 72,204 /5,250 (190,511) 108,579 181,282
Net profit (loss) and fotal AT ALEM
comprehensive income A (B548) )% 3R
[expense| atfributable fo: e
(FZ) 4% -
Owners of the company ViN/NCTE =N 71,040 68,794 (197,864) 92,524 164,757
Non-controlling interests FE1Z IR = 1,164 6,456 7,353 16,055 16,525

72,204 75,250 (190,511) 108,579 181,282

—Z—+FF$, Annual Report 2017 .
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Financial Summary (Continued)

Bt 15 HEE ()

Assets and Liabilities EEREE
31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tF ZE—RF ZT—HF ZT—NF =ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%BTET ARBTTIT ARBTRET ARBTE
(audited) (audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)
(RER) (&%) (fe=: %) (e %) (e %)
S
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,275,052 2,441,565 2,492,129 2,054,209 2,026,550
Current assefs mENE E 1,312,737 1,389,083 1,385,034 1,414,379 1,384,822
Current liabilities mEBAE (1,134,800) (1,445,784) (1,601,679) (1,139,464) (1,278,206)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (115,739) (115,362) (152,067) (394,209) (402,315)
Net assets EEFE 2,337,250 2,269,502 2,123,417 1,034,915 1,730,151




Financial Summary (Continued)

Bt 15 8 ()

Statement of Financial Position of the

Company

N 7] HY B B AR OR R

The statement of financial position of the Company as at the end of the AANBRBEHARNBI AR REROT -

Reporting Period is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET ARET T
| ]

ASSETS BE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RIB AR Z3ELTZEE 259,214 259,214
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT B N B Y FRIE 942,913 Q79,465
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 159 173
1,202,286 1,238,852

LIABILITIES =K
Other payables H fth & 1 58 4,756 8,716
Amounts due to Directors B EZEERIE 12,401 1,875
Bonds payable e B 230,378 246,381
247,535 256,972
TOTAL ASSETS LESS TOTAL LIABILITIES HMEERBAERE 954,751 981,880

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXERFE

Share capifal f& 7 123,483 123,483
Reserves (nofe) w15 (B at) 831,268 858,397
TOTAL EQUITY EEEE 954,751 981,880

—Z—tFF 3R Annual Report 2017 .
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Financial Summary (Continued)

Bt 15 HEE ()

Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

Note:

AN

&) RY B B AR R 3Rk )

et
Reserves of the Company A DT B
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
IR 4 = B HibfR B ES #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-—R"F—H—H 869,127 165,238 (192,267) 842,098
Loss and tofal comprehensive expense for 4 A E 1B k4R 6 B X @5
the year — — (37,554) (37,554)
Placing of shares BHES 53,853 — — 53,853
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=A=+—8 922,980 165,238 (229,821) 858,397
Loss and tofal comprehensive expense for & A& 1B k4R 6 B S 5
the year — — (27,129) (27,129)
At 31 December 2017 R —+4F
+=ZA=+—H 922,980 165,238 [256,950) 831,268




Group Chart

SEEB

The following sefs out the corporate structure of the Group as at 31

TEIRAEER-_FT—tF+-_A=1t—BNEE

December 2017: LR
China Dredging Environment
Protection Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands)
FEEABRERERAT
(REEHBEMAYL)
(80% 100% 100% ] 100%
Huaian Shi Xiangyu Power Wealth Group 9 q o 2 (e
Technology Microfinance Lid. (BVI) Limited Xé:ngyu Drl?dg:dg Eg l:."mx'f‘g;:mmd
(incorporated in the PRC) (incorporated in the i mpany'edn.u H BI" hIV' 3 Islln d
ER TS Brifish Virgin Islands) e pstNronl el
NREHARAT HEEEBVIERAT riH I Ll EFERAR LR
(RERERAY) (RARE LB BRRAY) (RERERAL (RAMEAESERAL)
100%
Power Wealth
Engineering Limited
(incorporated in HK)
HEIBERAF
(REBEMA L)
(100% [100% 100%
Jiangsu Xingyu Holdings Group Ltd.* Jiangsu Xiangyu Jiangsu Xiangyu o
(incorporated in the PRC) \gfr::;:r:cet:'zl Port Constructing Water Management Inler':::lililz:u?ll?il;ited
(Note 1) (Note 2] Project Administration Co. Ltd.* Company Limited* (incorporated in HK)
IHEFRREEERAT 00 - ______ (incorporated in the PRC) (incorporated in the PRC) ENERERAT
(WhEERAL) agR IRAPARIEEEARAD THAFABERAT (AEEATRT)
(&) BERBAORY (AR EREMAL) (R B L)
1 (BEE2)
51%( 100% 1100% 100%
B 8 Jiangsu Xin B . 3 ¢ Jiangsu Xiangyu Environment
Jiangsu Jiaolong Salvage lang A Jiangsu Xingyu Jiangsu Lifu Infrastructure gsu Mangyy
Harbour Engineering Co. Ltd.* Enélronmenilf.‘ro_:zl:on Commerce Co. Ltd.* Co?\stmdion Co., Ltd.* Prgfoechon E?j"'e;‘;:' i
(incorporated in the PRC) (incompr::‘e{i 1:‘:he PRC) (incorporated in the PRC) (incorporated in the PRC) fin mw& |:1'Ih PRC)
TR BB IRERAT LoD 4 IHETEBERAT THNEERBERRARAT e Do
(R ERRARL) AR R RERAT (RERERAY) (REBERAT) T SR
N (R B L) N N (KRB L)
100% 100%
: Jiangsu Xiangyu Environmental
evopmen Co Profecion Indusry
(incorporated in the PRC)  Development Ltd
TRESEEERAT (incorporated in the PRC)
(REEEMAT) IHATRREXBRERAR
(R EIRERAR L)
100%
Yancheng Juranzhijia Home
Building Material Commercial
Management Limited*
(incorporated in the PRC)
BRHERZZRERH
BREEERAR
(R B L)

Notes: B &t -

1. Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are the registered holders of the registered capital in 1. EERBLERT FEMERNBELEEA
Jiangsu Xingyu, and Ms. Zhou holds all her equity inferest in Jiangsu Xingyu EEZLEREIRE FEARAERIT & BT8P
as trustee for Mr. Liu. BRRRE -

2. On 19 April 2011, Jiangsu Xingyu, Xiangyu PRC, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou 2. RZZ——FHA+AR I&HETF PFFHE- 2%
entered into the Contractual Arrangements, pursuant to which all economic ERBRETTAEORYE - R TREFRBEE
benefits and risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are transferred WA RENZ KRR EZETAFTHE -
fo Xiangyu PRC.

3. China Haimian City Investment Group Limited was disposed on 8 3. RIZE—+tFhAN\BREEHREERNTHRESES

September 2017.

For identification purpose only

RAA -
* EHRHT

—Z=—tE 3, Annual Report 2017 .
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FE®RE (&)

To Shareholders:

The year 2017 was a challenging year. Delay and prolongment of the
tendering and/or the decisionmaking process for construction of
government projects resulted in a slowdown in the infrastructure,
reclamation and environmental protection dredging projects. Furthermore,
fierce horizontal competition imposed immense pressure over the Group's
operafion. In face of the unfavourable factors, the Group continuously
strengthened daily operation and management and rose up to difficulties.
For the financial year of 2017, the Group recorded a fofal revenue of
approximately RMB650.9 million, representing a slight decrease of only
2.4% as compared with the total revenue of approximately RMBO67.2
million for the financial year 2016. For the financial year 2017, the
Group recorded a profit aftributable to Shareholders of approximately
RMB72.2 million, also representing a corresponding decrease of only 4.0%
as compared with a profit atiributable to Shareholders of approximately
RMB75.3 million.

As mainland China has pursued on “strengthened the construction of an
ecological civilization”, central government continued fo implement
environmental management policies in 2017, Relevant policies have
brought various business opportunities 1o the dredging industry fo facilitate
the elimination of factors defrimental to operation. In addition, with skill
advancement and development of the environmental protection business,
there will be enormous room for the wind power business to expand. The
Group will continue to cultivate our business with utmost care and
participate in wind power construction projects proactively fo lay a solid
foundation for subsequent development for the Group. For overseas
market, with the support under the “One Belt One Road” strategy, the
Group is expanding ifs business fo overseas markets including Southeast

Asian markets.

“"Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall”, currently managed by the Group,
has begun bringing income for us. The project will become another
medium to long-erm stable source of income fo provide stable cash flow
support for the Group's further development of environmental protection

dredging business in future.

HERR:

T EERAREN -F EYBRFEENHEER
BERARBERRICERLER  SHHEMRLED
MEZMEBRZARRRIEZAARERZE B
FRENHNET RASENEETRKITENE
N WAEEEREH AMER T MR ELE
ERE -OHEME - R_Z—+tFURFE  FNERK
TR RO AREO50,900,000T  R_Z—REH
4 E 815 8 A R ¥ 667,200,000 7T 8 48 45 75 R 88 4
TFE2.4% - BUERFE A5 M K AR % 72,200,0007T » &
TR -RFUVBRFEEFSHARKEY5300,0007T7F R
MR T 4.0% °

BEETPBEAMIMABRERXARR] PRERAR-F
— L FEBETRSARTAERE  HERRRRZ
TEHRTEEDH FPRBE-—BEUARTHNZ
BEOEZR- WO BERMESMRFETENER
BELBEEHAERMN 1T o 7 5% B i 4 & X5
fF EBR2EREFENERTIE REENRESR
REETRENER - BIHIMEITE BEI—F—
BIREXHFET AEBETEEBRRREESEEI

i -

AEERFEENIEAZRENEIRGEHALRE
BEREA BB SRAS —BFERHRENRA
KR NEAEESEE - TIMRREBREFRMH
RENHLMIIE -

—Z=—tE 3, Annual Report 2017 .



FRFSBRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited .

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FE®RE (&)

The Group will capture the year 2018 as a new start. As a professional
dredging service provider with years of experience and as a fronfrunner
with an advanced management, a large pool of quality clients and an
excellent reputation in the industry, fo better cope with challenges and
regardless of foughness thereof, the Group will adhere to the traditional
dredging business and environmental protection dredging business, our
two principal businesses, stay loyal to our clients to provide them with
quality service and insist in adopting robust and prudent operation
strafegies.

Liv Kaijin

Chairman and Executive Director

28 March 2018

AEEKEE_FT-N\FEERFEH RTEHEY
BERKE AEEER—EABEZFERNERLZ
RGREE TMEA—EAERLE HERZREER
PRMBEBEBOBNTESFBEL BRI NAR
E #MERRBTERIDENRERZEM AN T
BER BREMANTEPMAEFPEHRHN®E -
BEREBRANFERNLERE -

FERBTEF

219

—E-NEFE=ZA=+N\H
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FRFSBRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited .

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE R W R D (8

Overview

The Group is primarily engaged in dredging business, which can be
divided into three main operating and reportable segments, namely, |i)
capital and reclamation dredging business (“CRD Business”); |ii)
environmental protection dredging and water management business ("EPD
and Water Management Business”); and (i) other works operated in
marine sites such as hoisting wind power equipment, installing major
parts of docks and bridges, as well as laying and salvaging underwater
pipelines ("Other Marine Business’). In addition, the Group engaged in
property management business ("Property Management Business”) in

respect of managing Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall.

Financial Review

Revenue

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a slight decrease by
about 2.4% in tofal revenue from approximately RMBO67.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB650.9

million.

As regards the CRD Business segment, revenue of approximately
RMB281.6 million was recorded for the Reporting Period, which
decreased by about 20.4% as compared with the year ended 31
December 2016. The decrease in revenue was due fo the slowdown of
the implementation of the construction projects in dredging industry in the
PRC and a decrease in number of newly confracted construction projects
as the Group implemented a more robust and prudent policy in selecting
new projects in recent years. Revenue of approximately RMB130.2
million was recorded for the EPD and Water Management Business
segment, representing a decrease of about 15.8% from its corresponding
segment revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016. The decrease
was caused by slow works progress of certain environmental profection
dredging projects and a lengthy preparation time for pre-consfruction
work for the new EPD and Water Management Business. There has been
a significant improvement for the Other Marine Business, which
contributed revenue of approximately RMB232.6 million to the Group,
representing a substanfial increase of 51.6% as compared with
approximately RMB153.5 million in the corresponding period of 2016.
The increase primarily resulied from the entry by the Group info wind

power field.

M=

AEEX2RIREEED  HENEBI S A=E
TERLEERERS BERRBEEREZEH(H
ENEBHOZERD IIRRERKBEEREERR
(MRREERKBEREHD  ii)g ERENEAM
TR -MEANZEERBESE BHEAIBRERAMZR
K OKTESRBRRITBIRTEMEEERKD - 1k
S ARBERERERRZREREMEENYEEE
EB(MEEREB] -

Bt % [0 B8

Iy &8

RREPHE AEEHES2RRIEM TR BE
E-T-XNE+_AZ+ - HUEFEHNHARE
667,200,000 7T 8 D £92.4% & #) A B # 650,900,000
7TE o

RRE R BEERESEORER D BESREHA
R #281,6000007T BEZ-_ET—-—RE+ A=+
— B IEFEH IR D #20.4% W m b e R E =
BAREZTENTRBARBERATNE  URAEKE
MFEHFBENGERAEARRMBENLERE
BEHAZTREARRD RARBRAMKBERER
oAb W 89 A R#130,200,0007T - BEIZE =&
—ARET A=t -BLEFEMRES &R ER DD
158% WHHM P ZANETRREABBRTER
R RBRRER MK EE R E TR EE T
RAEREMH EMEBEEXHABRZTNE  RREH
MRAEBEERHAREKE232,0000007T BT —
NERMBOARB153,500,0007T KE EFS51.6%:
AT EEMMR A S B ET R B BRI -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE R W R D (8

Revenue for the Property Management Business segment for the Reporting
Period was approximately RMB6.5 million, which increased by about
29.8% from RMB5.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Notwithstanding an income growth for such business, it could not bring
profit fo the Group for the time being as it was sfill af the development

stage.

Operating Cost and Gross Profit

The Group's operating cost slightly increased from approximately
RMB434.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 fo
approximately RMB443.6 million during the Reporting Period,
representing a slight increase of about 2.2%. The increase was primarily
caused by a corresponding rise in operating cost due to the newly
devised wind power projects for the Other Marine Business, as well as
diminished revenue for the CRD Business brought about by adopfing a
prudent operation strategy during the Reporting Period. Nonetheless,
substantial costs such as depreciation of assets and maintenance of
vessels did not change proportionately, which led to a decrease in gross
profit margin. Such increase was collectively influenced by these two
factors.

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB207.4 million
during the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of about 11.0% as
compared with approximately RMB233.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2016. Gross profit margin slightly dropped from 34.9% for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to 31.9% for the Reporting Period.

With an increase in cost, gross profit dropped accordingly.

Gross profit margin for the CRD Business segment decreased from about
39.7% for the year ended 31 December 2016 to about 33.3% for the
Reporting Period. Such decrease was primarily due to a drop in revenue
for the CRD Business brought about by adopting a prudent operation
strategy, while substantial costs such as depreciation of assets and

mainfenance of vessels did not change proportionately.

Gross profit margin for the EPD and Water Management Business
segment stood at about 29.1% for the Reporting Period, which
approximated the gross profit margin of about 28.3% for the year ended
31 December 2016.
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During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin for the Group's Other
1.5% for the year ended 31
December 2016 to about 16.2% for the Reporting Period, representing

Marine Business segment increased from |

an increase of 4.7 percenfage points. Such increase resulted from the
venture info the wind power field, which carried a relatively higher gross

profit margin.

Other Income

Other income decreased by about 27.3% to approximately RMB18.1
million during the Reporting Period as compared with the year ended 31
December 20106, primarily caused by the decrease in interest income

from other receivables during the Reporting Period.

Marketing and Promotion Expenses

Marketing and promotion expenses for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB8.3 million, representing a decrease of about 25.1%
as compared with approximately RMB1 1.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2016, which was mainly affributable to launching a series
of one-off markefing and promotion activities for the opening of Easyhome
Yancheng Shopping Mall in March 2016

increase in these expenses in the preceding year.

, resuHing in o substantial

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period amounted to
approximately RMB55.4 million, representing an increase of about
13.8% from RMB48.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
This was primarily due fo an increase in maintenance costs and relevant
professional fees for properties and a strengthened management for the

new business.

Foreign Exchange Difference

Due to fluctuation in the foreign exchange rate during the Reporting
Period, part of the Group's bank borrowings and bank deposits were
denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The foreign
exchange gain of RMB18.7 million was recognised in the Reporting
Period (31 December 2016: loss of approximately RMB39.2 million).
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Finance Costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately RMBZ0.7 million, which
approximated finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2016 (31
December 2016: RMB70.0 million).

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the Reporting Period amounted fo approximately
RMB39.0 million, while income expense amounted fo approximately
RMB47.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Profit for the Year

Influenced by the above factors as a whole, net profit for the Reporting
Period was approximately RMB72.2 million, which slightly decreased by
4.0% as compared with approximately RMB75.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per Share for the Reporting Period was RMBO.048 per
Share, which dropped by about 12.7% as compared with the earnings
per share of RMBO.055 per Share for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Financial Management Policies

The Group in ifs ordinary course of business is exposed to market risks
such as currency risk and interest rate risk. The Group's risk management
strategy aims to mitigate the adverse effects of these risks on its financial

performance in full measure.

As most of the Group's frading fransactions, monefary assets and
liabilities are denominated mainly in Renminbi, which is the Group's
functional and reporting currency, and save for bonds and certain bank
borrowings and deposits denominated in United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars, the foreign exchange gain recognized during the Reporting
Period was approximately RMB18.7 million {31 December 2016: loss
of approximately RMB39.2 million). The Group is giving full aftention to

respond to the related foreign exchange rafe risks.
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As current interest rafes stay at relatively low levels, the Group has not
enfered info any inferest rate hedging contracts or any other interest rate
related derivative financial instruments. Nonetheless, the Group will

continue fo closely monitor its related interest rafe exposure.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2017, the total equity of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB2,337.3 million (31 December 2016: approximately
RMB2,269.5 million). The increase in total equity was mainly atfributable

to operating revenue for the year during the Reporting Period.

The Group's net current assets as at 31 December 2017 amounted fo
approximately RMB177.9 million [net current liabilities as af 31
December 2016: approximately RMB56.7 million]. The current rafio,
which is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was 1.16
as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: 0.96).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group adopts prudent cash and financial management policies. In
order fo achieve better cost control and reduce capital cost, the Group's
freasury activities are centralized and cash is generally deposited with

banks and denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

Included in current assets were cash and various bank deposits which
was about RMB69.5 million in total as at 31 December 2017,
representing an increase by about 40.4% as compared with that of
approximately RMB49.5 million as at 31 December 2016.

The Group's accounts receivables as at 31 December 2017 amounted
to approximately RMB1,222.4 million (2016: approximately
RMB1,361.0 million), represenfing a decrease by 10.2% for the

corresponding period of the preceding year.
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Overdue accounts receivables as at 31 December 2017 decreased by
about 2.0% to approximately RMB1,003.6 million (2016: approximately
RMBT,024.1 million).

As at 31 December 2017, total liabilities of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,250.5 million (31 December 2016: RMB1,561.1
million). The decrease in total liabilities was mainly due fo the decrease
of bank borrowings and accounts and other payables. The Group's
gearing rafio (calculated by interest bearing instruments (including bank
borrowings, other borrowings and bonds payable] divided by total
equity) decreased to 28.5% (2016: 35.2%).

Capital Structure of the Group

Capifal sfructure of the Group consists of debts, which include amounts
due to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary, bank borrowings, other
borrowings and bonds payable and equity reserves attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and various

reserves.

The Directors review the capital sfructure on a semi-annual basis. As part
of this review, the Direcfors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues and share buybacks as well as the issue of new debits
or the redemption of exisfing debts.

The Group's monetary assets, liabilities and fransactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. During the Reporting
Period, most transactions were denominated and setfled in Renminbi. The
Group recorded a net exchange gain amounting to RMB18.7 million

during the Period.
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Charge over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's bank borrowings were secured
by charges over cerfain dredgers and land owned by the Group, a
property owned by a company in which Mr. liu has beneficial interest
and personal guarantees by Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou. There were also intra-
group charges between two of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries
as a result of the confractual arrangements, pursuant o which all
economic benefits and risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu
have been transferred to Xiangyu PRC.

The Group pledged over a dredger, an industrial premise located in
Jiangsu Province, the PRC and a residential property located in Shandong
Province, the PRC in favour of Citic Capital China Access Fund Limited (the
"Bondholder” or “CITIC") and/or its offiliates. For more details, please
refer to the Company's announcements dafed 15 November 2016 and
5 June 2017.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
The Group had no material investments in or material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries during the current year.

Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB72.8 million (31 December 2016: approximately
RMB125.9 million), which mainly included the construction cost of a
hotel.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabiliies (31 December 2016: nil).
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Business Review

The Group recorded an operafing revenue of approximately RMB650.9
million and gross profit of approximately RMB207 .4 million, representing
a decrease of 2.4% and 11.0% respectively for the corresponding
period of the preceding year. The decrease in operafing revenue
primarily resulted from the slowdown of the implementation of the
construction projects in dredging industry in the PRC and a decrease in
number of newly confracted construction projects as the Group
implemented a more robust and prudent policy in selecting new projects
in recent years. Despite a drop in revenue, substantial costs such as
depreciation of assets and maintenance of vessels did not change

proportionately, which led to a decrease in gross profit.

The CRD Business is o core business of the Group. The Group has
undertaken and commenced new projects during the Reporting Period,
including the projects in Nanfong Port, Binhai Port and Pakistan. The
decreased revenue generated by such business segment was attributable
fo greater variations in the volatility of new project construction conditions
and the uncertainty in capifal refurns in the industry. The Group adopts a
robust and prudent operating strategy, reflected by a better understanding
of the background and a more detailed and thorough due diligence
review of proposed newly contracted construction projects, to ensure an

effective control of various possible risks.

The Group develops and expands the EPD and Water Management
Business segment proactively. The Group recorded a decrease in revenue
during the Reporting Period, which was attributable to the slow progress

in implementing certain environmental protection dredging projects.

Other Marine Business includes insto||ing marine wind power equipment,
hoisting major parts of docks and bridges, laying of underwater pipelines
and other works services. With the development of the global economy,
wind power (being a clean and renewable energy] market also
developed rapidly. Currently, there is great enthusiasm fo build marine
wind power constructions. The Group s refrofitting some of our vessels to

capture more business opportunities.
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Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall, located in the administrative centre
of Yandu District, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and the core
area of Yancheng National High+ech Indusfrial Development Zone with
a gross floor area of 75,600 square mefres, commenced operation on
26 March 2016 and is mainly used for leasing under the Property
Management Business. The shopping mall was positioned as a large-
scale shopping center with domestic construction materials as ifs theme,
offering one-sfop services from furniture, housewares to decoration
materials to customers. As for now, there are about 100 tenants in
Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall which include renowned houseware
brands such as SteeHand Home, Cheers and M&Z Furniture. The Group
expects fo gain popularity, raise brand infllence and receive longerm
and stable rental income through adopting the “Easyhome Yancheng”
brand and ifs operational model, to provide stable cash flow support for

the Group's further development of environmental protection business.

In addition to the operation and lease of shopping malls, the Group also
commenced the consfruction of a 17-storey hotel with 200 guest rooms
located at the west of Caihong Road, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province in
the year of 2016, with a gross floor area of 20,000 square metres.
Construction work of the hotel has been completed currently. As next
moves, we need fo conduct internal finishes and to confirm cooperation
strafegies for the hotel. The Group is dedicated fo offering a continuous
and diversified source of income, as well as to provide stable cash flow
support for the Group's further development of environmental protection

dredging business in future through expanding new businesses.
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Event after End of Reporting Period

On 23 January 2018, the Company and the Bondholder entered into
the fifth amendment agreement and supplemental deed to the original
deed poll regarding the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$243 million accrued at 3% per annum due 2016 [the "Bonds”) (the
"Fifth Amendment Agreement’) fo further amend the terms of the Bonds.
Under the Fifth Amendment Agreement, the principal amount of the Bonds
shall be amended to HK$278.8 million and the maturity date of the
Bonds shall be extended to 21 June 2018 [the “New Maturity Date”)
with inferest rates amended as 13% per annum. Unless previously
redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the tofal amount payable by the
Company to the Bondholder o redeem the Bonds on the New Maturity
Date shall be HK$273.7 million (the “New Redemption Amount”),
provided that the Company pays the New Redemption Amount in full on
the New Maturity Date. If the Company fails to pay the New Redemption
Amount in full on the New Maturity Date, the total amount outstanding of
the Bonds as at the New Maturity Date shall be HK$293.7 million. For
more details, please refer to the Company's announcement dated 23
January 2018.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The sustained development of our business leverages on the ongoing
contributions by our employees. The Board considers employees the
Group's most valuable wealth and is committed to improving their growth
environment, providing them competitive remuneration packages and
safeguarding their health and safety. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group had 629 (2016: 645) employees. The total staff cost for the
Reporting Period was about RMB50.0 million (2016: RMB54.1 million).
The Group's remuneration policy is basically determined by the Directors
based on the performance of individual employees and market
condifions. In addition to salaries and discretionary bonuses, employee
benefits include pension contributions and options which may be granted
under share option scheme (under which options fo subscribe for Shares
that could be granted to independent non-executive Directors would be
subject to the applicable conditions and independence restrictions as set

out in the Listing Rules).

During the year under review, the Group did not experience any strikes,
work stoppages or significant labour disputes which affected its
operations in the past and it did not experience any significant difficulties

in recruiting and refaining qualified staff.
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Outlook

Looking into the year of 2018, the Group will carry on with its efforts to
enhance the effectiveness of its dredging business and expecis to bring
reasonable retumns through obtaining more works confracts by virtue of
our rich consfruction experience on dredging projects. In addition, with
the support under the "One Belt One Road” strategy, the Group is
expanding ifs business fo overseas markefs including Southeast Asian
markets.

For capital operation, the Group will actively identify and materialise
healthy and feasible financial plans based on the progress of its
construction projects, so as to further optimise the financial position and

enhance the capital base of the Group.

2]

2T N\F AEEREES NRABEEE N
CHERERMVHREATENEE R ILR  FM
FZIREHN URAEETRAEDMK - 50 BB
EI-®—RIEBIF T AEETEERRRAE
E/ITE

Al

H|< ?&u

EEXRBETH AEERBEIRERELENEE
MERSREERBAUTHNBRESRE HMEIE—¥
BIEAKENPBERRL ERFEAEENERE
B o



Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

EEREREEEBN

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Kadijin, aged 57, the founder of the Group, was appointed as
a Director on 31 May 2010, was re-designed from a Direcfor to an
executive Director on 24 May 2011, and was re-designed from a joint
chairman to the chairman of the Board of the Group on 23 September
2016. He was the chief executive officer of the Company for the period
from 24 May 2011 to 5 January 2017. Mr. Liu is the spouse of Ms.

Zhou, an executive Director.

Mr. Liv completed his secondary education in 1977. In 2003, Mr. Liu
obtained a certificate as a senior construction engineer from the Human
Resources Bureau of Yancheng City* (E&$ T A= ). As his experience
and knowledge in the PRC dredging business grew, Mr. Liu established
Jiangsu Xingyu in 2007. Mr. Liu has been working in the dredging
industry of the PRC for over 20 years.

M:r. Liu was a member of the /th session of the committee of the Chinese

People’s Political Consultative Conference of Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province* (FEIARBUA B @R LA G MMM EtEZEEZE)

Mr. liv is the chairman of Jiangsu Xingyu and Huaian Shi Xiangyu
Technology Microfinance Ud.* [EZMAFRENEERERAF)
and the chairman and general manager of Xiangyu PRC, Xiangyu Water
Management, Xiangyu Environment Protection, Jiangsu Fengyu, Jiangsu
Xingyu Commerce Co. Ud.* [T#HREFEHKAR AR, Jiangsu Llifu
Infrastructure Construction Co., Uid.* (T&f HEEM R EEFZAR AT,
Jiangsu Xiangyu Environmental Profection Industry Development ltd. *
[TEHAFRREEXERAERADT) (Xiangyu Environmental  Profection
Industry”) and Jiangsu Xingyu Environment Protection Company Limited*
[TEREFHZIRFZAMRAR]); and has been responsible for overseeing
their daily operations and planning their business strategies. Other than
the above mentioned companies, Mr. Liu is the director of Power Wealth
Group (BVI) Limited, Xiangyu Dredging Company Limited, Ever Universe
Holdings limited, Power Wealth Engineering Llimited and Million Able
Infernational Limited. He is also a director of Wangiji Limited, being a

substantial shareholder.

Please refer to the "Directors’ Report” for defails of his discloseable

interests in the Company under the provisions of the SFO.
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FRFSBRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

EERSREEE[BN (8

Board of Directors (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wu Bin, aged 49, has been appointed as a vice chairman of the
Board and an executive Director on 5 January 2017.

Mr. Wu obtained tertiary education qualification. He is the chairman of
Jiangsu Yuangi Property Development Co., lid* ((TE#fRIEE ZE AR A7)

and has many years of experience in investment management.

Please refer to the "Directors’ Report” for details of his discloseable

inferests in the Company under the provisions of the SFO.

Mr. Wu Xuze, aged 51, has been appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company on 5 January 2017.

Mr. Wu graduated from the Party School of Jiangsu Committee of the
Communist Party of China* (fp#T#& ZE ) and obtained fertiary
education qualification in economic management. Mr. Wu has invested
in and managed various companies in the PRC and has acted as
chairman, general manager and director of those companies. He has

over 10 years of experience in investment management.

Please refer to the "Directors’ Report” for defails of his discloseable

interests in the Company under the provisions of the SFO.

Ms. Zhou Shuhua, aged 55, was appointed as a Director on 18
August 2010, and was re-designed as an executive Director on 24 May
2011. Ms. Zhou is mainly responsible for general administrative work of
our Group. She is the spouse of Mr. Liu, the chairman of the Board and

an executive Director.

Ms. Zhou graduated from The Correspondence Institute of the Party
School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China* (A &
R ER KIFERR), the PRC in December 1999 and obtained a
graduation  certificate for undergraduate courses in  administrative
management. She also obtained a graduation certificate for
undergraduate courses in broadcasting in May 2001 from Nanjing
Normal University* (7 5 A &8 A Z2), the PRC.

Ms. Zhou acts as a Director for Jiangsu Xingyu, Xiangyu Environment
Protection, Xiangyu Environmental Protection Industry and Jiangsu

Jiaolong.

Please refer to the "Directors’ Report” for defails of her discloseable

interests in the Company under the provisions of the SFO.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

EERSREEE[BN (8

Board of Directors (Continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Longhua, aged 66, was appointed as the non-execufive
Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee on 25 April 2012. He was redesigned from a
joint chairman to a vice chairman of the Board of the Group on 23
September 2016.

Mr. Liu graduated from Tsinghua University and he was accredited with
the qualification of senior engineer. Mr. liu was the chairman of Beijing
Urban Construction Invesiment Development Co., Lid. (“Beijing Urban
Construction”), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600266) and acted as the vice chairman and general manager
of Beijing Construction Engineering Group Co., limited* (1t RE T £ E
BREMAT]) and the chairman and party secretary of Beijing Urban
Construction Group Co., ld. (a major shareholder of Beijing Urban
Construction). He has extensive experience in corporate governance of
sizeable state-owned enterprises.

Mr. liu was the vice chairman of China Consfruction Industry
Association* (FEEE%B @8 2K) and the chairman of the
Constructor Committee of China Consfruction Industry Association* (Ff
BEEEHeRENSIEER).
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FRFSBRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

EERSREEE[BN (8

Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Huan Xuedong, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 April 2012. He is also the member of the
Audit Committee.

Mr. Huan graduated from the Correspondence Institute of the Party
School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (f &
PRERKIEERT), the PRC with a graduation certificate for
undergraduate courses in party administration. He also completed his

postgraduate studies in Applied Sociology in Nanjing University (F R A
g).

Mr. Huan has served as the Head of Bureau of Township Enterprises of
Yan Cheng City* (B M3 /E) ond the Head of Bureau of
Water Management of Yan Cheng City* (E&3 7K F)/3). Currently, Mr.
Huan is the chairman of the Agricu|furo| and Water Enterprises
Association of Yan Cheng City* (E&3 T Bk ¥ ).

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in 30 November 2012. He is a
member of the Remuneration Commitiee and the Nomination Committee
and the chairman of Audit committee.

Mr. Chan graduated from the University of New South Wales, Australia
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Computer
Information Systems. Mr. Chan is both a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Certified Public Accountants,
Australia. He has extensive working experience in accounting, investment
and corporate finance. Mr. Chan worked in an international accounting
firm for about five years and currently, he is an investment manager of
Sprint Asset Management Limited.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

EERSREEE[BN (8

Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Hao Tin
Development Group Llimited [stock code: 474), Shenyang Public Utility
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 747), Up Energy Development
Group Limited (stock code: 307) [note) and Fujian Nuogi Co., Lid (stock
code: 1353), whose securities are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, and of Changhong Jichua Holdings Limited (stock code:
8016) and Dining Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code: 8056),
whose securities are listed on the growth enterprise market of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan acted as an independent non-executive director of
Far East Holdings International Limited (stock code: 36) from 14
November 2014 to 18 July 2017, whose securities are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, and of Focus Media Network Limited
[now known as Cornersfone Financial Holdings Llimited) (stock code:
8112) from 21 April 2015 to 27 November 2015 and [&A
Infernational Holdings Limited (stock code: 8195) for the period from 10
October 2014 to 3 March 2017, whose securities are listed on the
growth enferprise market of the Stock Exchange.

Note:  The appointment of Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan as an independent non-
executive director of Up Energy Development Group Llimited (stock code:
307) ("Up Energy”) is under dispute. For details, please refer to the
relevant announcements of Up Energy.

Mr. Liang Zequan, aged 49, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
the chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee on 23 Sepfember 2016.

Mr. liang has been the chairman, secrefary of the Communist Party's
committee and the general manager of Chengnan Branch of Jiangsu
Renhe Zhongheng Consulling Group* (T &R(— AR EZEAER). He is
also an independent non-executive director of Jiangsu Gaohe Intelligent
Equipment Co., lid. (stock code 831787), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He held various positions including the
chairman, secrefary of the Communist Parly’s general sub-division
committee and general manager of Chengnan Branch of Jiangsu Renhe
Zhongheng Engineering Consulting Real Estate Valuation Co., lid* ([T &k
CARFETIRFAEHEGEBR AR, the chairman of Jiangsu Renhe
Zhongheng CPA limited* [[TE#R{-ARPELEAIEIEFIBER AR, the
chairman of Yancheng Renhe Capital Consfruction Investment Valuation
Co., id* (EEHCAREAZRKEMBEBMBERAF) ond the vice
chairman of Yancheng Zhengdao CPA limited* (B&3 IF 38 & &t E0 =75
FrAMRAR]). Mr. liang graduated from Yancheng Insfitute of Technology
and obtained the Industrial and Civil Building Engineering professional
qudlification. He is a PRC principal senior economist with the
qualifications of PRC certified engineer, asset appraiser and real esfate
appraiser.
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FRFSBRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

EERSREEE[BN (8

Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Liang currently serves as the vice chairman of Jiangsu Province Real
Estate Appraisers and Agents Association* (T #k4& =2 (4 8 R4S 428 17
&), an expert of Jiangsu Cost Advisory Expert Committee* ([T #x4& (8
BHWEREZEE), an executive director of Registered Accountants
Association of Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* ((T#i& By it
M€, a special auditor of Audit Bureau of Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province™ [JL#+%& Bzt /), the vice chairman of Junior Chamber
of Commerce of Tingfu District, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* (iT %%
BERTEHESFEE), o representative of the 7th Congress of the
Communist Party of China of Tingfu District, Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province* (s H)T#k & B T = iR L JE A R), the vice chairman of
Association of Forensic Sciences of Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* (i
BREEW M AAZETHE) and the vice chairman of Federation of
Industry and Commerce of Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* [T #k% E&

T TR B R ).

Senior Management

Mr. Xu Wenyue, aged 46, joined the Group in Ocfober 2011 and
is the chief financial officer of the Company. He is the head of
accounting department of the Group and is responsible for overseeing
the daily accounting and financial matters of the Group, both in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

Mr. Xu graduated from the profession of accounting of Nanjing Economic
Institute ™ (FA R&SEERPT) in 1999, Mr. Xu is a senior accountant in the
PRC (FElZ 4k &stEM) and both a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (FPEIsT € EtEM7E) ond the China
Cerfified Tax Agents Association (FrBIzEMF#5EM17€). Prior fo joining
the Group, Mr. Xu worked in a listed group in Hong Kong as a financial
controller.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

EERSREEE[BN (8

Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Ding lJiying (T#%«+t), oged 43, joined the Group in
December 2011 as the internal control officer. She is responsible for

overseeing the infernal control matters of the Group.

Ms. Ding passed the examinations of the PRC Accounfant Examination
(Intermediate level)* (2B HZEFHATZE ) and Nanjing University of
Finance and Economics* (FEREFIE&EAE] in 2000 and 2007,
respectively, and awarded with the Bachelor of Management. She is
qualified as a PRC Certified Accountant* (2B i€ 5t6M) and China
Real Estate Appraisers* (2 Bl 7+t 5 A BB D).

Ms. Ding has about 13 years' experience in accounting, financial and
internal control aspects. Prior fo joining the Group, she has worked in
certain sizeable enterprises as financial manager and also worked in the
auditing and business consulting division of a PRC accounting firm,

mainly responsible for internal control review engagements.

Mr. Yang Xianbo (155 5%4), aged 53, joined the Group as
general manager of Jiangsu Xingyu in November 2012 and is

responsible for overseeing the Group's dredging operations.

Mr. Yang has more than 20 years of experience in the dredging industry.
Mr. Yang has been responsible for the development, implementation and
management of a number of national key dredging projects and he is
highly renowned in the dredging industry. Prior fo joining Jiangsu Xingyu,
Mr. Yang was appointed as the deputy director of Changjiang Wuhan
Waterway Engineering Company*  (RIIHRZMEBETEBEIBE), o
sizeable state-owned dredging enterprise under the Ministry of Transport (32
BIEHEE). He was awarded with the Certificate of Senior Engineer in
waterways engineering®  (fi8 TIZE A TI2AT) by the Ministry of
Communication (2238EF) (now known as the Minisiry of Transport (3238
B #5E0)) in 2006 and the Certificate of Registration of Constructor of First
Class* [—#323&Em) by the Minisiry of Consfruction (223%#6) in 2008.

Mr. Wang Julin (E&#5E4E), aged 66, joined the Group as the
chief engineer in August 2010, and is responsible for the management
of the engineering department of Jiangsu Xingyu. Mr. Wang studied the
profession of ports and waterways at Hohai University ;78 A£2) of the
PRC (formerly known as East China Technical University of Water
Resources (EEHRKFIEPT)) from 1974 to 1978. He was awarded the
Certificate of Senior Engineer in waterways engineering by the Ministry
of Communications (323@f) (now known as the Ministry of Transport (32
BIEE L) in 1998 and was awarded the Certificate of Registration of
Constructor of First Class by the Ministry of Construction (#3%28) in
2008.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

EERSREEE[BN (8

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Wang has over 30 years of experience in the implementation,
management and adminisfration of waterways engineering. Before
joining the Group, he worked for the engineering department of
Changijiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering Company* (5T HEM1E
T#2B) for about 15 years and has held the positions of officer and
project manager. He has been responsible for sizeable dredging projects
in the PRC. Thereaftfer, Mr. Wang worked in a subsidiary under
Changjiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering Company* (KT ZME
TF2/3) as a manager for about three years. In 1996, Mr. Wang re-
joined Changjiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering Company for about
eight years and has held the positions of deputy chief and chief of the
engineering and business depariment and deputy chief engineer (consfructor
of first class). He has been responsible for the inspection, negotiation and

overseeing of various projects and entering into of relevant confracts.
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Corporate Governance Report

N ,M\Aiﬁﬂ:

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for the
Review Period. This report describes how the Group has applied ifs
corporate governance practices fo its daily activifies.

Corporate Governance Code

The Group's corporate governance framework bases on two main
beliefs:

e We are well-committed fo maintaining good corporate governance

practices and procedures; and

e We recognise the need to adopt practices that improve ourselves
continuously for a quality management.

The Group has applied these principles and adopted all code provisions,
14 o the

Listing Rules as our own code of corporafe governance. The Directors

where applicable, of the CG Code contained in Appendix

consider that the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions under the CG Code except for the deviation from code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as explained below.

of the CG Code, the roles of chairman

and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1

the same individual. Mr. Liv acted as the chairman and the chief
execufive officer of the Company for the period from 23 September
2016 to 4 January 2017

The Company understands the importance of complying with code
of the CG Code. On 5 January 2017, Mr. liu resigned

as the chief executive officer of the Company and Mr. Wu Xuze was

provision A.2.1

appointed the same position. Hence, the Company has recomplied with
the code provision from that date onwards.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company's code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. In
response to specific enquiry made by the Company, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she had complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities fransactions by the
Directors throughout the Review Period.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERBRE (A

Board of Directors

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2017 and up fo the date of this annual report, the
Board comprises four executive Directors, one non-executive Director and

three independent non-executive Directors.

Composition of the Board and its changes during the Review Period and

up to date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

M. Liu Kaijin

Mr. Wu Bin (appointed on 5 January 2017)
Mr. Wu Xuze [appointed on 5 January 2017)
Ms. Zhou Shuhua

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Liu longhua

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Huan Xuedong

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

M. liang Zequan

The biographical defails of the Direcfors and the relationships among
them are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior

Management's Profile” of this annual report.

The Board believes that it has a balanced composition of executive
Direcfors, non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
and there is an independent element on the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement. As at 31 December 2017, the
Company has three independent non-executive Directors who provide the
Group with adequate check and balance. Each of them is considered to
be independent and has complied with the provisions sef out in Rule 3.13
of the Llisting Rules. All of them are identified as such in all
communications that disclose the names of the Directors. Their functions
are not only limited to a restricted scope and they have contributed to the
Group with diversified industry expertise, and advised on the Group's

management and proceedings.

One of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
/\/\ing Sun Jonathan, has professioncﬂ quohficoﬂons in accounting or

related financial management expertise.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group's
overall strafegies and policies, approval of business plans, evaluation of
its performance, overseeing the management and in charge of corporate
governance function. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its businesses by directing and supervising the Group's

affairs.

The Board delegates day-fo-day operations of the Group to executive
Direcfors and senior management while reserving cerfain key matters for
its approval. Board committees for specific functions are also set up fo
ensure efficient Board operations. The respective functions and
responsibilities reserved to the Board and those delegated to Board

committees have been clearly set out in their respective terms of reference.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management through

execufive Directors who have aftended the Board meetings.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
of the Company inc\uding:

la)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporcﬂe governance;

[b]  to review and monitor the fraining and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

[c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and pracfices in

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

[d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual [if any) applicable to employees and the

Directors; and

le) o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Review Period, the Board reviewed the compliance with the
CG Code and the disclosure in this corporate governance report and the

training and continuous professional development of the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As disclosed in the annual report 2016 of the Company, prior to 5
January 2017, Mr. Liu Kaijin has the dual roles of both the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company. On 5 January 2017, Mr. Liu
Kaijin ceased fo act as the chief executive officer of the Company and
Mr. Wu Xuze was appointed the same position. Subsequent to the
above changes, Mr. Liu Kaijin, being the chairman, is responsible for the
management of the Board and Mr. Wu Xuze, being the chief executive
officer of the Company, is responsible for the dayto-day management of

the Group's businesses.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a Direclor's service
confract with the Company. The letters of appointment of non-executive
Direcfor and independent non-executive Directors also set out the specific
terms and conditions relative to their respective appointment. All
remunerafion paid to executive Directors are covered by respective
service contracts and all remuneration paid to non-executive Directors are
covered by respective letters of appointment. Details of the terms of
appoiniment of the Directors are disclosed in the section “Director’s

Service Confracts” of the Directors’ Report in this annual report.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board shall hold
office until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election. Also, pursuant fo the Articles, at each
annual general meeting, one+hird of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not three or a mu|ﬁp\e of three, then the number nearest
fo but not less than one-hird) shall refire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including the non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Direcfors) shall be subject to retirement by rofation at least

once every three years.

Orienfation is provided to newly appointed Directors upon their
appointments. Each of them will receive a director's manual from the
Company which contains a package of orientation materials on the
operations and businesses of the Group, together with information
relating to the dufies and responsibilities of directors under the Listing

Rules and statutory regulations.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings

The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for executive
Directors regularly and  holding Board meetfings that included both
execufive Direcfors and non-executive Directors af least four times every
year. The Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-evel
decision on a particular matter is required.

Generally, at least 14-days’ notice for the Company's regular Board
meefing, and reasonable time for all other meefings, would be given
prior fo such meetings. Agenda for a meeting are sent fo all Directors
prior fo the meeting. The Directors will receive details of agenda items for

decision at least three days before regular Board meetings.

The Directors consider and approve the Company's matters by way of
written resolutions circulated to them as and when necessary. If a Director
has a material interest in a matter fo be considered by the Board, a
physical meefing will be held to discuss the matter instead of seeking

Direcfors’ written consent by way of circulation of written resolution.

In order to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed, all Directors are able to access the Company's
company secretary for advice from fime fo fime. Moreover, upon
reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense. All Directors were given an opportunity to include matters in the

agenda of meetings for discussion.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHE (A

Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

To ensure a competent Board operation, all Directors gave sufficient time
and affention o the affairs of the Group during the Review Period. During
the Review Period, @ Board meefings [excluding delegated committees’
meetings) were held and attendance of each Direcfor is set out as
follows:

EES @

BEEZEeEeEmwm)

AHREFSENENEE ROBEHE MEES
EAAEBMNEERARZSAKHEEE N - REE
HE BERETOREFeeR(TEERELZESS
B OBSESNHFEBASIET

Number of
meetings held

Number of  during term
Name of Director attendance of office
R RET
=g R E NEBXE
Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Liu Kaijin 2B Sk £ Q 9
Mr. Wu Bin R 5 £
(appointed on 5 January 2017) (RZE—+F—FRABEZE) 7 8
Mr. Wu Xuze RBEEE
[appointed on 5 January 2017) (RZZE—LF—-—PFHEAEEME) 7 8
Ms. Zhou Shuhua JB R EE 2 4 8 9
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Liu longhua ZIREERE Q Q
Independent non-executive Directors BYUIFBITEE
Mr. Huan Xuedong BERELE Q Q
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR §4 24 5F & Q
Mr. liang Zequan RERESE 8 Q
Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are kept eexhEEZEeeE e R AT W
by the company secrefary or other duly authorised person. All minutes are EYRETIAEENHEHMATREZ FFESELEES

open for inspection by any Director on reasonable nofice. Such minutes
are recorded in sufficient detail of the matters considered and decisions
reached. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings are senf fo
all Directors for their comments and records.

BRMTARENEEEN ZEERLHRTHFA
imuaﬁﬂ%)%ﬂ’]$ﬂ&{’ﬁﬁﬁ’]3&£ EFEERLK
WA REEREEEREMBES  WHEREEH
BERRRTF -



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERRSE (@

Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors’ Training

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Company
updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, fo ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the Review Period, all Directors participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities summarised as follows:

Name of Director

EESw@m

EE5
fE b EH A2 — 85
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CARRE TN AEEREM

FRLMRAREMERAEEREZRTERER

IAMERE BT
B2 R -

ZERA LR

SHERFEEERT

REBESME MEEEHE2ECELHBEEERR

EE BT

Reading materials and/or
attending training courses
relevant to the Company’s
business, to their duties and
responsibilities and/or to
corporate governance or

regulation

MEMA R ®R
HEZIIRBERNRTER
ARBER  RENBBR
EEnR BER REEEARARRTE
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr. Liu Kaijin 215 & T & 4
Mr. Wu Bin 038 5 &

[appointed on 5 January 2017) (Rt ALBEEE) 4
Mr. Wu Xuze RIBZE ST &

(appointed on 5 January 2017) (R=E—tF—FABHEZT) v
Ms. Zhou Shuhua JEREE 2L+ v
Non-executive Director: FHTESE
Mr. Liv Longhua ZlmEELRLE 7
Independent non-executive Direciors: BUIFHITESE
Mr. Huan Xuedong EERAEL 4
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR 28 42 5F & 7
Mr. liang Zequan RERFE 7

Every newly appointed Director has been provided with necessary FIEFEANEESHEREEVENABEIRER

induction and information fo ensure that he has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities

under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
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TEERBRE (A

Board Committees

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up a remuneration committee with specific terms of
reference with appropriate modification when necessary, which state
clearly its authority and duties. To keep the Remuneration Committee’s
terms of reference in line with the Listing Rules amendments, the Board
adopted the current terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee in
March 2012

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Group's policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and
reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time fo time.

During the Review Period, the Remuneration Committee conducted review
of the remuneration policy and structure of the Directors and senior
management which took into account the prevailing market condition and
the responsibilities and performance of individual members. No change
to the terms was proposed fo the Board by the Remuneration Committee.
Further, the Remuneration Commitlee made recommendations to the
Board on the ferms of service contracts (including remuneration packages)

for the executive Directors during the Review Period.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the Review Period is

set out below:

In the band of
&7

EEEES
FMWEES

ARRERIZFHME B & - I HIE FE & B E
(BERELEEENR)  FEIBEBREIBE - R
EHEMZESNBRERESS ETMRUNZER EF
EERN T _HF-ARMRENTHEZE SRS
& o

FMEZE eI ERECEAAEEEERSNEE
EN2RBFMBHELEABRNESTSREEZS  REE
EEeTRAITNECESHLRARMEZ2BUTE
EhEMEEENTEFHMFE

CIEHE FHEESUEETRSREEENHF K
KRR Tﬁ{”ﬁﬂjﬁﬁ JI#&L%?TW&&MEUEX,\E’JE&
f&i‘%iﬁ FHZEEeYEAESTERFZEHNBHEK
o WS I E B e R @ B E L T%%ZHH}%
/E\.,i.\’ﬂl?ﬁf\( BEMEBR)NEETSFLEBRE -

BREBEECEERTANTABKRIBIS SREREAER

REBEREzZGMEEHIWT

Number of individuals

BEAH

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

Z % 1,000,0007% 7T 4
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, a majority of the Remuneration Commitiee's
members are independent non-executive Directors. During the Review
Period, two committee meefings were held and the attendance of each

member as fo the said meetings is set out as follows:

EEZES @)

FMEE S @

R-—Z—+t&E+-A=+—R ZHEBCENBAS
BKEABTERTEE NEESEE BEA2K
EEeRE SREBLFELASENEREIMT -

Number of
meetings held

Number of  during term
Name of Director attendance of office
R N E T
BEEHR R RE NEBRHE
Non-executive Director: FHMTESE
M:r. Liu longhua ZIREE L 2 2
Independent Non-executive Direciors: BUIFHTEF :
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR 28 42 55 & 2 2
Mr. liang Zequan® RERAE! 1 2

* M. Liang Zequan acted as the chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee.

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up a nomination committee with specific ferms of
reference with appropriate modification when necessary, which sfate
clearly its authority and duties. To keep the Nomination Committee’s
terms of reference in line with the listing Rules amendments relafing to
board diversity, the Board adopted the current ferms of reference of the
Nomination Committee including a board diversity policy in August
2013.

fopes st BERATMEEREE -

REZRE

ARRBEKIZIERZ B E - I HIE FE A B E & E
(DERELHEZEER)  BREIIPEBRERBE - B
FREZEENBRELETALTRAUEHESTES
TR  EEEER B =FNARBKREY
REZEEBEEE(RREFSZ TILBE) -
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of the
Board members. The following measurable objectives [the “Measurable
Obijectives”) for the purpose of implementation of the board diversity

policy are adopted:

a)  atf least 40% of the members of the Board shall be non-executive

directors or independent non-executive directors;

b) ot least 65% of the members of the Board shall have attained

bachelor's degree or above;

[c)  at least 30% of the members of the Board shall have obtained

accounting or other professional qualifications;

(d) ot least 75% of the members of the Board shall have more than

seven years of experience in the industry he is specialised in;

le)  atleast 50% of the members of the Board shall have China-related

work experience.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
size, sfructure and composition of the Board, developing and formulating
relevant policies and procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Direcfors, and assessing the independence and
appropriateness of the independent non-executive Directors based on the
criferia such as reputation for infegrity, accomplishment and experience in
the relevant sectors, professional and educational background, and

potential ime commitments.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the size and composition of the
Board and the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
also made recommendations to the Board in relation to the re-
appointment of the refiring Direcfors and the appointment of the new
Direcfors for the Review Period. The Measurable Objectives sef out above
for the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy are
achieved.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the Review Period, two commitiee meetfings were held and the
affendance of each member as to the said meetfings is set out as follows:

EEZES @)

REZEEE W)

MREESRE BRT2ALZEEEF SKEHF L
MEZNBEREIMT

Number of
meetings held

Number of  during term
Name of Director attendance of office
ERHBEAET
EENA HE IR HEEXE
Non-executive Director: FEHITESE -
Mr. liv longhua® ZlmEELR A" 2 2
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHHITES -
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR $4 24 5F & 2 2
Mr. liang Zequan REBRESE | 2

* Mr. Liu Longhua acfed as the chairman of the Nomination Commitiee.

Audit Committee

The Company has esfablished an audit committee with specific written
terms of reference that have included the duties which are set out in CG
Code provision C.3.3 with appropriate modification when necessary. To
keep the Audit Committee’s terms of reference in line with the Listing Rules
amendments, the Board adopted the current terms of reference of the
Audit Committee in December 2015 to include duties regarding risk

management.

The major role and function of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
maintenance of proper re\oﬁonship with the Compony’s auditor, the
esfablishment of proper review and confrol arrangements relating to
infernal control and risk management systems, financial reporting and the

compliance to applicable reporting requirements.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee reviewed the consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2017 and consolidated financial
statements for the Review Period of the Group, including the Group's
adopted accounting principles and practices, the continuing connected
transactions of the Company, infernal confrol systems and financial
reporting matters (in conjunction with the external auditor for the annual
results). The Audit Commitlee also monitors the effectiveness of the
external audit and oversees the appointment, remuneration and ferms of
engagement of the Company's external auditor, as well as its
independence. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting freatments
adopted by the Company and, to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosures of the financial information in this annual report comply
with the applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules.

As at 31 December 2017, the Audit Commitiee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors and regular Audit Committee
meetings were held pursuant to its terms of reference. During the Review
Period, two committee meetings were held in the aftendance of the
external auditor, and the attendance of each member as to the said

meetings is set out as follows:

EEZES @)

EZREEE W

ERZESERMNARBBE_T—LtFAA=1H
EREANGEE M ERE R OBESEORS B R
F EBRASERANSHRUNREDN  ARAFHE
X5 NHEEHERMEREEE(FEE
BESNEZEE —RRE) BREEENERING
ERORBREARAINEZHE R HE B
EHRAEEBIMETEE BRZESERALQR
RPN EARER L YERNBRRNFHRBEENH
BAERKTEERN G ER R ERRRIME K-

RZF—tF+ZA=1+—RH BEEZZEEEE=4
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EgH - NEOEYE CHEIBZBEMLFENERLT
BITMAZESEH SHELFLASENBERH
Sl

Number of
meetings held

Number of  during term

Name of Director attendance of office

ERERET

EERE R E HEERE
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIFNTESE -

Mr. Huan Xuedong BEREE 2 2

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan* PR £ 48 5 A * 2 2

Mr. liang Zequan RERFE 2 2

* Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan acted as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors or the management of the Company or their
respective close associates (as defined under the listing Rules) had any
inferests in a business which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group, or had any other conflict of inferest with the Group during

the year.

The Company has received from each of the Directors an annua

confirmation of his/her underiaking as fo non-competition.

Non-Competition Undertakings

The then confrolling Shareholders [namely Mr. Liu, Wangji Limited
["Wangiji"), Mr. Dong Liyong ("Mr. Dong”) and Shen Wang Limited (“Shen
Wang"], through a deed of non-competition dafed 24 May 2011
["Principal Deed”), have given undertakings (“Undertakings”) fo the
Company not fo directly or indirectly engage in the business which
competes or may compete with the Group, on terms and conditions as
disclosed in the prospecius of the Company dated 8 June 2011
|"Prospectus”). For defails of the Undertakings, please refer to pages 162
fo 165 of the Prospectus.

On 2 April 2015, the Company, Mr. liu, Wangiji, Mr. Dong and Shen
Wang entered info a supplemental deed of non-competition [which was
approved by the Shareholders in the Company’s annual general meeting
for the year 2014) fo amend cerfain terms confained in the principal
Deed ("Supplemental Deed”]. Pursuant to the Supplemental Deed, Mr.
Dong and Shen Wang were no longer bound by the Principal Deed nor
were they be deemed as part of the controlling Shareholders for the
purpose of the Principal Deed. For defails, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dafed 2 April 2015.
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Non-Competition Undertakings (Continued)

The sfatus of compliance with the Undertakings by the confrolling
Shareholders during the Review Period is as follows:
(1) the Board received from each of Mr. Lliv and Wangji a
confirmation (i) of compliance with the Undertakings for the Review
Period, and (i) that during the Review Period, neither they nor their
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules] had any inferest in
any project or business opportunity [otherwise than through their
interests held through the Group) which relate to the business
activities by the Group;

[2)  none of the Director are aware of any circumstances which
indicate that the controlling Shareholders or their close associates

are in breach of the Undertakings during the Review Period; and

[3)  save for the terms as amended by the Supplemental Deed, the
ferms of the Undertakings have remained unchanged since the
Company's listing on the Stock Exchange in June 2011

Financial Reporting and Audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards and the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

The Group adopted the going concemn basis in preparing its financial
statements. Except from the issue discussed under note 2 fo the
consolidated financial statements on page 99 in relation fo the failure by
the Group to seflle the Bonds on their maturity dates, the Directors were
not aware of any other material uncertainties relafing fo events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability fo

confinue as a going concern.

A statement by the external auditor of the Company about ifs reporting
responsibilities is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s

Report” in this annual report.

During the Review Period, remuneration in respect of non-audit services,
namely, the review of continuing connected transactions and preliminary
results announcements provided by CWC CPA Llimited amounted fo
about RMB210,000. The remuneration in respect of audit service was
amounted to about RMB 1,868,000.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERE®E (H)

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group's risk
management and infernal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness af least annually. The Audit Committee assists the Board in
fulfilling its oversight role in the Group's risk management and infemnal

controls.

The risk management and infernal control systems are to ensure that the
Croup's assets are safeguarded, relevant rules and regulations are
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained
in accordance with relevant accounting standards and  regulatory
reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group's
performance are appropriately identified and managed. However, the
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures
to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has an infernal audit function reporting directly fo the Audit
Committee. The role of infernal audit is to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of internal control, risk management and business
governance processes. The regular work of the internal audit covers the

major activities of the Group's operations.

An information disclosure policy is in place fo ensure potential inside
information being captured and confidentiality of such information being

maintained until consistent and timely disclosure is made.

During the Review Period, the Audit Commitiee not only reviewed the
infernal audit's report but also the certain key risk management and
infernal control issues identified by the external auditor. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the infernal control and risk management
systems of the Group, covering all material financial, operational and
compliance controls and concluded that the key areas of the Groups'
internal confrol and risk management systems are reasonably and

adequately implemented fo their satisfaction, with room of improvement.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERRE @

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Kwan Lai has been the company secretary of the Company
since 20 June 2016 and is a fulHime employee of the Company. The
company secrefary is responsible for ensuring good information flow
within the Board and that Board's policy and procedures are followed as
well as for providing advice on govemance matters. For the year ended
31 December 2017, Ms. Wong confirmed that she had faken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training fo update her skills and

knowledge.

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company communicates with its Shareholders through its annual
report, interim report and sfatutory and voluntary announcements. The
Direcfors, company secretary or appropriate members of senior
management, where appropriate, also respond to inquiries from

Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for
direct communication between the Board and Shareholders. Separate
resolufions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the
general meetings. The annual general meeting for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2016 AGM”") was held on 29 May 2017. An
extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on 3 November
2017 ["2017 EGM'] to approve a share placing under specific
mandate.

Resolutions put fo vote atf the general meetings of the Company are taken
by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are explained to the
Shareholders at the commencement of each general meetfing. The poll
results are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG code, independent non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings. All Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) who held office at time of respective
general meetings attended the 2016 AGM and 2017 EGM.
Representative of the Company's external auditors also attended the

2016 AGM.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Communication with Shareholders and
Investors (Continued)

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene Extraordinary
General Meeting and Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

In accordance with article 64 of the Arficles, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholderls) holding, at the dafe of deposit of the requisition, not less
than oneenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
vofing at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Direcfors or the Company’s company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Directors
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed
fo convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed

to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There is no provision in the Aricles setting out procedures for
Shareholders to put forward a resolution at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
fo convene a general meefing following the procedures sef out in the

preceding paragraph.

In accordance with arficle 110 of the Atticles, if a Shareholder intends to
propose a person other than a Director for elecfion as a Director at any
general meeting, the Shareholder concerned shall lodge with Hong Kong
head office or Hong Kong share registrar of the Company for the
affention of the Board and the company secretary of the Company (i} a
written notice of his/her intention to propose that person for election as a
Director; and (ii] a writtlen notice by that person of his/her willingness to
be elected as a Director together with the necessary information within
the period commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
nofice of the general meeting and ending no later than seven clear days

prior fo the date of such general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Communication with Shareholders and
Investors (Continued)

Investor Relations

The Company endeavours fo disclose all material information about the
Group to all interested parties as widely and fimely as possible. It has
disclosed all necessary information fo the Shareholders in compliance
with the Listing Rules. When announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange, the same information will be made available on the
Company's website. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company has issued announcements which can be viewed on the
Company's website.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns fo the Board in writing to the company secrefary at the
Company's office in Hong Kong or through the email address:
info@cdep.com.hk. Shareholders may also raise their enquiries in general
meefings.

Constitutional Documents

No amendment to the memorandum and articles of association of the

Company was made during the Review Period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS - B RERHE

The Group is committed to fulfilling its corporate social responsibility
through working with the key stakeholders including the employees,
cusfomers, suppliers and Shareholders.

We have given full consideration fo issues that are of concern fo major
stakeholders and have adhered to the principles of materiality,
completeness, comparability and stakeholder involvement, all of which
form the contents of this report. This report spans over one financial year
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 and covers information of
the Group — our Hong Kong and China Yancheng headquarters as well

as dredging and property management businesses in the PRC.

This report highlights the Group's sustainability efforts in environmental
and social aspects as stipulated in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the Llisting Rules.
We  shalll exp|oin this in terms of four areas nome|y, environment
profection, employment and labour practices, operating practices and

community investment.

For details of our corporate governance, please refer to the corporate

governance report included in this annual report.

Environmental Protection

Emissions

The Group recognises the importance of good environmental
management and is committed fo protecting the environment. We factor
our environmental concerns info our business processes and strive to
continuing to improve our environmental performance in compliance with

the applicable regulations and industry-specific guidelines.

Owing fo its business nature, the Group's air emissions are mainly
generated from the dredging business by the consumption of fuels. The
Group’s greenhouse gas ("GHG"] emissions consist of the direct
emissions from the consumption of fuels by our dredging fleet and
vehicles, and the indirect emission from the consumption of electricity and
water at Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall and the Group's offices
and the refuse produced from the shopping mall, construction project sites

and offices.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group has caleulated the air and GHG emissions during the
Reporting Period as follows:

RERE@

BEBR WD (@)

REFBRBERANERINIREREHRMGIEN
I

Amount
Types of emissions HBER (Unit: Kg)
BWE
(Bfr: FR)
Air emission BER B
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) ALfy 5,139,904
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) may 25,394
Particulate Matter (PM) BG4 ) 61
Direct GHG emission HERAEREHER
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) (scope 1) —S|bER (EBE ) 125,834
Methane (CH,) b 393
Nitrous Oxide (N,O) TR 115
Indirect GHG emission BEAEREHEK
Carbon Dioxide [CO,) (scope 2) —Ethx (& E2) 676,332

During the Reporting Period, the Group's major GHG emission was
carbon dioxide and its infensity was 1,268.5 Kg CO,e per million of
revenue.

The Group always encourages its employees to save resources in its
daily operation fo reduce GHG emissions. We conduct regular
maintenance and inspection of vessels and vehicles not only to maintain
their performance but also to improve fuel efficiency. We remind our
employees to make good use of electronic systems for message
distribution and archiving and use double-sided printing and
photocopying fo reduce paper consumption. Further, we encourage them
to reduce carbon emissions from their daily lives, such as using public

transport and walking or riding a bicycle for short journeys.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group sfrictly complies with the relevant national maritime regulations
fo identify and manage the released substances during dredging to
ensure their safe freatment, transportation, storage, recycling and
disposal. We strive for high accuracy in both positioning and excavation
during the dredging process fo ensure proper removal of excavated
materials {including mud and solid matter) and pollutants and to minimize
overexcavation and soil agitation. We also take antidiffusion and
leakage measures fo ensure high concentrations of inhalation in order to
avoid pollution by the contaminants in their suspended state in the
surrounding water. Besides, in the dredging process the excavated
materials and confaminated sediments are stored on the dredgers in
accordance with the relevant national regulations. We transport them to
the shore through barges or pipeline to avoid their leakage which may
cause secondary polluion to water. Finally, we arrange quadlified
recyclers for their disposal.

In the horizons of waste management and recycling, the Group requires
our employees to keep contaminated substances in separation and freat
wastes in classification. Excavated materials and contominated sediments
in the dredging process are stored on the dredgers and transported to the
shore according fo the relevant national laws and regulations. Other
wastes are stored in specialised storage areas and handled in
accordance with the Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste
Storage. The Group has commissioned qualified companies fo recycle
and declare under the registrafion system pursuant fo the relevant laws

and regulafions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's recorded the following waste:

RERE@

BERR WD (@)

AEBEBRBRRERE B EZRAITHDAIES - A
REGREZBETFEBENFRDERSI R 2NEE -
Bl T EHRMNMEE - EHRIZZEERE D SR
REMBELRRERE  ERKBEREZERELOYH
(BREERFEMERY) LSRMI RERIBEZEER
DB WEHRBEANRRER RESRER
A DA S R T BEOT IR R )5 2 ) S R B K BB AE KOS
Fotsh ZMMPERZBRPZENDE LSRR
RERREREEEIREEFEZRER L EBRMH
FEENBEEETRLRREKEBER ZRTR
EEFBRLTHEGERDBARER-

EERDEEDEMNBIE AEEERETRERE
FES Y XA E O REIE EHOZE TIEPIEHRE
HEOMH R SRR EEZRERBEEREZEME
2ERERSE MEMEEVSEFREZMRE &
(R BENITFESREFFREINERAT AEEZR
REEEEURERE RERNTERERREL
I e

RBERA AEBERET THEDER

Weight
Types of wastes EEY R (Unit: ton)
B2
(B84 - Wd)

[ ||
General Waste — A EEY) 208
Diesel dregs 1L Sth 85 30

Notes: W at -

1. The general waste included kitchen waste as the Group offered free meals
fo crews of dredging vessels in the PRC.

2. The waste produced from the Group's Hong Kong office was not counted
as it was immaterial in view of the whole Group's waste production.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

In addition, due to the nature of businesses, the Group does not have
physical products for sale and thus the disclosure on the use of packaging

material is inapplicable to the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of any non-
compliance of laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Use of resources

The resources used by our Group are principally attributed to fuels
consumed by dredging fleet at construction project sites, and also

electricity and water consumed at its offices and the shopping mall.

With the aim fo better manage the use of resources, the Group performs
assessment annually. The Group has adopted green office practices to
reduce natural resource and energy consumption, e.g., installing LED
lamp to save energy, and employees are encouraged to develop the
habit of energy conservation, e.g., switching off lights, computers and
other electronic appliances before leaving the offices. The Group strives
fo ufilise telephone conferences to minimize facetoface meetings in order
fo reduce petrol consumption in travelling and avoid unnecessary business
trips. During the Reporting Period, the Group had an electricity
consumption of approximately 836,000 kilowatthours.

From the perspective of water management, the Group has provided
signs to remind its staff to reduce water consumption. We also regularly
check meter readings and conduct the detection of hidden leaks in water
pipes. If hidden water leakage or tap dripping is found, we will arange
for repair prompily to avoid wasting water resources. During  the
Reporting Period, the Group's water consumption was about 20,000
tons. The water consumption for the Reporting Period was more than
expected as the newly opened Easyhome Shopping Mall occasionally

conducted fire prevention tests fo meet the fire safety requirements.

Environment and Natural Resources

Dredging construction projects  affect the environment and natural
resources. The Group is commitied fo managing the impact of ifs
operations related to the environment and natural resources and

preventing significant adverse impacts on the environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

We care the natural environment. Thus, the Group deploys measures to
profect the environment in its dredging business, by which we hope fo
confribute to the protection of the environment. Our environmental
profection dredging fechnology outperforms the traditional technology as
it does not cause secondary pollution and conforms with the keynote of
China’s environmental protection policies. Our sludge dewatering
equipment is capable of continuous operation and meeting the
requirements and standards of dewatering volume without adding
solidification materials such as lime or concrete during operation. It does
not change the acidity and alkaline property of the mud plate affer
dewatering and can be used in sludge soil resource recovery and reuse
or otherwise can be tumed into harmless environmental protection bury.
The remaining water after processing is clear and up fo the standard,

which can be directly redischarged into the lake.

Environmental impact is also fu||\/ taken into consideration when the

Group makes investment decisions.

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The policy of maintaining a good working condition is a people-oriented
principle. In relation to personnel management affairs on staff hiring,
promotion, performance evaluation and compensation, the Group
esfablishes an employeremployee relationship based on legitimacy and
equality, which enables us to avoid any discrimination resulting from
different genders, ages, languages, nationdlities and religions of

employees.

The Group recruits employees mainly by recruitment via public means.
The recruitment of our employees embodies the principles of social
responsibilities such as the equality of employment, the respect for human
rights, the diversity of employees, the prohibition of use of child labour
and the prohibition of forced labour. The Group provides its new
employees with clear codes of practice, rules and regulations, as well as

information relating to salary and welfare system.
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Employment and Labour Practices (Confinued)

Employment (Continued)

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had a fotal of 629 employees, of
which over 90% were employed for our operations in the PRC. As for
positions, 34.7% are managerial and technical staff and 65.3% are
general staff. In respect of ages, we have an even age disfribution
among our staff, of which 78.3% our workforce is between 30 to 50
years old, 8.3% of our employees are below 30 years old and 13.4%
are over 50 vears old.

In respect of salaries and benefits, the Group provides a comprehensive
remuneration package of compensation and benefits for its employees.
The remuneration package is mainly determined according to the
individual employee’s development and performance as well as the
Group's performance. The Group provides work lunch fo those staff in the
PRC and also sets aside reserved funds for activities, which help our
employees fo relieve sfress and serve fo exemplify the Group's corporate
culture of the spirit of solidarity and cohesion among its employees. In
accordance with the applicable Chinese labour laws, the Group
contributes to various national social security insurances and one housing
fund for our mainland employees.

Recognising the importance of communication with its employees, the
Group encourages its employees to share their ideas with the Group and
raise questions or make suggestions fo the Group. With the availability of
a wide array of communication channels, the Group offers its employees
access to the latest information of the Group through the Group's website.
Employees can also maintain timely and smooth communication with the
management of the companies within the Group through the

representatives of the employees.

Health and safety

The Group trains its employees to prevent occupational hazards from
fime fo fime and distributes labour protection supplies and first aid
supplies to employees as needed. We also post up hazard warning
signs and labour protection supplies reminders in the relevant work
places. We provide to the relevant staff annual occupational health
examinations. Meanwhile, we also implement the labor protection
supplies regulatory mechanism. With regular inspections by dedicated
persons, we remind and request employees to wear labour profection
supplies to maintain their health and safety.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Employment and Labour Practices (Confinued)

Health and safety (Continued)

At the production safety level, each of the dredgers and the key safety
equipment must carry a valid ship inspectfion certificate issued by the ship
inspection agency. All the ships and offices are also equipped with first
aid and medicine boxes, and we also arrange staff representatives to
participate in first aid training. At the individual's level, the Group
provides targeted safety trainings to newly recruited employees and then
strengthens their safety awareness through the implementation of the
mentoring system in daily work. The Group has reinforced onthe-job
safety frainings by requiring all department heads responsible for work
injury to carmy out safety trainings for their department staff and through a
series of measures to enhance the safety awareness of employees in

order to avoid the recurrence of similar incidents.

Moreover, the Group has assigned dedicated people to conduct regular
inspections of the fire equipment on the ships and in offices. We perform
full fire drills twice per year fo increase their awareness of fire safety and
fire prevention for all employees. As a result, no work accident was

recorded by the Group in the Reporting Period.

Development and training

The Group highly emphasizes on the infernal and external learning and
fraining to enhance the educational standards and working abilities of

employees.

New employees are provided with on-board training fo help them
familiarise themselves with the culture, business and operation of the
Group. In addition, employees are also entifled to various subsidies and
sponsorships for job-related fraining courses to encourage lifelong

|eommg.

Labour standards

All work should be voluntarily performed and shall not involve forced
labour, debt repayment or contractually binded labour. The Group
prohibits child labour in any workplace. The Group also prohibits
discrimination based on race, colour, age, gender, sexual orientation,
ethnicity, disability, pregnancy, religion, political affiliation, union

membership or marital status in recruitment, treatment, promotion, etc.

The Group also strictly complies with the relevant PRC labour regulations
relating to working hours, rest and holidays to ensure the physical and
mental of all employees. Employees are not to be forced to work beyond
working hours and are entilled o overtime pay in accordance with the
local regulations. All employees perform works volunfarily and are not

subject fo discrimination.

EBEKSITERG@

BREHREZZm@m

EEERETE MANOMMAIR EEBERRTLZE2H
EERBUAAEMARBREBRENERIMBRR
BE FBENMMENRGMIMRILT S8 %A
R ZHEE B TRER2 MR A SZRANZBE -
EEABH SEERFTABRE TRHESTEESEA
ZEHEEY BRBETMESEAEAE TELN
BMABEINZZER - RNBERZE2HI &
EERMAELETEBNHBMEEAEANPIETE
TTR2HI B - RIEEEERAETINLEE
o ABRLRRABRERNBREL -

ZH EETHEATHEMM ERBRAEARNNHED
EMETRERS  SFETMROBIEE - BMA
BEEIR2MHAEZ - Bt RREHE AEE2
BREEEFIEEN-

2R g A

AEEREERAMMIIBHORBEMFTI - ARAE
THHEBKEMTIEES -

SEAHMAHETEHEABE  UEDRMABEAR
EEE T EHHNEEBR- 1 BINEHE
BEETERBNENRE BENED LS
HEE

B ITEA

ETHRESEREM AREMARE KREXHRZY
RENBT -AEBEINAFREIEEMIESHAT
B REBMRELRER  EE - Fic M 1A
MR Bk ER - E0 BUaRA  TEKE X

ERARMEEREER 58 A%
AABEBRBETHRTHERRE KEERAEEND

BEEER WREMBEINFGLEE - BT TE
WoRE NI WERREMERESMEE -ABEE
THERAAT TIEMIEERIR -

—Z2—tFE £, Annual Report 2017



P RFSBRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBIE 2 RERES (H)

Operating Practices

Supply chain management

Our suppliers are our business pariners and we aim to mainfain a long-
ferm partnership with them to continuously improve the quality of our
products and services.

Based on supply chain social and environmental responsibilities
management, the principal raw material currently required by the Group’s
operation is diesel, and other resources involve owned and leased
dredgers, crews and subcontractors’ participation. There are over
hundreds of dredger leasing companies, subcontractors and fuel suppliers
on our ist.

In addition to factors such as pricing, quality, facilities and experience,
and past performance evaluation, the Group also fakes info account the
suppliers’ performance in fulfilling their social responsibilities and
commitment fo environmental protection in our selection of suppliers. VWe
require our suppliers to comply with the laws and regulations in countries
and regions where their operations are located and to operate in good
faith by adhering to their business ethics. The Group prohibits
discrimination arising from regional, racial, cultural and political factors in

the course of its supplier evaluation.

Product responsibility

The Group attaches great importance fo the quality of dredging projects
and establishes comprehensive quality control procedures. The project
management team is responsible for testing the quality of the dredging
projects. The project manager conducts daily on-site inspections and
supervise works fo ensure that the quality standards and regulations of the
dredging and related projects are carried out in accordance with the
customers' requirements. After the completion of the works but before
handing over of the projects, customers will check whether the quality of

the projects meets their requirements.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have to rework for

completed project due fo the project quality issue.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Operating Practices (Continued)

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining high ethical standards in all of our
operafions and business activities. With this in mind, the Group is
dedicated fo a zerofolerance policy with regard to any involvement in

corruption or bribery activities of any type.

We include anficorruption code in our infernal operational manual to
ensure that employees understand the Group's expectations. The code
sefs out the legal responsibilities and ethical standards for the expected
behaviour of all employees. It explicilly prohibits employees from
soliciting, accepting, or offering bribes or any other form of advantage.
The code also provides guidance for daily interactions with cusfomers,
suppliers, government officials and other business partners and outlines
the Group's expectations on employees with regard to conflicts of
inferests and encourages employees to report any malpractice and
misconduct. The Group has set up hofline and email fo receive reports

from all employees.

Community Investment

The Group emphasizes the support of the community and actively
participates in charifable activities for the relief of poverty in the
communities in which we operafe our businesses. \We encourage our
employees fo parficipate in volunteering activities organized by local

charities.
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FRFSBHRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited .

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

The Direcfors are pleased fo present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Defails of the
principal activities of ifs principal subsidiaries are sef out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year 2017. as well as a discussion on the Group's future
business development are set out in the sections headed “"Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report. In addition, defails of the Group's relationship with its employees,
customers and suppliers are disclosed in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Govemnance Report” of this annual report. The above
discussions form part of this directors’ report.

Discussions on the compliance with applicable laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group, the Group's major risks
and risk management and the Group's environmental po|icies and
performance can be found in the paragraphs below.

Comfliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact on
the Group

The Group and its acfivities are subject fo requirements under an array of
laws, including the Tendering and Biding Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Implementation Rules of Tendering and Biding law of the
People's Republic of China, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Production Safety law of the People’s Republic of Ching,
as well as other applicable regulations, guidelines, policies and terms
issued or promulgated pursuant fo or in respect of these formal laws. In
addition, the Listing Rules are also applicable to the Group. The Group is
committed fo ensuring compliance with such requirements by taking
various measures using specific resources at all levels, including internal
monitoring and approval procedures, fraining and supervision over
different segments. The Group always atfaches paramount importance to
compliance with the requirements under applicable laws and regulations,
despite the fact that such measures involve a lot of infernal resources and
incur additional operating cosfs.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Business Review (Continued)

Compliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact on
the Gl‘OUp (Continued)

Tendering and Biding Law of the People’s Republic of
China

According to the Tendering and Biding law of the People's Republic of
China and the Implementation Rules of Tendering and Biding Law of the
People's Republic of China, when bidding for a new project, the Group
must, in accordance with the laws and regulations, have the capacity,
qualifications and conditions to undertake the project and respond in
defails to substantive requirements and conditions under the bidding
document, and must nof, among others, collude with others to make a
tender offer, undermine fair competition by squeezing out other bidders,
bribe tenderee or any member of the bid evaluation committee, make a
bid at o price lower than cosfs, and participate in the bidding in the
event that the fenderee is interested in the Group and thus may
compromise bidding fairmess. In the case of any violation of relevant
regulations by the Group as a bidder, its bid shall be invalid and it may
be punished by the tenderee or relevant authorities.

Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

The Confract law of the People’s Republic of China (“Confract Law”)
clearly sfipulates, among others, qualifications of the confract parties,
confract forms, principal ferms, cancellation conditions, contract validity,
constituent elements of invalid and cancelable contracts, fulfillment of
obligations, conditions for contract alteration and transfer, termination of
rights and obligations under a contract and liability for breach of
contract.

For construction contracts, the Contract Law sets out specific requirements,
including: contracts for major national construction projects shall be
entered into in accordance with statessfipulated procedures and  state-
approved documents such as investment plans and feasibility study
reports; with the consent of the confractee, the contractor can sublet part
of its contracted works to a third party, provided that construction of the
main structure of the construction project must be completed by the
contractor who is forbidden to sublet its works to an unqualified entity.
After the complefion of the consfruction project, the contractee shall timely
conduct acceptance inspection of the project pursuant to consfruction
acceptance rules and quality inspection standards issued by the state. If
the project passes the acceptance inspection, the confractee shall accept
it and make the agreed payment. In the case of the Group's failure fo
fulfill its  confractual obligations  (either non-ulfillment or non-agreed
fulfillment) as the performing party and/or constructor, it must assume the
liability for breach of contract, including continuing to fulfill the contract,
taking remedial measures or compensating for any resulting losses. In the
case of the construction project quality falling below the agreed level due
to the constructor’s fault, the contractee has the right o require the
constructor fo repair, revamp or rebuild it within a reasonable period,
without any extra chorge, and to bear the |iobi\i1‘y for breach of contfract
for the resulting delayed delivery |if any).
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FRFSBHRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited .

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HA)

Business Review (Continued)

Compliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact on
the Group (Continued)

Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China

The National People’s Committee made revisions fo the Production Safety
law of the People’'s Republic of China on August 2014, and the
amendments came into force in 1 December 2014. According to the
revised Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, for the
production and operating unit held responsible, a major accident may
incur a fine of up to RMB20 million in addition to typical liabilities
including the required legal compensation. To ensure compliance with
the newly revised Production Safety law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Group avoids production safety incidents by providing
fraining courses from fime fo time on production sofety and emergency
rescue drills fo staff engaged in project design, construction, equipment
repair and mainfenance, safety supervision, efc. fo ensure production

safety.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the datfe of this
report, the Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the Group.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Business Review (Continued)

Major Risks and Risk Management

The Board is well aware of its responsibility to maintain the effectiveness
of the Group's infernal confrol and risk management systems. Such
systems are designed to manage risks of failed business objectives and
provide reasonable guarantee against material misrepresentation or

losses.

Business Risks

The Group's business risk factors include changes in the overall market
condifions, downward pressure on China's economy and the number
and progress of domestic projects in the entire industry, which may affect
the construction environment, setlement prices and capital tumnover rates
of its construction projects. The Board is responsible for overall business
management and review of major business decisions involving disclosure

of significant risks from time fo time.

Financial Risks

The Group has adopted a series of financial risk management policies to
manage its liquidity risk, credit term allocation risk, financing structure
risk, interest rafe risk and exchange rate risk. The Board also reviews the
Group’s management accounts, capifal structure and key operational

data on a monthly basis.

Compliance Risks

The Board takes effective measures to ensure compliance of the
Company with the laws, regulations and rules. The Company has
engaged professional consultants and advisors to keep the Company
updated on the lafest changes in the regulatory environment, including
legal, financial, environmental and operational development. The
Company also imposes strict policies to prohibit any unauthorized use or

publication of confidential information or insider information.

Operational Risks
The Company has adopted effective measures fo manage ifs operational
risks such as low equipment utilization efficiency, high consumption of

consumables and frequent production failures.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
and risk management systems covering its business, financial, operational

and compliance risks, and is of the view that such systems are effective.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEEHRE @

Business Review (Continued)

Environmental Policies and Performance

We commit ourselves fo environmental protection in all aspects of
operations. Over the years, the Group has been doing its utmost fo
project the environment. The management of the Group has implemented
various measures and regulafions to make sure that we honor our
responsibilities for the environment. We regularly hold special internal
meetings with professional teams fo review environmental issues at the
construction sites and office areas and exchange ideas on environmental
improvement. The management of the Group will continue its efforts in
securing ongoing high environmental standards in major areas and key
links.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
financial position of the Company and of the Group at that date are set

out in the accompanying financial statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Defails of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group

during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Defails of movements in the Company's share capital during the year are

sef out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Arficles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company fo offer new Shares

on a pro rata basis fo existing Shareholders.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEE®RE H

Equity-Linked Agreements

Defails of the equitylinked agreements entered into during the year or

subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

On 21 September 2017, the Company entered into a share placing
agreement with Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited ("Guotai
Junan”), pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to place,
through Guotai Junan, up to an aggregate of 900,000,000 placing
shares fo not less than six placees af the placing price of nof less than
HK$0.39 per placing share. As at the long stop date of 31 March
2018, cerfain conditions of the share placing were not fulfilled and the
share placing agreement lapsed on 1 April 2018

As for the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the section headed “Share

Option Scheme”.

Other than the above share placing agreement and the Share Option
Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company

during the year or subsisting at the end of the year ended 31 December
2017

Permitted Indemnity Provision
The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’

liability insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover

for the Directors and officers of Group.

Tax Relief

For the year ended 31 December 2017, Shareholders were not entitled
fo any tax relief by virtue of their holding of the Shares.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor any
of ifs subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any listed securifies of the
Company.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEEHRE @

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in the statement of financial position of the
Company on page 12 of this annual report and in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has no reserve available for
distribution as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (2001
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account is distributable to the Shareholders provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position o pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share
premium account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus

shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, revenue to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for about 54% (2016: 71%) of the Group's total revenue for
the year and the revenue from the largest customer included therein
accounted for about 12% (2016: 18%) of the Group's tofal revenue.

The Group's five largest customers comprise PRC state-owned companies
and private enferprises which have business relationships with the Group
for a period ranging from two to eight years. Services provided to them
by the Group include CRD Business, and EPD and Water Management
Business. Their contracts with the Group were projectbased, which
provided for either monthly progress payments with reference to the value
of work complefed each month or annual payments with a fixed
percentage for each year throughout the contract period. Such credit
terms were in line with those granted to other customers of the Group.
No longterm agreements had been enfered into between the Group's

five largest customers and the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board resolved not to
make an allowance for doubtful debts of for certain receivables (2016:
allowance for doubtful debts: RMB11.9 million). The allowance for
doubtful debts was based on the assessment in recoverability and the
judgement by the management after considering the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the present value of the original effective inferest rate.
For defails please refer to note 20 to the financial statement in this annual

report.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HA)

Major Customers and Suppliers (Continved)

Since the Group's major cusfomers accounted for a significant portion of
the Group's fotal revenue for the year, if in the future the Group loses one
of its major customers or if any of the Group’s major customers
significantly reduces its volume of business with the Group while the
Group is unable to get new projects from other existing and/or potential
cusfomers, net revenues and profitability of the Group would be heavily
reduced. Nonetheless, the Group believes that it has developed close
relationships with its major customers that they cannot easily replace the
Group with other suppliers. The Group has also entered info contracts
with and will continue to seek business from other customers.

In the year under review, supplies from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for about 30.4% (2016: 30.1%) of the Group's fotal
operafing cost for the year and supplies from the largest supplier included
therein accounted for about 8.3% (2016: 19.8%) of the Group's tofal
operating cost.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
[which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers for the year

ended 31 December 2017

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save for those disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ and Chief Execufive's Interests and  Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” in this Directors’ report in this
annual report, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granfed to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of ifs subsidiaries a party fo any arrangement fo enable

the Directors fo acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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FRFSBHRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEEHRE @

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors:

M. Liv Kaijin

Mr. Wu Bin (appointed on 5 January 2017)
Mr. Wu Xuze [appointed on 5 January 2017)
Ms. Zhou Shuhua

Non-executive Director:

Mr. liv longhua

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Huan Xuedong
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
M:r. Liang Zequan

In accordance with article 105(A) of the Arficles, Mr. Liu Longhua, Mr.
Huan Xuedong and Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan will refire by rofation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

In accordance with article 109 of the Articles, Mr. Wu Bin and Mr. VWu
Xuze were retired and re-elected at the 2016 AGM.

Independence Confirmations from
Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of his/her independence pursuant o Rule 3.13
of the listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent non-

executive Directors fo be independent.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HA)

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has enfered into a Director's service
confract and each of the non-executive Directors signed a letter of
appointment with the Company commencing from their respective date of
appointment. All of them are sub]eci to retirement by rofation and re-

election in accordance with the Articles.

Mr. Liv Kaijin and Ms. Zhou Shuhua, both being executive Directors,
have entered info service agreements with the Company for a ferm of

three years commencing from 1 June 2017.

Both Mr. Wu Bin and Mr. Wu Xuze, all being executive Directors, have
entered into service agreements with the Company for a ferm of one year

commencing from 5 January 2018.

Mr. Liu Longhua, non-executive Director, has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 25
April 2015. He has also enfered info a renewal appointment letter with
the Company for a term of one year with immediate effect after the expiry

of the term of the original appointment letter.

Each of Mr. Huan Xuedong, Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and Mr.
liang Zequan, all being independent non-executive Directors, has entered
info an appointment letter with the Company for a ferm of three years
commencing from 25 April 2015, 30 November 2015 and 23
September 20106 respectively. Mr. Huan Xuedong has also entered into
a new appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year with
immediate effect affer the expiry of the term of the original appointment

letter.

No Direcfor proposed for reelection at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the

Group.

EENRBEEL

BRTEFCEHARABTLEFTRBAL  URFIE
HWITESCRARARIZAEE BERETBERER
HEE - RBAR MEZSALTEARERET LB
BB

HTEFHERERARELXLCBARARR
BwE BT tF A -BRARE=F-

WITEEOWMALERRBELECBARR R RG
H#E BT - N\F-ARRARFARH—F-

FRTEFARPRLDRALNARTEEE B
F-EEMA-+EARIAMZE  BHERAR
AERAEEE BRAM—F REAZEEER
CELES S

BURITEETESREE BRULEERBERE
EEHRARNARITZEE DHBE-ZZE—RAFMA=
+RA - ZT—HF+—A=F+BHERZZ—AFANA
T AR AR =F  BERELENDEARNRFG]
UHEAE BHEAHR—F RREZAEZEEMEN
r A3 o

BEZFNEERRBEFRAG LEREINEFTER
ARIFI AR —FRBAFLREECIERERIN
MAARBEIENREAL -

ESHHM

E=ZReAHBRRERRASG Lit/E - HttB2 A /A
EXgK2ZTEERE BEAERRAURAEERXRE
mEE °

—Z=—tE £ Annual Report 2017



FRFSBHRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HA)

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2017, save for those disclosed in
the financial statements, no Director or any entity connected with the
Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
fransaction, arrangement or contract of significance fo the business of the
Group fo which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Management Contracts

Save for the Confractual Arrangements between subsidiaries of the
Group, no confracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or existed during the year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

According tfo relevant PRC laws, foreign investors are prohibited from
owning more than a 50% equily inferest in any enferprise which owns
vessels for conducting dredging business. Otherwise the Maritime Safety
Administration of the PRC will not register the ownership of a vessel o an
enterprise. Our Group has decided that Xiangyu PRC owns 50% of
interest in the relevant vessels, being the maximum percentage that a
foreign investor may own under PRC laws fo register the ownership of the
relevant vessels for certain commercial reasons. In addition, our Group
infends fo participate in some dredging projects which forbid any
involvement of foreign-invested companies under PRC laws. Even in
certain dredging projects which foreign-invested companies are
technically allowed to engage under PRC laws, the foreign-invested
companies find it difficult, in common practice, to secure dredging
business opportunities. Based on the above reasons, the PRC Operational
Entity has not become equity-owned by our Company, but will be
confrolled by our Company through the Contractual Arrangements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HA)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions (other
than continuing connected fransactions that are exempted under Rule
14A of the Listing Rules| during the year ended 31 December 2017

On 19 April 2011

Arrangements pursuant fo which all economic benefits and risks arising

, the following entities enfered into the Contractual
from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are transferred to Xiangyu PRC:

[l Xiangyu PRC, a wholly foreign-owned enterprise and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company,

[i)  Jiangsu Xingyu, a limited liability company established in the PRC
and deemed fo be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
under the Contractual Arrangements, and mainly engages in CRD
and EPD segmenfs and is the largest subsidiary of the Group in
ferms of operating assefs owned and construction scale, and

[iii)  equity inferests holders of Jiangsu Xingyu, namely Mr. Liu and Ms.
Zhou (both of them are executive Directors and confro”ing

shareholders of the Company).

Jiangsu Jioolong, a limited liability company established in the PRC,
mainly engages in the provision of marine hoisting, installation and other
engineering services. It is the provider of the Group's other marine
business. Jiangsu Xingyu owns a 51% equity inferest in it and is its

confrolling shareholder.

Further details of the Contractual Arrangements are described in note 37

fo the financial statements of this annual report.

The Stock Exchange has granted a waiver pursuant fo Rule 14A.105 of
the Listing Rules to the Company for all fransactions under the Confractual
Arrangements from strict compliance with the applicable announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The amount of revenve and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements accounted for 99% and 62.9%
revenue and assets respectively for the year ended 31 December 2017

[2016: 80.8% and 60.6%).

of the Group's fofal
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continved) EERER S @

The followings are the major risks relating to the Contractual T ABBAYNLTHENTERR :
Arrangements:

e The Group conducts ifs business operation in the PRC through the . AEEBNGATHE TN B RPELEETRZNAF

FRFSBHRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

PRC Operational Enfity by way of the Confractual Arrangements, BliceHER BREPEERE 20T HYH
but certain of the terms of the Contractual Arrangements may not T E R ERIT - B HBI%E B
be enforceable under PRC laws. Therefore, in the event of breach ﬁ TR APEECEEEERBRANTEDN
of any agreements constituting the Confractual Arrangements by Ttz AEBELRINTEHTH
Mr. Liu, Ms. Zhou and/or the PRC Operational Entity, and if the AEEREEIHPREEETRITFE T
Group is unable to enforce the Contractual Arrangements, the BREBEFAREEBNENTEHEEXIAEY
Group may not be able to exert effective confrol over the PRC £

Operational Entity, and the Group's ability to conduct its business
may be negatively affected.

° If the PRC government finds that the Contractual Arrangements or . AR EBAYTHNMSIEREREE —F—

the ownership structures or business operations of the Company or +tF+ZA=T—BIEFEAKZNOO% - aF
the PRC Operational Enfity do not comply with any of the PRC HHNREEHNLHERNARNRNF] P RHLEETR
laws and regulations, the Group's business, financial condition or MIEBERERESLEETTARBETMEG
results of operations could be materially and adversely affected, as NIEF > REBRER FBRASEEEEA
revenue in relation fo the Contractual Arrangements accounted for e SR EATHSELE-
99% of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2017

° The Contractual Arrangements related to critical aspects of the . BEEAEBRBEPHEKEEELERENLLED
Group's operations with the PRC Operational Enfity and ifs EEHBENAOLENREER LT REE
shareholders which may not be as effective as direct ownership in BEEW MAEBRERNTEHNLH  KE .
providing operational control. In the event that the Group is unable A EEERITESH AR LT MAEHE
fo enforce these Confractual Arrangements, the Group may be THEBNRNDITAJESEERTFZE-

unable to exert effective confrol over the PRC Operational Entity,
and the Group's ability to conduct its business may be materially

and adversely affected.

e Shareholders of the PRC Operational Entity, Mr. liu and Ms. Zhou, . FRECEEEBRREILERAZETHEARAEE

may potentially have a conflict of inferest with the Group, and they EBENGZEHR RFENERBANEBI T
may breach their contracts with the Group. Such disputes and MEH - BEMDRFAEGEREPE AL
proceedings may significantly disrupt the Group's business 2= %i\% B HEEH PR E BTN

operations, adversely affect its ability to control the PRC ERTFEER SUNEM TN EAREER

Operational Enfity and/or otherwise result in negative publicity. 18 o



Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HA)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The Group has adopted the following measures fo ensure the sound and
effective operation of the Group following the implementation of the
Contractual Arrangements:

e as part of the infernal control measures, major issues arising from
implementation of the Contractual Arrangements had been and will

be reviewed by the Board on a regular basis;

o matters relating fo compliance and regulatory enquiries from
govemmental authorifies had been and will be discussed at such

regular meetings or extraordinary meetings of the Board;

e the relevant business units and operation divisions of the Group
reported regularly fo the senior management of the Company on
the compliance and performance conditions under the Contractual
Arrangements and other related matters;

o legal advisors and/or other professionals had been and will
continue fo be refained fo assist the Group to deal with specific

issues arising from the Contractual Arrangements; and

e the independent nonexecutive Directors had and will continue to
conduct annual reviews on the Confractual Arrangements to ensure
that it is fair and reasonable and in the best inferests of the Group

and its Shareholders as a whole.

The Directors confirm that during the Review Period, the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Llisting Rules [save for the exemptions granted under the

above-mentioned waiver).
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FRFSBHRIZERAR AT China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HA)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the above-

mentioned contfinuing connected fransactions were entered info:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group's business;

[i)  in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
goveming such fransactions on terms that were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a
whole; and

[iii)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than those available to or from independent third

parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted an

annual review on the Contractual Arrangements and have confirmed that:

[i)  the fransactions carried out during the year ended 31 December
2017 have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Contractual Arrangements and have been
operated so that all revenue generated by Jiangsu Xingyu has been
refained by Xiangyu PRC;

[i)  no dividends or other distributions have been made by Jiangsu
Xingyu fo its equity interest holders; and

[ii)  any new confracts or renewed confracts have been entered info on
the same ferms as the existing Confractual Arrangements and are
fair and reasonable so far as the Group is concemed and in the

interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company fo perform procedures on the above
confinuing connecfed fransactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The auditor of the Company has confirmed that nothing has come to the

auditor's attention that causes them to believe that :

a.  the disclosed confinuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board;

b.  the said transactions were not entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

c.  dividends or other distributions have been made by Jiangsu Xingyu
fo the holders of its equity interests.

Related Party Transactions

Defails of the related party transactions are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
fransactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules, except for those described in the paragraph
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above, in respect of which
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules have been complied with.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
fo the success of the Group's operations. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant options fo (i) any
Direcfor and employees of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
entity in which the Group holds an equity interest; or (i) any suppliers,
customers, consultants who provided services to the Group, shareholders
of the subsidiaries of the Group and joint venture pariners to subscribe for

the shares.

The offer of a grant of options must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of offer. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company at any point in time. The fotal
number of shares in respect of which options may be granfed under the
Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
in issue af the time dealings in the shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange. This limit was last refreshed by the Shareholders in the
extraordinary general meefing of the Company held on 23 October
2014 so that the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all opfions fo be granfed under the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 85,560,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of passing the relevant resolution on 23 October 2014.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HA)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted fo any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

Options may be exercised during such period (including the minimum
period, if any, for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised) as may be defermined by the Directors and commences affer
a certain vesting period and ends in any event nof later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the relevant share opfion, subject fo the
provisions for early termination thereof. Options may be granted upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration for each grant. The exercise price is
equal to the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the
offer of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and fiii)
nominal value of the shares. The Direcfors consider the Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will enable the Group
fo reward the employees, the Direcfors and other selected participants for
their contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption and will expire
on 23 May 2021.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year
31 December 2017. As at 31
outstanding share option. The fotal number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 85,560,000, representing
approximately 5.79% of the issued Shares as af the date of this annual

December 2017, there was no

report.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors and the Company's chief
executive, and their respective associates had the following interests in
the Shares in and underlying shares of the Company and ifs associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions /7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have been taken under such
provisions of the SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code, or were required

fo be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant fo section

352 of the SFO:

Interests in the Company

A

E\/
E

X

B
XA
3=

5
%

ABRBH RIAH
B

ZFx

=5
g

RZZ—tF+-A=1+—R EZERAREAIXENT
BABRBEEEENBHEARARR REEEEE
(EEREHREE GOEXVE) & B 0 K 48 BE i 7
ToREAREBEESRAEHRGFEXNVIEE7 8D (R
ERSEREFEZMBERINZFHEEEFELRR
BRENBEZENAR)IREBEFRETRHAEMEARF R
B P BRIEE LI B RO E 352K AR BN A
RAFFENECMAOEDT D

RARXFKER

Long position

Hr
Approximate
percentage of
Number of total number of
Name of Director Capacity Notes ordinary Shares Shares
ER BB
EEHNER g7 o &t EERHAE BMAOBED
Mr. Liu Kaijin Inferest in controlled corporation ] 351,600,000 23.79%
UG K E P15 B ) R 2
Beneficial owner 36,703,000 2.48%
BEmEA A
Ms. Zhou Shuhua Inferest in spouse 2 388,303,000 26.27%
BRE R+ i (B 1 &5
Mr. Wu Bin Beneficial owner 7,218,000 0.49%
03 7% & BEmEA A
Mr. Wu Xuze Interest in spouse 28,242,000 1.91%
RBZERE il (B 1 &=
Notes: Wiz
1. Mr. liv is the sole beneficial owner of Wangji Llimited (“Wangiji’], a 1. A EAEEAERAT(HE| —BREBELEE

company incorporated in the Brifish Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which is the direct owner of 351,600,000 Shares. Further, Mr. Liu is the
beneficial owner of 36,703,000 Shares.

2. Ms. Zhou is the spouse of Mr. Liu who is also a Director. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Zhou is deemed to be interested in all interests of Mr. Liu in the
Compony Inc\uding |omg position and short position.

AMAKTIWERARDWE-—BEmEEA MEER
351,600,000 e P O BB A - boh BIKEAER
36,703,000 MmN EEHEA A -

2. BARTRIEENES WIAR - REE - RIEES
FEEGHD AR ERRNEEERENMBEAR
A (BREFA AR PHE RS -
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEEHRE @

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares (Continued)

Interests in associated corporations

Name of associated

BEERTETHRAERRO RIEE
BRONEZERAE @

A B 0% B Y R AR

Long position

wE

Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Name of Director corporation Capacity Nofes Share capital shareholding
HREARE
EEnR BB EE AR &1 &t IR 7 MOBEDL
Mr. Liu Kaijin Wangji Beneficial owner ] 200 ordinary shares 100%

2IFE L E iEE ERfEA A 200 B & 58 fx
Jiangsu Xingyu Beneficial owner ] Register capital of 100%

RMB39,315,800

L #f B EmfEA A & AR

AR #39,315,8007T
Ms. Zhou Shuhua Wangii Inferest in spouse 2 200 ordinary shares 100%

B &+ AE & i B s 200 B & 38 A
Jiangsu Xingyu Interest in spouse 2 Register capital of 100%

RMB39,315,800

L #h B i B s &R

AR #39,315,8007T

Notes: Bat -

1. M. Liuis the sole beneficial owner of the entire registered capital of Jiangsu
Xingyu. Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are registered holders of 98.47% and 1.53%
in the registered capital in Jiangsu Xingyu respectively. The 1.53% interest
in the registered capital of Jiangsu Xingyu were held on trust by Ms. Zhou
for Mr. Liu pursuant to a shareholding confirmation dated 12 July 2010.

2. Ms. Zhou is the spouse of Mr. Liuv who is also a Director. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Zhou is deemed to be interested in all interests of Mr. Liu in the
associated corporations including long positions and short position.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company or any of their associates had any inferests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation as at 31 December 2017 (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO lincluding interests and short positions which the Directors or chief
executive of the Company were deemed or faken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

1. BEETATIHRFHNRAEMERANE —BESHEE
Ao Bl ERE LT DRI RT b B F98.47% K 1.53%
AMEANELHEA-RE-_FT-TFLtA+ A
RV —EREER ARG AR LS
BTHEFTEMEARN 53% %

2. FAZREIRBAELENMER WAL REF-REEH
EHEGRY - AXERE/RIKEREHME BB
FEEE D (BEFR AR R AR -

BEXPRBEBEEN R_B—F+RA=+—8H"
ARABEERETBITHRABHNBEAOEAHEARE
RARBHEMBBRZEZE(EERESFMME K E
XVER) R Bt - MR S E ST - EAREE S LA
EGEPIEXVEE7 KR8 AAME AR R KA
FARGZIAR(BRARANEEFHTIETHAER
BEFMPERINZEZRREFXRASEENR
BEKB)RBREEF LB GG B I52G AL HR
ARABMFENELMOEMERIORE  HREE
EFAUAMGRRAR LB ERMERILD -



Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 31 December 2017, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the
Directors, other than those set out in the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” in this annual report, persons had inferests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required 1o be kept under
secfion 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

RIBE—+tF+ZA=+—HB REFRARBE
BAFRIEERIBETBRABRRMD RABBRD D
Bum KRB —EFREN REELSZRAERIE
336{RAF B M E M ATAC MR AR R B fn AR
MNP HREEREBEESRAEGAEXVEHE2RID
MAMARARENREIARZALIT

R&FR

Substantial Shareholders FTERR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity Nofes Shares holding
£ 565 Bt R EE BARERED L
Wangii Beneficial owner 351,600,000 23.79%
& BEHEBEAA
REBERBEGERAR Beneficial Owner 171,120,000 11.58%
EmEA A
Luck Morgan Investment Limited Nominee I 246,000,000 16.64%
"EA
Jiangsu Baisite Environment Beneficial Owner 246,000,000 16.64%
Engineering Co., ltd*
IEHBEFRETIEGR AR E=EA A
Note: Bt

1 luck Morgan Investment Limited acts as nominee for Jiangsu Baisite
Environment Engineering Co. Lid to hold 246,000,000 Shares.

Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee

Details of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are set out in section headed “Corporate Governance Report”

of this annual report.

1 Luck Morgan Investment Limited LA T # B T /3R 3% Ti2 A
R~ A E B 4 A & 10 55 A 246,000,000 B 13

EREEE FTHEEERREEE
BEg

ERZER VHZESRRERZBENHBHERAE
FHRICEE RS —H -
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HA)

Sufficiency of Public Float
As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules based on the information

that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the Directors of the Company.

Event after end of Reporting Period

For defails, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report.

Auditor

CWC CPA Llimited was appointed as auditor of the Company in ploce
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu with effect from 26 November 2015.

CWC CPA Limited will refire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be submitied at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liv Kaijin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018

RARBRERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

CWC

Certified Public
Accountants (Practising)

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA DREDGING ENVIRONMENT

PROTECTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the Group”) set out on pages
92 to

position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of

192, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial

profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated sfatement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of ifs consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Audifor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017 .
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern

We draw attention to Note 2 in the consolidated financial statements,
which describes the circumstances surrounding the failure by the Group
fo seffle the convertible bonds when the bonds fell due for repayment on
their maturity dafe. As stated in Notfe 2, these events or conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability fo
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern secfion, we have
defermined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

RBRACEHBZERTRES

EERE HTEISRAMBHRRMEL B 5H
MR BEREARERESDHASE D HEEE TR
BEHZER - M2 - ZEEHHMR - ER
ME2mESEMER  BRFEEATEEEXEY

EEBECHBRERENERERREM -BEZER
W % FREHER

FAEEFTEE

MRBSFFTAR/BEBAITOERHE  AR/HAHME
REMBRERNBARR/EZENEE - ZFFEARAE
TEAEBGAVBRRALBASRBEE  MATT
" EHZEEERHBUNER -BREFSEKLLIARE
LERTHEE-—ESMAEEN BEFCEE FXA
BEEREEBRERTIMIEAREZER -



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Key audit matter

HARESNER

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017 .

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNANEERERTEE

Valuation of trade receivables

JEW KL B

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit
matter. The Group's trade receivables mainly arise from dredging,
water management and marine related businesses. As at 31
December 2017, the accounts receivable which were past due but
not impaired amounted to HK$1,003,589,000 which represented
approximately 28.0% of total assets. If insufficient provision were
made on frade receivables of which their recoverable amounts
were lower than their carrying value af the end of the Reporting
Period, the Group's reported profit would be materially affected.
The esfimation of recoverable amounts of these frade receivables
involved exercise of significant judgement by management and
high degree of estimation uncertainty.
BMSEUFRBELCERAERETER EEENE
WRIBFERBHGA KBEEBERBEBEERK K=
—tF T A=+—H EABERHEZEKRER
1,003,589,000% 7T » #1& #8 & 2= #928.0% ° fis 3£ 70 W & HA
ARAWESEEXRABRAENE S EBREATRZESD
2 BEEENEHRENAERIRATE L5 EWKIA
B BT U B & 2R G 55 K B IR B 1T R & K AT A BOR B X B
fly 5 B E M o

Accordingly, we identified valuation of trade receivables as a key

audit matter.

At - B EEFARGEERSEREFFE -

Our procedures in relation fo valuation of trade receivables
included:
BB BRERFIAGENRF B

obfained and reviewed the Group's frade receivable
ageing analysis;
BigRkigs BEEEBRFIARER DT

e enquired with the management for any impairment
indication (e.g. any changes in collectability or
creditworthiness of debtors) noted on specific debs;
RERNEREBNEMBRETR(WEBA K
B ERMNEMNES MEREHFELSEN

e challenged management's views about the collectability or
creditworthiness of each material debtors and  sought
corroborating  evidence fo support the explanations
whenever possible;
BEREEEMNSEAEBAZATREEREEZ
BERLEF BN TSR BRIAEERE

e obtained the repayment commitments from cusfomer; and
REPMEBEN A &

o reviewed the subsequent sefflement of the Group's trade
receivables.

mE BERERUKRENHERSEERBR -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statfements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required fo report that fact. We have
nothing fo report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a frue and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
fo fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
infend fo liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. VWe do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecfing a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant fo the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's infernal control.

RYMH BT REMBRREARE

HEE

ATWERNESEAMBERRBEERESTFEARK
FFRBERMEFNEARBRBAMSEERE LW
BEREATERNZEERE  LIRRBENTEK
FER HETNUERSER) RE  RILZINAHRERE
HM B AR ARARENARHTAMEMAL
BRYAEREE - AERIFR/FBKFHRE BT
RERBEBEAERETHRTBEBERERER
PRt o $5 R BRI AT LA R BRAF Sk E AR Bl 2 - AR A A
HEBEAEAERATETESS W BERREAEK
AR A M MRMIEL M EERE - RIERBAOHERR
A RARAEE K

ERRBEBEERFIEYNETEFET R A17ER
BERAE REFFRRER - AT

e RAEFEHERRFRERMEDGE BB R
REEERBERFGAWER - Rt RATEE
BFARHZERR URERTEREEH
ERTBRE  EARTERMER - AN EFA 5
PREFR BE BERER ERRL HER
RAEES 2 £ B REHRERFMER
HBREAHERRAWOER SN REHERREHR
&R ERHERERE YRR -

e HEBEARMEAMOANES ARFAEFHER
MTBEENEAEF BENYIYE ES
B AMBEGRNBEREERRER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounfing estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncerfainty exisfs relafed to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exisfs, we are required to draw affention in our audifor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up fo the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease fo continue as

a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial stafements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Croup to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. VWe remain solely responsible for
our audif opinion.

HAEEEMRASHRERNEELEAREL S
AHfEt AR REN SR -
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in infernal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
defermine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. VWWe describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we defermine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected fo outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

CWC CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Wong On Yee
Practising Certificate Number: P05485

Hong Kong
28 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
e RkEMEZERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZ =T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

FEFEBRRZERAR 2 7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

2017 2016
—B—+tF AN
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt et AR¥T T ARBTTT
EEE——
Revenue A 6 650,924 667,154
Operating cost EE KR (443,554) (434,042)
Gross profit EF 207,370 233,112
Other income Hfih g A 7 18,059 24,854
Other gains and losses, net H itz & B 1R F 5 8 20,202 (5,999
Markefing and promotion expenses MBHEREREERS (8,291) (11,073)
Adminisfrative expenses TR X (55,446) (48,722)
Finance costs & B A Q (70,660) (69,952)
Profit before tax % 5t B A 111,234 122,220
Income fax expense FriS T X 10 (39,030) (46,970
Profit and total comprehensive income F s A K 2 W s B
for the year 11 72,204 75,250
Profit and fotal comprehensive income T A FEAEF A A K
for the year attributable to: EHKEAR
Owners of the Company ZN/NETE F =N 71,040 68,794
Non-controlling inferests FEFERR A 1,164 6,456
72,204 75,250
Eamings per share BREF 13
— basic (RMB) —EXR(ARKIT) 0.048 0.055
— diluted (RMB) —#HB(ARET) 0.048 0.055




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PBIRR R

At 31 December 2017 AT —+F+_-_HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i & AR®T T AR T T
e
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz BEREE 15 1,575,766 1,639,358
Prepaid land lease payments T8 {5 £ 30 78 A9 5K 16 95,190 105,210
Investment properties = E 17 413,194 413,194
Goodwill EES] 201 201
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, ENKENE  BE R
plant and equipment RIENIES 18 12,366 85,642
Deferred tax assets RLEF IR E = 19 103,323 103,323
Other intangible assets H T & B 4417 4,750
Accounts and other receivables due affer one year — —4F 1& | Hi &9 & UL BR T8 &
H ) 1R U5 5K 20 70,595 89,887
2,275,052 2,441,565
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid land lease payments TR £ A8 A9 3R 16 2,908 3,075
Accounts and other receivables and prepayments & U BR 2k K2 E i fiE 4R 5k
PYSSEERE S 20 1,240,324 1,336,508
Pledged bank deposits EHEMBITER 21 - 15,000
Bank balances and cash RITERERS 21 69,505 34,500
1,312,737 1,389,083
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts and other payables J& 151 BR R B2 EL fth & 13K 22 368,783 485,146
Amounts due fo directors of the Company ERARREERA 23 9,602 28,480
Amounts due to non-controlling inferests FE T — FE Y /8 A& B 3R AR
of a subsidiary T &5 B SRR 24 1,838 2,476
Tax payable FE S R 18 88,480 130,548
Bank borrowings RITIEE 25 371,192 485,215
Other borrowings HiEE 26 64,527 67,538
Bonds payable Rt ESH 27 230,378 246,381
1,134,800 1,445,784
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE(BE) FE 177,937 (56,701)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERARBERE 2,452,989 2,384,864
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P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

fRE B AR R & ()

At 31 December 2017 AT —+F+_-_HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt e AR®ET ARET T
EE———
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARREE
Share capital R% 7R 28 123,483 123,483
Reserves & 2,056,923 1,985,883
Equity atfributable to owners of the Company RRAIFE AR ER 2,180,406 2,109,366
Non-controlling interests JE 2= I A 2 156,844 160,136
TOTAL EQUITY A 2,337,250 2,269,502
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Amounts due to non-controlling inferests JEASF — P B /BB & ) FE 4% A%
of a subsidiary FE 25 M 2h0E 24 68,252 67,611
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFHBEBAE 19 12,651 14,367
Other borrowings HEEE 26 34,836 33,384
115,739 115,362
2,452,989 2,384,864

The consolidated financial stafements on pages 92 to 192 were BNEREINAEZEEUBHRRENR-_ZE—/N\F=
A-t\BES=gi g RZERNE YHTIAL

REFEE

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2018 and are signed.

LIU KAUIN ZHOU SHUHUA
2IB93E BB E
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF BF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEmBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZ =T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARMEAEMR
PRC Non-
Share Share statutory Other Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total
HEEE FER

RE  ROEE
RMB'000  RMB'000

E HitEE BeE3 nE B st

RMB'000

RMB'000  RMB'OOO  RMB'O0OO  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTE ARBTL ARBTT ARBTT ARBTE ARBTT ARETRE

(nofe i) [nofe i)
(Wzti)  (Wati)
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-—RE
—A—H 102,045 869,127 19,658 204,554 769,897 1965281 158,136 2,123,417
Placing of shares (Note 28) B3 B2 & (K72 28) 21,438 53,853 — — — 75,291 — 75,291
Profit and total comprehensive £ 73 1| &2
income for the year 2HEEESE - - - - 68,794 68,794 6,456 75,250
Dividend paid to non- AT T IR
confrolling inferest oSy = - - - - - (4,456) 4,456)
At 31 December 2016.and  MZF—R&E
1 January 2017 +=ZRA=+—H
R=T—tF
—A—A 123,483 022,980 19,658 204,554 838,691 2,109,366 160,136 2,269,502
Profit and tofal comprehensive £ 13 1| K%
income for the year FENZRE = - - - 71,040 71,040 1,164 72,204
Dividend paid fo non- XA FIEER
confrolling inferest ERmRE = - - - - - 4,456) 4,456)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=ZA=1+—-H 123,483 022,980 19,658 204,554 909,731 2,180,406 156,844 2,337,250
Notes: it -

(i

(i)

According fo the rules and regulations in the People’s Republic of China ("PRC”),
a portion of the profit after taxation of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is
required to be fransferred to a PRC sfatutory reserve before distribution of a
dividend to their equity owners. The transfer can cease when the balance
of the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective
subsidiaries. The reserve can be applied either to set off accumulated losses
or fo increase capital.

The other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange
for the nominal amount of the share capital and share premium of its
subsidiaries and the paidin capital of RMB39,316,000 of the PRC
Operational Entity [as defined in Note 37) pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 201 1.

(i)

(i)

BREFREARXME(TREDORRAEER  ARQF
MHEBARARSORREENEREZTAE A
DIKBREZAMBREFEAEFF SERBERES
8 B8 Y /B8 & A RE AT & 7S B0 50% By AT 4% 1F B 8 o 2
ARAREHERFBRKIEMER -

AEENEMRHEEEADBBEIRBRAEEN T
ZEAHERR —_F-——SGEEEMELE ZHNE
AABROEE(ERETELEER(ERRMEI) K
BEHERARKE39,316,0007T) WA 2 =5 °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZ =T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

2017 2016
—E—+tF —Z—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
iz AR¥T T ARBTTT
e
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before tax & B3¢ B 4 A 111,234 122,220
Adjustments for: RN FI R IRHRE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BELRETE 101,398 99,982
Fair value changes of derivative financial A AR & 5 89 0T &
liabilities embedded in convertible bonds TRIBEBZATE
2 E - (7,030
Allowance for doubtful debts R B - 11,877
Amortisation of infangible assefs A E#H 333 250
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments a1 = 3 78 49 5% 8 2,792 2,806
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HNE LR K - (24,250
Gain on disposal of property, HEWHE  BEREH
plant and equipment W & (1,520) -
Sums waived by holders of the bonds BEHEAZRRTE - (13,781)
Finance costs & B AR 70,660 69,952
Interest income B U A (8,186) (15,329
Unrealized exchange (gain) loss ABRER (W) EBE (18,682) 39,183
Operating cash flows before movements HEEREDPHEER S
in working capital It 258,029 285,880
Increase (decrease) in accounts and other JiE U BR X N E b e U 3R
receivables EmCE D) 29,576 (138,840
Decrease in accounts and other payables JE 1 BR SR B EL i FE 1) 3K
NS (17,274) (7,673)
Cash generated from operations EEMBHNRE 270,331 139,367
PRC income tax paid BB TSR (82,813) (33,897)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K= EEIFffBHEESFEHE 187,518 105,470




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
MERERER (A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZ =T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E-tF T —RF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
et AR¥TT ARBFT
e
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEEXE (100,713) (12,997)
Deposit refunded (paid) for acquisition of property,  BLUREEW % - B &= & &2 &
plant and equipment RE (XA e e 18 73,276 (6,263)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEYE BER
equipment R P15 R 64,427 -
Settlement of other payables in relation fo purchase  Z{HBEFEREE
of property, plant and equipment in prior year M- WBERZEZ
H At & A 3K - (12,779
Setilement of other payables in relation to additions  E2 % & ¥ % #8 B8 &9
of invesiment properties Hip R & E - (51,187)
Consideration received in relation fo EWAEBA S
availableforsale investment HERE - 70,774
Repayment from shareholders’ loan of BEEAHEERED
availableforsale investment MERE R - 14,804
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R E I RTF X 15,000 47,5772
Purchase of availableforsale investment BEAHLERE - (6,000)
Proceed from disposal of availableforsale investment HH & A 4 H & 1% &
PIT 1S 7R IR - 26,921
Proceeds from disposal of leasehold land & E T HFT 1S IR 7,395 =
Disposal of a subsidiary H & — R B A A - (8)
Interest received 2 YA 8 266 547
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFHMESRESEH 59,651 71,382
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R4 RAPR A F China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited .

AR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

RERERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # &

—tF+tZA=t—BLHFE

2017 2016
—E-tHF —E-REF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
et AR¥T T AR T T
e
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
New bank borrowings raised HIBEITERE 485,215 605,680
Advance from a director of the Company KERRA—BEEH
B g 3,310 9,382
New other borrowings raised S 180 = (i (25 11,877 67,043
Advance from non-controlling interests RE—RHHBRA E’]
of a subsidiary FETE AR M 25 B ST R 640 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BRBITEE (599,238) (877,544
Repayment to directors of the Company BEARNARESEHKIE (22,188) —
Inferest paid =AY (28,796) (45,5795)
Repayment of bonds BRES 27 (42,483) (34,453
Repayment of other borrowings EBEAMEES (13,436) (2,533)
Repayment fo non-controlling interests of a subsidiary 1@ — & i & 2 & &9
FE1E PR 71 (E R R IA (2,609) (17,921)
Dividend payment fo non-controlling inferests of ) — A S 8 2 &l A
a subsidiary IR MRE (4,456) -
NET CASH USED IN REEE FT A
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ReFE (212,164) (295,921)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ReRBESEEWEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Om4) #E 35,005 (119,069)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FINBREREAESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 34,500 153,569
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNBEERESEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BRTHEGBRES
BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH 69,505 34,500




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 20177 #ZE T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

1.

General

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and
its shares ("Shares”] are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock Exchange). The
Company's immediafe and ultimate holding company is Wangji
limited, a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, which is ultimately and wholly owned by Mr. Liu Kaijin (“Mr.
Liu"), who is the Executive Director and Chairman of the Company.
The Company’s registered office is located at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and its place of business in Hong Kong is located
at Office 19, 36th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, Nos. 168-200 Connaught Road Cenfral, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
particulars of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB"), which is also the funcfional currency of the Company.

Going Concern Basis of Consolidated
Financial Statements

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had not
setfled the Bonds as defined in Note 27, when the Bonds fell due
for repayment on 14 March 2017, an extended maturity date
from the original maturity date. The Bonds remained overdue for
repayment as af the end of the Reporting Period. On 21 March
2017, 5 June 2017 and 21 September 2017, the Company and
CITIC Capital China Access Fund Limited (the “Bondholder” or
"CITIC") entered into Second Amendment Agreement, Third
Amendment Agreement and Fourth Amendment Agreement (as
defined in Note 27) pursuant to which the Company needs to
repay the principal amount of the Bonds of approximately
HK$304,867,000 |[equivalent to approximately
RMB254,842,000 based on the spot rate on 31 December
2017) together with the interest amount due by 31 December
2017.

1.

—gER

AARBBEREHERARETMRLAER R
BRAF HROHUIBRODREEBRAER S
BRAB (BRI ER EH - RRE 0 EE
REHEERARAEEERAR —HARER
BRREFSFEMKRZNERAR - HHARNR AR
TEERFFEIARELEE (R EEDERER
BYEB o AR T H FE M B = B AL R Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands » R B & B & = BTN &
BT #HEBET 1682005 EEH LHBERKRE3S
BI9=E o

ARARR—HREZERAR  EMEAAD
BENES M BEHRRMES7

Pm;

HAUBBEBRUARETARED (FAEXRATA
MINREEH) 25 -

REMBBERCEAKSEREE

RBE_E—ARNE+_A=+—RHIEEE &
SER-_ZT—tF=A+HA(KRIEBRAEE]
MEAR) WAREBENRWFE2/MAEMES - ¥
WEMAR EFENABHER RZ2ZT—tF
=AzZ+—RHB ZE2—+tFAARERAKRZ=ZZ—
+FENAZ+—H ARAFECTIC Capital China
Access Fund limited ([ &% £ B A= [CITIC]) 5] 32
FE_DIEFHE F=HETHEREND
H(FTBHERMF22ZARAE) BRELZEHS -
ARARBEANR T —tF+_A=+—HER
BEH A& 5 4304,867,0008 T (RIE—F—+
F+_A=+—"HNEHEXREERNDARE
254,842,0007T) # R 2| B A FI & ©
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P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Going Concern Basis of Consolidated 2. REMBERRZFERKERE

Financial Statements (Continue) ()

The conditions described above indicate the existence of a iR B REEEATBEBAREZ - 7 8
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the HAEBEELFERLEREZENIREEZY
Group's ability fo confinue as a going concem and hence, ifs ER—REBEREFERELEEREEEREY
ability to realise its assefs and discharge its liabilities in the normal RENELEARM AWM REETIRHAE
course of business. Nevertheless, the consolidated financial SEEAMERRTEARERITUZEERLLE 7 BRE
stafements were prepared based on the assumption that the Group MR REERAAEAEBERHEEESE
can be operated as a going concem as the Directors are of the fE-ZE—+t+E+-_A=+—HBHEFXAKT+=
view that the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance BR ZEERE

its operations in the next twelve months from 31 December 2017,

affer taking info consideration of the following:

(1) The Group contfinues to generate cash inflows from its (1) AEFEHERAERVBHZELLEHX
operafing acfivities by implementing measures fo fighten cost ARSI EEREEREER
confrols over various operating expenses in order fo improve Rene KMXEHBERESREMNR
its cash flows position and fo generate greater positive cash REEFEAHNKELESRA

inflows from its operations in the future;

(2)  Since most of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2) BERRZZE—+tF+_A=+—HZAERE
2017 of RMB371,192,000 were secured by the Group's # 371,192,000 T RITEE R H A BN
assets. The Directors believe that it is highly probable that SEEEFEER EFHE AKX+ =@
they can be renewed in the next twelve months; and AHEENIREERAN: &

(3) As at 31 December 2017, the Group has unufilised B AXEEBRZ-ZZE—+F+—A=+—8H
banking facilities of RMB486,000,000 million which will ZHABREETRHRERE A ARK
be available for use by the Group in the next twelve months. 486,000,000 7T (R K 2R + = & A i 7] ft {5

) .

On the basis of the above considerations, the Directors believe that BiELIRAEX SEHEAEBRATERERRK

the Group can safisfy its financial obligations in the foreseeable AENEMBEE  ALGEMBIRE DAL

future and accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have 138 4 A HL YIS B o

been prepared on a going concern basis.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 20177 #ZE T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

3. Application of New and Amendments to 3. Al K & A2 E] B

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"]

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
["HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax

Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRSs 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendmenfs require an enfity fo provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included

in cash flows from financing activities.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of the
Group's liabilities arising from financing activities is disclosed in
Note 36. Consistent with the fransition provisions set out in the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative information
for the prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in Note 36,
the application of these amendments has had no impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.

5
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—
—

AEERFNERZEREMBE
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s (U
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AEERAFEEREA TH BB BEHHA
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Bl {5 3T A -
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CCHEN)

BT A

FRGHERE 125
CHES)

4 5K 2 38 5 1A AR X
BEAE
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P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited .

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE—ZF—+tF+-_A=1+—HIEFE

3. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(”H RSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments'

HKFRS 16 leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

HK(IFRIC)-nt 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS @ Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Inferesfs in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property’

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvemenfs fo
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a dafe to be
determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and Inferpretations
mentioned below, the Directors of the Company anficipate that the
application of all other new and amendments fo HKFRSs and
Inferpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements in the foreseeable future.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 20177 #ZE T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

3. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(”H RSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS @ infroduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assefs, financial liabilities, general hedge

accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS @ which are relevant to the Group are:

e all recognised financial assefs that are within the scope of
HKFRS @ are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost af the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual ferms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest on
the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").
All other financial assets are measured at their fair value af
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9@,
enfities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
[that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

AFAIREEBIT 2B
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Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(”H RSs” (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS @
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 December 2017, the Directors of the Company
anticipate that on application of HKFRS 9, financial assefs and
financial liabilities will continue to be measured on the same bases

as are currently measured under HKAS 39.

However, the Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS @ will result
in earlier provision of credit losses relates to the Group's accounts
and other receivables.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities fo
use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Confracts
and the related interpretfations when it becomes effective.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(”H RSs” (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the fransfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration fo which the
entity expects fo be entiled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard infroduces a 5-step approach

fo revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 3: Defermine the fransaction price
o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of the goods
or services underlying the parficular performance obligation is
fransferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
fo the identification of performance obligations, principal versus

agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The Directors of the Company anficipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 may have impact on a number of areas. For example,
HKFRS 15 has infroduced a new requirement for “variable
consideration” such that variable consideration can only be
recognised as revenue when it is highly probable that significant
reversal of revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty
resolved. Given the Group's nature of business that may include
variable consideration during the services provided fo cusfomers,
the fiming of revenue recognition may be deferred fo a point when

the criteria set out in HKFRS 15 are met.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(”H RSs” (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

In oddition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in

more disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

More detailed analysis regarding the impact of the application of
HKFRS @ and HKFRS 15 will be performed by the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 leases and the

related interprefations when it becomes effective.

Under HKFS 16, distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for shorterm

leases and leases of low value assets.

The rightof-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured af cost (subject o cerfain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are nof
paid at that dafe. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease

modifications, amongst others.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB740,000 as disclosed in
Note 29. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a rightofuse assef and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they

qualify for low value or shorterm leases.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

Excepted as described above, the Directors anficipate the
application of the other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4,

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("CO).

The consolidated financial stafements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured af fair values at the end of each reporting period, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid fo fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants af the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
fechnique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes info account the characteristics of the asset or liability
it market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS

17.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised info level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in ifs enfirety, which are described as follows:

o level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for idenfical assefs or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

4, FESTHR @

P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved where the Company:
o has power over the invesfee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
®  has the ability to use its power fo affect ifs retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more

of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dafe when the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to have confrol over
the subsidiary.
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4,

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
affributed fo the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
inferests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is affributed
fo the owners of the Company and fo the non-controlling inferests
even if this results in the non-controlling inferests having a deficit

balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group's accounting policies.

All infra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating fo transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as esfablished at the date of acquisition of the business less any

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment festing, goodwill is allocated fo
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit fo which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated fo the unit and then fo the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill

is not reversed in subsequent periods.

4,

FESITEE @)

BEEEm@m

BRLEME2AKENESREENEBRAR
BMAARFERER MBARMNEZEKE
HREFBERARBINBE ANRIFERERS - B(E
HRSEY R ESELBAER -

BER B R R AR R M E
AL RENEFREEAASEN G EE
iﬁo

e o

FRAKEKEBZRAXZNAESEEAR R A
MEENEBRE #Z WA XHEASRER

kS

WEXFELANHERRBEBREBELNK
AR AL REHREEE (E) FIFK -

BREASRMES AEEIEEZREHATRAH
MipRME P ESNARE SRS EEELM (K
ReELEUAR) ERBAEANEEMNEN
i I AR & 275 2R P Y S AR K F -

EOoRBENRSELAEN ST ETRER
A ERNBEFRBRZEMAELRBEERK
RETHEAR HMREELAFELNTEKSE
BOREKREE AREEBEREEBEREE
MoREZEMNHENREE £&AUIRZ
BEUASBEEREENLIDEEZEMD
HthEE - TRNEEREBEREEN BT E
RoBHBEERNREBE ISR AR EE
[ o

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017 .



P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited .

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

fo them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses

the related costs for which the grants are intended fo compensate.

Covernment granfs that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances in the normal cause of

business, net of sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for

each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Service income is recognised when services are provided in the

normal course of business, net of sales related taxes.

Inferest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a fime basis, by reference fo the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rafe that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipfs through the expected life of the financial asset fo that

assef's nef carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.
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4,

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of service or administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cosfs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assefs, borrowing costs capifalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
cafegories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for infended use. Depreciation of these assefs, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assefs are

ready for their infended use.

Depreciafion is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than properties under construction) less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciafion method are reviewed af the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

esfimate accounted for or a prospective basis.

Assefs held under finance leases are depreciated over their

expected useful lives on the same basis as owned asses.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or refirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or
for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included as
part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use [i.e. when they are in the location and condifion
necessary for them fo be capable of operating in the manner

intended by management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to eam rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under consfruction for

such purposes).

Investment properties under construction are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure and borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. Construction costs incurred for
invesiment properties under construction are capitalised as part of

the carrying amount of the investment properties under construction.

Subsequent to completion of construction of investment properties,
invesiment properties are measured using their fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognifion of the property (calculated as the
difference between the nef disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in

which the property is derecognised.
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4,

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its fangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to defermine the

extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group esfimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit fo which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assefs are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pretax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific fo the asset (as a cash-
generafing unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated fo be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
ifs recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediote|\/ in profii or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased fo the revised estimate of ifs
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the assef
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Renfal income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the ferm of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straightline basis over the lease ferm, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the fime pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building
When the Group makes payments for a property which includes

both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire property is

accounted as an operating lease.

Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion fo the relafive fair values of the
leasehold inferests in the land element and building element af

initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid land lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a sfraightline basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and building elements, the entire property is generally classified as

finance lease under property, plant and equipment.
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4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
enfity, fransactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised af the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the fransactions. At the end of
the Reporting Period, monefary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monefary items that are measured in ferms of hisforical cost in a

foreign currency are not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the seflement of monetary items,
and on the refranslation of monetfary items, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the

assefs are substantially ready for their infended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined confribution schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entfifling them to
the contributions. For forfeited contributions that are not vest fully, if

any, may be used to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Payments made to statemanaged refirement benefit schemes are
dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where the
Group's obligations under the schemes are equivalent fo those

arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Shortterm employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All shortterm employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or

permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) affer deducting

any amount already paid.

liabilities recognised in respect of other longterm employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except fo the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their

inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never faxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
fax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.
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4,

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred Tax

Deferred fax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assefs are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assefs and liabilities are nof
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assefs and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assefs arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred fax assets is reviewed af the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset fo be recovered.

Deferred fax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is seftled,
or the asset is realised based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the Reporting
Period.
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4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred Tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
fax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the Reporting Period, fo recover or

seffle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are inifially measured af
fair value. Transaction cosfs that are directly attributable fo the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets represent as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the

financial assets and is defermined af the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt insfrument and of allocating inferest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rafe is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an infegral part of
the effective inferest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Inferest income is recognised on an effective

inferest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
loans and receivables (including accounts and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances) are measured af
amortised cost using the effective inferest method, less any
identified impairment losses [see accounting policy on impairment

of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assefs are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objectfive evidence that, as a result of
one or more evenfs that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.

4.

FTESTEHER @

€RTEum

tRMEE
AEENSREE SRR KRR AR -

DEETFeRMEENUEERBNME - LR
SHREE

BRFECR

ERNEEANFEERBHEER TA#HEMKA
Ry RABWAETTE - BERAN XTI 4 5
RAEREBTANBAFHKN(WER) REH
B LT ARR S W am (BRBKE R E AR
RO M A RBBOABEFEE RS
RPRARE MR E RIS R ERBREREF
BHOANX-FEETANMNBRARERMNEE

ER K B WRE
ERRERFERBERXABENKEAER
BTSYERENFTEEREE - ERRE
W sk I8 (B 48 8 U5 AR 50 B L e SR - B R
1717 X RERTTAE 8R) HUR E A 2 B AR E B B 1R
ERERMEZRBERAFHE(ZHATXERH
EREERMENGTHR) -

EHEERE

CTREENSBRSHURIGESHLRBRET
R-WERERBEBRTIN I EREMEERSE
EN—HAZHEEMHEHSREEN B RE
RenBXIFE NEeREERARCHE:-

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017



P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited .

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
®  breach of confract, such as default or delinquency in interest

or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

Impairment loss for loans and receivables are assessed on an
individual basis.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference befween the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the financial asset's original effective inferest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assefs with the exception of
accounts and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When an accounts and other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited fo profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss fo the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group affer deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity insfruments issued by the Company are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rafe is the
rafe that exactly discounts estimated future cash paymentfs (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective inferest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts| through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective

interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities (including accounts and other payables,
amounts due to directors, amounts due fo non-confrolling inferests
of a subsidiary, bank borrowings and other borrowings and bonds
payable) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective inferest method.
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4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and subsfantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. For consideration
received or receivable in the form of non-monetfary assets, the non-

monetary assets are inifially measured at fair value.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profif or loss.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other facfors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the esfimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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5.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving esfimations (see below), that the Directors have made in
the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and the results, assets and
liabilities of the PRC Operational Entity and its subsidiaries are
consolidated with other group entities.

Consolidation of a structured entity

PRC laws and regulations prohibit or restrict foreign invesfors from
owning more than 50% equity interest in any enterprise which
owns vessels for conducting dredging business in the PRC.

On 19 April 2011, Xiangyu PRC (as defined in Note 37), the
PRC Operational Entity (as defined in Note 37) and its respective
equity participants, being Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou Shuhua ("Ms.
Zhou"), the spouse of Mr. Liu, entered into the Contractual
Arrangements (as defined in Note 37). The PRC Operational Entity
and ifs subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of dredging
services of the Group. Details of the Contractual Arrangements are
set out in Note 37.

The Direcfors, affer consulting legal opinion, are of the view that
the terms of the Confractual Arrangements have in substance
enabled Xiangyu PRC fo have the ability and right to direct the
relevant acfivities to obtain variable refurns from its involvement
with the PRC Operational Enfity and ifs subsidiaries, and fo have
free ability to use its power to affect its returns, despite the absence
of formal legal equity interest held by the Group therein.
Accordingly, the PRC Operational Entity is treated as a subsidiary
of the Company, and the results, assets and liabilities of the PRC
Operational Entity and its subsidiaries are consolidated together
with other group entities as if they were wholly owned by the
Company.

5.

RS HER AT TABRE
Z2NEERF @

FE P& 5t BUR B 2 B8 52 )

BFRMEFT (AT 2HESN A TRESFH
REAKESTRRBETHIFEL  BELKSE
MBRRTFERANSEAZEATENRREH
B MPBEKEERIEMNBARZESE BE
RaEREMEEERAMKAK:

mREMHERSH

oK 2 R E SR AE SRR S B R A R E
BETETHRREBORMORELEREE
3B 50% 9 AR HE °

R-ZZE——FOATAB AFTHBE(ERELM
H37) FEKEERB(ERRLME) RER
2R (AR EERBEERBRARELZL (TH
REIDFTLANLH(ERRMEI7) - FEL
EERBREMBARCERAELAKREANR AR
%o BHEAANRHENFBINMEI

EERBAERABAERA BEAKERS
WRFPLEFELAREERE  EEHR
R KEEE LB TAFTTREABRE N LE
MESHBEHRAEREE2EPELEE
BREMBARMNE®R ARMNAEENZE
Bk Bt PELLERERAARZHER
Al PR ERRENBAR RS
EERAGHRAMEEERAM AR BURK
FHARARZEHRER -

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017



5.

P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited .

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Consolidation of a structured entity (Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, with reference to legal opinion, the
Contractual Arrangements are in compliance with the existing PRC
laws and regulations are valid, binding and legally enforceable,
and do not result in any violation of PRC laws or regulations
currently in effect in all material respects. However, uncertainties in
the PRC legal system could cause the Group's current Contractual
Arrangements Structure to be found in violation of any existing
and/or future PRC laws or regulations and could limit the
Company's ability, through Xiangyu PRC, fo enforce its rights and
power over the PRC Operational Entity under the Contractual

Arrangements.

The operation of the Group was substantially derived from the PRC
Operational Enfity and its subsidiaries. If the current structure or any
of the Contractual Arrangements were found fo be in violation of
PRC Lows and regulations, the Group may be subject to pendlies,
which in the future may include but not be limited to, the
cancellation or revocation of the Group's business and operating
licenses, being required tfo restructure the Group's operations or
discontinue the Group's operating acfivities. The imposition of any
of these or other penalties may result in a material and adverse
effect on the Group's ability to conduct its operations. In such case,
the Group may not be able to operate or control the PRC
Operational Entity and its subsidiaries, which may result in
deconsolidation of it.

5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property and concluded that the Group's investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Direcfors have defermined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the Group's investment
properties has been measured based on the tax consequences of

recovering the carrying amounts enfirely through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key sources of esfimation uncerfainty at the end of the
Reporting Period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the

next financial year are disclosed below.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

As described in note 17, invesiment properties are measured at
fair value at the end of Reporting Period using income approach
by independent professional valuers. Such valuations are based on
cerfain assumptions, which are subject to uncerfainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In relying on the valuation
report, the Directors of the Company have exercised their judgment
and are satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation reflect
markef condition. Where there are any changes in the assumptions
due to the market conditions in the PRC, the estimate of fair value
of investment properties may be significantly affected. As at 31
December 2017, investment properties of approximately
RMB413,194,000 (2016: RMB413,194,000) are measured
using market approach.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated allowance for accounts receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of accounts
receivables. Allowance for these receivables is made based on
evaluation of collectability and on management’s judgment by
reference to the estimation of the future cash flows discounted at
the original effective inferest rate fo calculate the present value. A
considerable amount of management judgment is required in
assessing the uliimate realisation of these debtors, including the
debtors’ current creditworthiness. If the actual future cash flows are

less than expected, additional allowance may be required.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of accounts
receivables is approximately RMB1,222,435,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately RMB437,777,000
(31 December 2016: carrying amount of accounts receivable of
approximately RMB1,361,026,000, net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately RMB437,777,000).

Estimated useful life and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

Dredgers and plant and machinery included in property, plant and
equipment are depreciated over their useful lives. The assessment
of estimated useful lives and residual values are matters of
judgement based on the experience of the Group, taking info
account factors such as technological progress, conditions of the
dredgers and plant and machinery and changes in market
demand. Useful lives and residual values are periodically reviewed
for continued appropriateness. Due to the long useful lives of the
dredgers and plant and machinery, changes to the esfimates used
can affect the amount of depreciation to be charged fo profit or
loss in each reporting period and consequently affect their carrying
value at the end of the Reporting Period. There was no change in
the estimated useful lives or residual values of property, plant and

equipment for both years.
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6. Revenue and Segment Information

The Group defermines ifs operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company who are also
the chief operating decision makers ("CODM’) that are used fo
make strategic decisions. Information reported to the chief
operating decision makers is based on the different nature of
projects carried out by the Group.

Defails of the Group's four reportable segments are as follows:

()  Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business refers to the
capital and reclamation dredging services and related

consultation services provided by the Group;

[i)  Environmental Profection Dredging and Water Management
Business refers to dredging or water management services
or constructions for promoting environmental inferests and

water quality mainly for inland rivers provided by the Group;

(i)  Other Marine Business mainly comprises marine hoisting,
installation, salvaging, vessel chartering and other

engineering services provided by the Group; and

liv)  Property Management Business refers fo the management
and leasing of a shopping mall and the construction of a
hotel by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

6. Revenue and Segment Information (Confinved) 6. W 2 & 2 3 & ¥ )

Segment results DEEE

An analysis of the Group's reportable segment revenue and AREBERSBRERDBEESTAOT ©
segment resulfs is as below.

Environmental

FEFEBRRZERAR 2 7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging  Management Marine Management
Business Business Business Business Total
EERESE RREAR Hity ES
MAER KBEBER BEEHR EEXHK Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR AR®TR

For the year ended BE-Z-t%
31 December 2017 +ZA=t-HL
FE
Segment revenue 2 U 28 281,589 130,223 232,572 6,540 650,924
Segment results DEEE 93,867 37,848 37,780 (3,490) 166,005
Unallocated ofher income RO EE A 18,059
Other gains and losses, net Hipzs R BB T8 18,683
Unallocated corporate expenses R A EL ¥ F (29,097)
Unallocated finance costs AOBBELAK (62,416)

Profit before tax W 3 BT A 111,234




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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6. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Segment results (Continued)

6. WKk o EBEFR @)

o EBEE m)

Environmental

Profection
Capifal and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine Management
Business Business Business Business Total
EERESR RIREVA K Hth IES
NS KBERER BEXE BHER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARET T
For the year ended HE-Z-R%F
31 December 2016 +=A=+-HL
FE
Segment revenue 2 B35 353,961 154,702 153,451 5,040 667,154
Segment results DEEE 140,569 43,785 17,680 |475) 201,559
Unallocated other income AAOEEMKA 19,347
Other gains and losses, net HihaRERZaE (5,999
Uncllocated corporate expenses KA B EF X (31,465)
Unallocated finance costs AP R A& (61,222)
Profit before tax B 754 A e A 122,220

—Z—+FF3R Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

6. Revenue and Segment Information (Confinved) 6. W 2 & 2 3 & ¥ )

Other segment information Hit o s
Environmental
Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging  Management Marine Management  Segment
Business Business  Business Business total Unallocated Consolidated
ERRES RREAR Hitr S
WA  kBEEER BEEH EEXE  OHAG AOE &E
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FEFEBRRZERAR 2 7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

ARBTR ARBTRL AR®TR AR#TR ARETR ARETR AR¥T:R

Forthe yearended  HZE-Z-+f
31 December 2017 +=A=t+-H

LEE
Amounts included in the SAS S BRI EL
measure of segment £8
profit or loss

Depreciation of property, ~ #1% - BEK

plant and equipment RETE 71,953 2,867 26,533 - 101,353 45 101,398
Amortisation of prepaid land T 1 £ 41 7 #) 50 8

lease payment - - - 2,474 2,474 318 2,792
Exchange gain B 5 s - - = = = 18,682 18,682
Amortisation of other AthEREES

infongible asses - - - 333 333 - 333
Gain on disposal of HENE  BE R

properly, plant and RS W

equipment - (1,520) - - - - (1,520)
Amounts reqularly provided eI £ ZEERE

to CODM but not EF2H AR 2

included in the measure P m

of segment profit or loss Kt AZ 3B

Allowance for doubfful debts 5B & 5 - - - - - _ _




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 20177 #ZE T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

6. Revenue and Segment Information (Confinved) 6. W 2 | 9 38 & # )
Other segment information (Continued) H b2 ME R @)
Environmental
Profection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine  Management Segment
Business Business Business Business folal  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
HEREE RRIAR Hify nE
RERXY  KBEBXE BEXRH ERER  HHLs RAAHE Fa
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR%TR ARETR
Forthe yearended HZ-Z-~&
31 December 2016 +=A=1-—H
LEE
Amounts included in the 5t A 7 ES #8255 £
measure of segment LEE
profit or loss
Depreciation of property,  #M1% * BiE &
plant and equipment HEHE 72,405 2811 24,719 - 99,935 47 09,982
Fair value changes of RATRREFN
derivative financial EeRaRL
liobilties RYEED
embedded in
convertible bonds - - - - - 7,030 7,030
Amorisation of prepaid A L1 T4
land lease payment B - 14 - 2,474 2,488 318 2,806
Exchange loss ERERE = = = - - 39,183 39,183
Amorisation of other Hot & E i
infangible assefs = = = 250 250 = 250
Amounts regularly provided & B £ Z &2
fo CODM but not REEZRER
included in the measure i+ & 7 BB 2
of segment profit or loss &zt A Z 3B
Allowance for doubfful ~ RERE R
debs 11,877 = = = 11,877 = 11,877
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

6. Revenue and Segment Information (Confinved) 6. W 2 & 2 3 & ¥ )
Other segment information (Continued) Hth 2 3 & & @)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same EWMD I BETBR LG H MKW FTART
as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 4 fo the (AN EE Y e BUE AR o
consolidated financial statements.

pLgeel

P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Segment results represent profit eamed or loss incurred by each DEBELE B S » EB AT BB RS B 3 B A R B 1B
segment, without allocation of central administrative expenses, (koWMAPRITEES EHEmkzmkEsE - &F
other gains and losses, certain other income and certain finance HMWARE TREKA) o it ThR AR T HIT
costs. This is the measure reported to the Company’s executive EEREERIENEETENTE -

directors for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets DHEE

Environmental
Protection
Capital and Dredging Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property Related
Dredging Management Marine Management Construction
Business Business  Business Business Business Total
EERES RREAR Hit lid il ]
ip &34 KBEEEEYE BEXE NEXEEEY IREH @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR AR¥TT ARBTR AR#TRE ARETRT AR®TR

At 31 December 2017 R-Z2—+tfF

+=ZA=+—-H
Segment assets DBEE 1,707,966 646,594 546,064 588,349 - 3,488,973
Unallocated assefs: AOBMEE:
Prepaid land lease payments T8 £ 178 49 3% 14,866
Bank balances and cash RITEBERE 69,505
Others HAfh 14,445

Consolidated assets RAREBE 3,587,789
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6. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Segment assets (Continued)

6.

Environmental

W=k oHER @
o EHEE @)

Protection
Capital and Dredging Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property Related
Dredging Management Marine Management Consfruction
Business Business Business Business Business Total
ERRESE RIRGUA R Hits NEER inbz:jik
HRET KBERRK BEXH £33 TREH 25t
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT ARETE ARBTT ARETT AREKTET
At 31 December 2016 RIZ-REF
+ZA=+—-H
Segment assets DHEE 1,929,475 815077 481,030 514,043 13,340 3,752,965
Unallocated assets: APBEE:
Prepaid lond lease payments T8 £ 3178 49 3% 15,184
Pledged bank deposits EEARTER 15,000
Bank balances and cash ROBBREEE 34,500
Others Hit 12,999
Consolidated assets HAEBE 3,830,648
For the purposes of moniforing segment performances and 7 EE 4o

allocating resources between segments, assets are allocated to
reportable and operating segments other than the unallocated

items listed above.

Segment liabilities

As the liabilities are regularly reviewed by the CODM in fotal for
the Group as a whole, the measure of total liabilities by reportable

segments is therefore not presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

6. Revenue and Segment Information (Confinved) 6. W 2 & 2 3 & ¥ )

Geographical information

As all the Group's revenue is derived from its operation in the PRC HRAAEENEREEREERTRNEE
and substantially all its non-current assets (excluding the other BEERBLERDEE(TREREEMLEME
financial assefs) are located in the PRC, no geographical E)MRAE RIEZ5 @ ER -

information is presented.

Information about major customers

TEEFEHR

An analysis of revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the KEERMBBAERERNAKRFZIONNELHN

Group's fotal revenue for the year is as follows:

WA HTanT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —TREF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Customer A
— Environmental Profection Dredging

e

BEFEA
— RREDOR LK EEER

and Water Management Business 66,607 123,526
Customer B =FB
— Capifal and Reclamation Dredging Business —ERREBRAEED 71,820 115,415
Customer C =2FC
— Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business — ERREBREED 68,603 86,046
Customer D EFD
— Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business — HEREGHRARED 48,467 85,672
Note: Cusfomers D did not contribute over 10% of the Group's tofal e BE—E—+E+-_A=+—HILEE EFD

revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Z BRI SRR AN R E AR W R 10% o
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7. Other Income 7. EMA

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT
e

Government financial incentive (nofe) LI B IR 22 B (i 2t) 92,717 9,239
Bank interest income 1T A B WA 266 547
Inferest income in respect of non-current accounts SE B EA 78 AR 3 9 I B A
receivable 7,920 11,879
Interest income in respect of other receivable H i [ R Y A S A - 2,903
Sundry income HEIA 156 286
18,059 24,854
Note: Pursuant fo a document issued by a PRC local government authority, M - BETRE I BRTFREZEROXG  NARH
one of the Company's PRC subsidiaries was granted financial He—HAPEMNBEARBEEE —BER=_Z—AN
incentive for a period of three years ending in 2019 for ifs FRENTRB=FONMERER AZFHAM
contribution to the economic development of the locality, provided it TRBERELNER  KAHERSEEAREMIE
is duly registered in the locality and pays taxes according fo tax R ML AR AR BOE SR © BR b 2 51 - B B 22 R 3
laws. No other conditions are attached to the financial incentive. A5 A o Lt P 75 1R 1
The PRC local government authority confirmed that the amount for FE S RFRERER AEEREE_ZT—
such financial incentive that the Group was entifled for the year +EFET A=+ B EFEAZXHZEN K
ended 31 December 2017 was RMB9,717,000 (2016: BESEAAREO /17000 (=T — /N4&F :
RMB®,239,000). Accordingly, the Group recognised such amount ARG 239,0007) - At - A"EBEEBHEBS

as other income for the year. BERBFAEMBA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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8. Other Gains and Losses, Net

8. HttWEREEFHE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt ARB T ARBTT

Gain on disposal of property,

HEWE - BEK

e

plant and equipment B 1,520 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ekl il N NI € - 24,250
Fair value changes of derivative financial RABFNITESRAE
liabilities embedded in the Bonds ZNFEE 27 - 7,030
Sums waived by holders of the Bonds BFFAAZRRRIE 27 - 13,781
Allowance for doubtful debts R AR 201i) - (11,877)
Exchange gain (loss) I 5 W as (B3 98) 18,682 (39,183)
20,202 (5,999)
9. Finance Costs 9. BE XA

2017 2016

—E—+F ZT—REF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARBTTT

e

Interest expenses on:

THEREMNEFHX

Bank borrowings wholly repayable within five years 1A R F A2 EE B &
RITEE 29,880 34,154
Discounted bills receivable EULE BEIR =4 580 796
Other borrowings HEpEE 5,627 5,535
The Bonds (Note 27) BH(Kat27) 39,312 5,174
Amounts due fo non-confrolling interests FES eI AR FE 25 T Il 1,972 1,940
Effective interest on the convertible Bonds (Note 277)  AI# IR 1& & 2 B F &
(Hia£27) - 30,668
Total borrowing costs RSB R A 77,371 78,267
less: amounts capitalised in the cost of qualifying W ARBEREEKRAEARL
assets okt (6,711) (8,315)
70,660 69,952
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9. Finance Costs (Continued)

Borrowing cost capifalised during the year ended 31 December
2017 of approximately RMB6,711,000 (2016: RMB8,315,000)
arose on the general borrowing pool calculated by applying a
capitalisation rafe of 10.59 % (2016: 10.87%) per annum.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, borrowing cost was
capitalised as part of the construction in progress in respect of the
hotel under construction included in property, plant and equipment

(2016: investment properties under construction).

10. Income Tax Expense

9.

& KA @)

BE_Z—+FT_A=+—HIEFE BEX
EZBERRHARKES711,000L(ZF =R
F: AR%8,3150007L) I —REEHEG K
BAREL EFF10.59%(=F —/XF : 10.87%)
Ef-HE_FT-—tHF+_A=1+—BLF
B -EERABERNERERBERBEEYNE BE
REB(ZE—R"E EEREVR)ERTR
B —#8D °

10. Fr S Bi A X
2017 2016
S i
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AR¥ETT

e

The charge comprises: X BE
Current tax BN ERFH 1R
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") R ERTIS R
(MBI 40,746 51,618
Deferred taxation (Note 19) EEFIE (M aE19) (1,716) (4,648)

39,030 46,970

—Z—tFF I Annual Report 2017
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10. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 10. Fr 1% % B X (m)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before G AT 2 B BR A R AT ER DR ¢

tax as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tfF  —FAE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETT

e

P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Profit before tax [ B3 B o Al 111,234 122,220
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% (2016: 25%) PR EMESHEHNE25%
EABRIE(CEZ—AF:
25%) 27,809 30,555
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose A~ B] 4053 58 sx ) i 75 52 £ 7,118 11,867
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised m AR IEEER
M & 4,103 4,548
Tax charge for the year FABTE R X 39,030 46,970
(i) PRCEIT (i) HEEEFRE
PRC EIT is calculated at 25% of the assessable profits for RRAEFEE PEDERSHRIIZER
both years. s F AT K 25% 51 & o
(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) EBMNEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the RREFEE  BEMNEH IR G ERE
esftimated assessable profits for both years, if any. w A (A0 E) A E16.5%5 & -
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in HRASEBAMEFEATERESEL
the consolidated financial statements as the Company and SREEBZERT SR ARSI SR
its subsidiaries had no assessable profits arising in or RN LA R SR B o

derived from Hong Kong for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 20177 #ZE T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

11. Profit for the Year 11. FREF

—Z—tFF I Annual Report 2017

2017 2016
—=—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T AR T T

Profit for the year has been arrived

at affer charging:

F e A E IR T 5% IE

I

Auditor’s remuneration 1% B4 b 7 B 1,868 1,932
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hqth A 333 250
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments T8 {5 £ b FH 40 2Rk 5 2,792 2,800
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #12% « B MR i & 101,398 99,982
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12) BEEME (et 12) 2,100 2,100
Other staff costs H 8 TR 44,102 48,557
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RIREAIGT B

excluding those of directors TEEEEHH 3,757 3,481
Total staff costs B TR 49,959 54,138
Allowance for doubtful debts RIZREAE - 11,877
Cain on disposal of property, plant and LEWE - BE R

equipment Bl (1,520) -
Sub-contracting charges included in FEAE B KA

operating cost SBEER 192,595 162,357




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

12. Directors’, Chief Executive Officer’s and NREE FETHAEREES
Employees’ Emoluments B &

FEFEBRRZERAR 2 7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Directors and Chief Executive Officer BEERFETHAE
Defails of the emoluments paid or payable to the Directors and the FR - BENKENRESEREETHRAENMHE
Chief Executive Officer during the year are as follows: B -
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE-—Z2—+tE+-A=+—HLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances contribution Total
HFeR EBHRER
we HfhE B 5T Bl =K ot

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTRT AR®BTR AR¥T T

Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Liu (note i)) B 5% &= (K22 (1) - 1,200 - 1,200
Mr. Wu Bin (note [ii)) 08 o5 A& (B &% (i) - - - -
Mr. Wu Xuze [note (iii)) =B E S A& (B a2 (i) - - - -
Ms. Zhou A&zt - 600 - 600
- 1,800 - 1,800
Non-executive director: EHITES -
M. Liu longhua BlREE R E - - - -
Independent non-executive B IFERITES
directors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun PR 8% 28 5 4
Jonathan 150 - - 150
Mr. Huan Xuedong BEREL 150 - - 150
Mr. liang Zequen RERFKE - - - -
300 - - 300

300 1,800 - 2,100
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For the year ended 31 December 20177 #ZE T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

12. Directors’, Chief Executive Officer’s and NREE FETHAERES
Employees’ Emoluments (Continued) M < @

BEERFETHAE @
BE-—SE—AE+=-A=+—HILLEE

Directors and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016

—Z—HF 3R Annual Report 2017

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances confribution Total
ek B RAE A
& E AL kS ®Et
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR T T ARBT T ARBT T ARET T
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Liu (note i) 25 £ (A a2 (i) - 1,200 - 1,200
Mr. Wu Bin (note (ii)) 038 5 A (K a2 (i) — - - -
Mr. Wu Xuze [note (iii)) R85k A (KT aF (i) — - - -
Ms. Zhou B+ — 600 - 600
- 1,800 - 1,800
Non-executive director: EHITES
Mr. Liu longhua L A — - - -
Independent non-executive BYIFRTES:
directors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun PR £8 42 5F &
Jonathan 150 = = 150
Mr. Huan Xuedong BEREL 150 - - 150
Mr. Xu Hengju (note iv) wIEH S (K aEiv) — - - -
Mr. liang Zequen (nofe v/ RFER S (M aty) - - - -
300 = = 300
300 1,800 — 2,100
Notes: B ez -

(i) Mr. Liv was also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company during (i) HE-—_ZT—XNE+-_A=+—HRA%LENAE
ARBEEZETBAE UEEFRBEEZHEES
BHEERFETRAEMRERBEZHME - &£
2+t —-AHB B EREEBREEENT
B EDAEEETS IR RATES -

the year ended 31 December 2016 and his emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive Officer. On 5 January 2017, Mr. Liu has resigned as the
Chief Executive Officer, but remains as the chairman of the Board
and an executive Director.
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12. Directors’, Chief Executive Officer’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (Continued)

12.%%* FTETHRAEBEREES

(#)

P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Directors and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(ii) Mr. Wu Bin was appointed on 5 January 2017.

(i) Mr. Wu Xuze was appointed on 5 January 2017 as an executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

[iv  Mr. Xu Hengiju resigned on 23 September 2016.

v/ M. liang Zequan was appointed on 23 September 2016.

During the year, there was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

Salaries and other allowance paid to or for the executive directors
are generally emoluments paid in respect of those persons’ other
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

Employees

Of the Group's five highest paid individuals during the vear, two
(2016: two) of them were directors whose emoluments are
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2016:
three) highest paid individuals, were as follows:

BEERFTETHAE @

st < (48)
i) EREEE_FT—+tF-—_ARBEZE-

i) RMBEAEE-_ZT—LtF-—ARABAEZEARAR
NEIRITE R TRITBAEH -

(V) HBEFEER-Z-—R"FALA-T=HEH-
v REREEE_ZT-RNFAA-_T=HEZE-

FR LTEREEZHEUHRRCIFAEARETHS
B2 Bk o

XNTFTHRTEENF S REMEHEBRAZETA
ITREEBARALREMBRARANEHRHEMNE
1t BR 75 T S A 8 — AR Fr B

==

FAXEBELARSHFMER ST  HPmA (=
T-RF MB)REERTIETHRAER  EM
SEREXZR -HBRT=R(ZF—RF:=8)
REFHHMEANMS AT

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
EE———
Salaries and other allowances e & H b AL 918 994
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R ARAE AT B4 3K 18 18

936 1,012
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R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 20177 #ZE T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

12. Directors’, Chief Executive Officer’s and NREE FETHRAEBERESE
Employees’ Emoluments (Continued) M < @
Employees (Continued) =H=RC
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEeE THNAERAZDT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH EEAZ
——
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (approximately £ % 1,000,000 7T
RMB790,000) (#9 AR #790,0007T) 3 3
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group fo any RREFEEN AEBYERERNES 217
of the Direcfors, Chief Executive Officer or the five highest paid BAESAEZGESTMEA(BEES X217
individuals (including directors, Chief Executive Officer and BAEREE)SXMEMMES  AIEAH A
employees) as an inducement fo join or upon joining the Group or RIMAREBZREEN sk BER /E o

as compensation for loss of office.

13. Earnings Per Share 13. 8 R EF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/loss per share KATRAARBLHERERRBERTN EiE
affributable to the owners of the Company is based on the Toin N5 Ehig st &

following data:

—Z—+FF3R Annual Report 2017

2017 2016
—B—+tF —ERE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBTTT
e
Earnings B
Profit for the year atiributable to owners of M EERERREEZF
the Company for the purposes of basic mENARREMAE A
and diluted eamings per share FEAS 5 A 5 71,040 68,794
‘000 '000
Number of shares & #E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R EERERALREERF
for the purposes of basic and diluted eamings & A i AR hn i 19 2
per share 1,478,064 1,252,900




FEFEBRRZERAR 2 7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

13.

14.

Earnings Per Share (Continued)

The weighted average number of shares for the purposes of basic
earnings per share for both years were calculated based on the

weighted average number of shares in issue during both years.

As disclosed in note 27, the conversion options embedded in the
convertible bonds are no longer exercisable affer the Original
Maturity Dafe. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group

does not have any potential ordinary shares.

Dividends

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the Reporting Period.

13. BRREF @)

FA 1 St 5 7 1814 10 5 R 2 7K 2 ) B0 BR £ 0 4
9 IR I A R O B BT IR BT 4
BEtEE -

M7 P RE  RATRKRESNERARR
BB RTETE RZE—+RZE—RF
tT-A=1t—B AKEEYEETAEEEBK -

14. B 2

REE-_Z—+tFEF+_A=+—"BKER=-_ZF—K
F+_A=+-—HLEFEBEBERNIEZHR
B MmEREHRENEEZZEMKRS -
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For the year ended 31 December 20177 #ZE T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

15. 9% - BMERZRE

Furniture,
Leasehold Dredgers fittings
land and Leasehold and Plantand and office Motor Construction
building improvements  vessels machinery equipment  vehicles in progress Total
B #B
HELHE BMER HER R A
BT HE#s Bk M B RiE RE ERIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'O0O  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETER
cosT KA
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-1"E
—A-H 54 401 244 1,726,669 97 694 1,726 14016 137,365 2,032,115
Addifions NE 60,205 = = 12,065 262 1,833 6,513 80,878
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAF - - - - - (205) - (205)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-R=+-H 114,606 244 1726669 109759 1,088 15,644 143,878 2,112,788
Additions NE = = 30,407 745 = 2,829 66,732 100,713
Disposals/wiiteoff e/ (60,205) - (5,163 - - (1,591) - (66,959
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+-R=+-H 54 401 244 1751913 110,504 1,988 16,882 210,610 2,146,542
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:tifE
A T January 2016 RZIT-—RE
—A—-H 3,287 244 333,647 27 883 1,258 7,192 - 373511
Provided for the year EREE 2,800 - 86,240 8,677 259 2,006 - 99,082
Disposal of a subsidiary HEKBAT - - - - - 63) - 63)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-R=+—-H 6,087 244 419,887 36,560 1,517 9135 - 473430
Provided for the year FNEE 2,599 - 87,075 9,502 164 2,058 — 101,398
Eliminated on disposals/wiiteoff B/ (201) - (2,376) - - (1,475) - (4,052)
At 31 December 2017 i 3
+-R=+—-H 8,485 244 504,586 46,062 1,681 9718 - 570776
CARRYING VALUE RHE
At 31 December 2017 RZT—t%
+-A=1+-H 45916 - 1247327 64,442 307 7164 210,610 1,575,766
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-RF
+-A=t-H 108,519 — 1,306,782 73,199 471 6,509 143,878 1,639,358

As certain lease payments relafing to the leasehold property cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, that
enfire leasehold property is accounted for as property, plant and

equipment.

The Group's leasehold land and building is held under a medium
term lease in the PRC.

HREEEMERENE THERBETEATSE
WR T REFTEBHOR  WEHEMHEERE

AEBENHELHEEFTIRETHEERS
BRA -

—Z—HF 3R Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Confinued) 15. M5 - BB R&RHE @

Depreciation is charged so as fo write off the cost of assets [other WE IR EHE A FE R EH LK B E & F
than construction in progress), over their estimated useful lives and HREERNESEIMEEERA(EETIRER
affer taking info account their esfimated residual values, using the GN) - BRAEEFHT ¢

straightline method, on the following bases:

leasehold land and building
Leasehold improvements

Dredgers and vessels

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fittings and office
equipment

Motor vehicles

Details of property, plant and
collateral are sef out in Note 31.

2-4% or over the term of the HE+THRIES 2-4% 3 & F H
lease, whichever is shorter (AER5E &E B%E)

20% or over the term of the lease, HEEE 20% s FH & F 2
whichever is shorter (AT & B %)

5%6.7% 2R M K v A 5%-6.7%

5%-20% R = K i 28 5%-20%

N3 /N 10%-33.3%
10%-33.3% H i
16.7%-20% RE 16.7%20%

equipment that are pledged as ERSERYRONE BEMRBEFBHER
MizE31 o

16. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 16. AT LA

2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

e

Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBIERB BMTIER DT
Current assets MENE E 2,908 3,075
Non-current assets ERBEE 95,190 105,210
98,098 108,285
Details of prepaid lease payments that are pledged as collateral ERAERYmEOTENEORF BN L]

are sef out in Note 31.
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17. Investment Properties

17. REW*

RMB’000

AR®T T

At 1 January 2016 RZTE—-—XRF—-—HA—H -
Transferred from investment properties under EEEREEEYE

construction 336,828

Additions NE 76,366

At 31 December 2016, at fair value RZE—REFE+-_A=+—8 BAFE 413,194

Additions NE —

At 31 December 2017, at fair value R-ZZE—+E+=-_A=+—H80 EAFEE 413,194

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group started
constructing a shopping mall in Yancheng, the PRC. The shopping
December 2015. The

construction was completed during the year ended 31 December

mall was measured at cost at 31

2016. The Group's property interests, including its inferesfs in the
land held under operating lease, held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciafion purposes are measured using the fair value model

and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31
December 2017 and 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on the respective dates by Sinno Appraisals
limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not

connected to the Group.

In defermining the fair value of the relevant properties, the Directors
of the Company has set up a valuafion committee, which is
headed up by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair

VOer measurements.

The Group engages a third party qualified valuer to perform the
valuation. The valuation committee works closely with the qualified
external valuer fo establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the
valuation committee’s findings fo the Directors of the Company to

explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair volue of the assets.

REBEE-ZE—RAFE+-_A=+—RHIEEE &
SERBREFRERTRE-REE - ZH85
R-B—RAFE+-_A=+—HBPHERLFE-
ITRERBEZE—AF+t-_A=+—HL#F
EZK ASKBEMNYEER REERKCEHE
THEURDEASKHRERAAEENN Y E
Wi DERAATEERGE  YHBERAR
DIEIR E W -

RZE—tR=—_ZE—A"F+_A=+—H &
SE®REMEN R TE T E R Sinno Appraisals
Limited (—FAEAREE LT EFBENBLSERE
FEEARNEFHEBRPETNGHEMmESR -

RETHBONENRFER ARFAEEER
VYHEZES(MARAMBEETE) U
R EFEEEEA NG ESRM MkEABE -

AEBCZBFE=ZTAERMHEMETMHE:-
HEZRESEAERIIBEEMETLE U
REARTESNEERN R ARE - B
BMERNARAEEERGEZEENRER
R-UBEBEEATERINREA -

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

17. Investment Properties (Continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is categorised
as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfer into or
out of level 3 during the vear. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is the current

17. BEYZE @)

AEENREDELATEIRRATEHERD
FEZE-FRNE=-ERLEEAREL - EE5
MENAFER DENKSEAREREAE
AR & o

use.
Valuation Significant unobservable Weighted
technique(s) input(s) average price
fhE{ER M EXTAERRARE hn#ER 98
Shopping mall Direct market Price per square metre of gross Refail portion: RMB6,800 Per
located in Yancheng, approach floor area which derived square mefer
the PRC from the shopping mall areq, (2016 : RMB6,800 per
using direct market comparable square meter)
and faking into account
adjustments on location
iz 50 R B B 4k T A P 9% BETSE KENRESRELEEBEN TERD  BEIK

18. Deposit Paid for Acquisition of Property,

FRAARER KAERE
M5 LRI 5t R B

AR#6,8007T
—E—NEF
FEHKAREES,8007T)

1. WBEBME BERRBEXINH
BE

Plant and Equipment

Included in the deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2016, an amount of
RMB70,000,000 represents the full payment for acquiring an
office in the PRC for further development of environmental
profection dredging business. The Group was in the process of
obtaining the relevant property use rights certificates during the
year ended 31 December 2016 and accordingly the amounts
were classified as deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the acquisition
confract was cancelled upon mutual agreement and the deposits
were refunded fo the Group.

WENE BERRKBINHNRENR _-_FT—KX
F+-A=+—HBEFEHIEARK70,000,000
TTEAE-TERRREAEXBMEE —H
NRPEOBRRIEAINNER - AEERE
EZE-RNETZA=+-BIEFE EEE
SHENERCHAEZES At SBL28RB
EVE BEMKHEINNRE -

REBE-ZT—tF+-_A=T—HIEFE K
BENRDBESTABREIE AKERE
R[ -
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19. Deferred Tax Assets/Deferred Tax
Liabilities

19. EXERBEE ELEHEAE

The following are the major deferred tax assefs and (deferred tax

NTAAFERBAFENETEERRELMR
liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the current HEENCGELEFHEARE)  UWRE#EF :

and prior year:

Fair value
adjustment of

property, plant

Allowance  and equipment on
for doubtful acquisition of
debt subsidiaries  Tax losses Others Total
I B IS S R B
ME - BER
RIREH REATERER BIEEE Hith @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BF T ARBTT ARETRT AR®TT AR%TxR
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF
—HA—H 100,354 [16,046) 6,018 (6,018 84,308
Charged fo profitor loss — #F A&
[Note 10) (Bfat10) 2,969 1,679 = = 4,648
At 31 December 2016 R=—T—x
+=ZA=+—H 108,323 (14,367) 6,018 (6,018 88,956
Charged fo profitor loss s A&
[Note 10) (5t 10) = 1,716 = = 1,716
At 31 December 2017 RZ=Z—+F
+=ZA=+—H 103,323 (12,651) 6,018 (6,018 90,672

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017

Other temporary differences mainly represented the temporary
differences arising from the consfruction cosfs capifalized in
investment properties under consfruction which were deductible for
fax purpose in the year those costfs incurred. The Group had no
significant unprovided deferred tax during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

At the end of the Reporting Period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earings of
subsidiaries for which deferred fax liabilities have not been
recognised was RMB330,786,000 (2016: RMB269,155,000).
No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to confrol the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such

differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

EmTREEEFZAEEREERSHENE
ERAFEENTHEEEZERE EBRENEHRE
BAfk - BHE_TE—tFR_ZT—X F+
ZA=+—BLEE AEEEERELEHME
i o

RBERR BRZFUEERELEHRBREBELZ
MBEBARZRNERBNEBIGREZRAES
AR #330,786,000t(=ZF —RF: ARK
269,155,0007T) M 77 5 B A] £ ) BR B = 8
MBORE MZEZRRHIRTRERTE
‘e At EpZEZREREE -
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19. Deferred Tax Assets/Deferred Tax 9. EEBRBEE ELEHEBERE
Liabilities (Continued) ()
At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has unused fax loss RBEPRR AEB 2 ADAMNREBIE A
of RMB85,947,000 (2016: RMB84,684,000). A deferred tax AR ¥B5047 000 (=T — N F: AR ¥
asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses of 84,684,0007) - —EHEBHBEEBEEB Z AR
RMB24,072,000 (2016: RMB24,072,000). No deferred fax 24,072,000t (ZE — /R F : AR# 24,072,000
assef has been recognised for the remaining tax loss of TOMBREFRIEEECEER - AN EETEA
RMB61,875,000 (2016: RMB60,612,000) due to RACEFARR R A TR IBEEBARE
unpredictability of future profit sireams. 61,875000TL (ZF—RF : AR% 60,612,000

TOERBELERIAEE -

FEFEBRRZERAR 2 7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

20. Accounts and Other Receivables and 20 EWERF R EMERKRUAKRTAE
Prepayments (NEN
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —F—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETT

e

Non-current: FEBNER -
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for U BR 2% - 0B R ER BB
doubitful debts (notes (i) and {ii)) (K1 & (i) & (i) 68,798 88,090
Value-added tax recoverable (note (iv)) A] g B 2 EFL (HT a7 (iv) 1,797 1,797
70,595 89,887
Current: B -
Accounts receivable, net of allowance FEUEBR ZX - N RER B HE
for doubtful debts (note (i) and (i) (B & (i) %% (i) 1,153,637 1,272,936
Bills receivable (note (iii)) /& Uk 22 9% (B9 2% fiii)) 4,150 4,312
Government financial incentive receivables JRE WIS AT B T 22 i
(Note 7) (K1 a£7) 11,888 10,407
Deposits and prepayments B& RIENKIE 60,598 40,643
Others H A 10,051 8,210
1,240,324 1,336,508

1,310,919 1,426,395
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20. FE W BR R &% H b FE WX X
NENC

et

20. Accounts and Other Receivables and
Prepayments (Continued)

X LA K T8

Notes:

(i) Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the (i)
potential customer's credit quality and defines its credit limits based

REMEMHZLA AEBEERTPNITE
ANBEFGEZEETPNEEERRREH

on reputation of the customers within the industry.

The Group prepares an aged analysis for its accounts receivable
based on the dates when the Group and the customers agreed on
the quantum of the services provided, as evidenced by progress
certificates. Periodic statements are issued and agreed by the
customers for the work performed and services rendered for the

customers. Most of the confracts require the cusfomers to make

EERM-

AEEERAKREEE S HERMIZEHRREE
MEH(REEEEEH) MEEEUBERNER
ROM HEBRKEEFPFAEEETHNTIRER
MEFRENREMBESEL - KREHE M
FEPRBHEAEEER=ZTHRNZ2EEKT
BEECESALATKIREENS0%E80%)

monthly progress payments with reference fo the value of work SHAEEENR - BREZZEER KB (THK
completed [typically 50% to 80% of the value of work completed in TRREEMNISREASS) AT FPRIAB TR &E

MR PR B A AKREK
THERAXM -

the previous month) within thity days after the issuance of the BB =+Z=N
progress certificate. According fo these contracts, the remaining
balance (15% to 45% of the value of work completed) is to be paid
by the customers within thirty to sixty days affer the project is
completed and accepted by the customers and the customers receive

payment from the project owners.

REBRERR REIRTKREBBRENH
HEENEREENER A mERNASE

The aged analysis of the Group's accounts receivable, prepared
based on the dates of certification of work done, which approximate

the respective revenue recognition dates (net of allowance for & W BE Zx (F0BR FE WK BE R B8 ) M BR e » AT 10
accounts receivable), at the end of each reporting period is as T
follows:
Aged andlysis of the Group’s accounts receivable 7 £ [ /Y FE UK BR 2 BR R 0 AT
2017 2016
—2—tF T —RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETF T
e——
0-30 days 0ZE 30X 93,370 117,338
31-60 days EYOFN 31,066 66,517
61-90 days ESYOFN 60,942 69,072
91-180 days Q1ZE 180K 135,715 101,847
181-365 days 181 £ 365K 261,162 212,753
1 year=2 years 1FE2F 205,478 433,730
Over 2 years HBiB2F 434,702 359,769
1,222,435 1,361,026

—Z—HF 3R Annual Report 2017
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20. Accounts and Other Receivables and 20 EWRERR R EMEWRFURE

FEFEBRRZERAR 2 7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Prepayments (Continued) NENC )
Notes: (Continued) B et - (£8)
(i) (Continued) (i) (&)
Included in the accounts receivables balance is refention money of MNZE—+tF+-_HA=+—H: EWEREZXEH
approximately RMB 199,000,000 (2016: RMB180,000,000) as at BEARESHAREI09000,000T(=ZF— X
31 December 2017. & : AR¥ 180,000,0007%) °
Up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements, HEGAUWKRREMLEBHL A£EE
there were subsequent seflement of account receivables amounting to KBMEEBRENNERERABEARE
RMB62,263,000 being received by the Group. 62,263,0007T °
The amount of accounts receivables which were past due based on RBEHARAEBHZEAENFEHE D) BAE
the ferms of contracts, as at the end of the Reporting Period but for WEAIEREBEEREGE ZERWERDTAOT
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss is analysed as
follows:
Aging of accounts receivable from due date which were past due B 2/ 57 B B 81 8 {8 5K 5 (B /9 FE UK BR 7R A9 BR i
but not impaired
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®BFTTT
e
0-30 days 0ZE 30K - -
31-60 days 31 260K 27,134 43,262
61-90 days 61 290K 60,942 64,564
91-180 days Q12180K 129,659 110,339
181-365 days 181 365K 311,035 233,189
1 year-2 years 1FE2F 193,430 313,236
Over 2 years HBiE2F 281,389 259,527
1,003,589 1,024,117
The Group does not hold any collateral over the above balances. A 55 B 30 4 At A BR R A AR (AT A -
The impairment losses recognised on receivables are individual frade HERFERROBEBESNR - —FER
receivables that are past due at 31 December 2016 and 2017 and “E—tF+t_ A=+ HEBHNENES
the management of the Group believes that these amounts are unlikely BEER RAEEEEERR  BREEEFH

fo be recovered based on past collection history of each customers. BAEBCREEE - ZERBERAIREE o
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20. Accounts and Other Receivables and
Prepayments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(Continued)

Included in account receivables as at 31 December 2017 was a
gross carrying amount of approximately RMB58,803,000 (2016:
RMB68,303,000) due from a customer of which the related
dredging project has been suspended since January 2014 due to
change in use of relevant reclaimed areas by the Government. The
customer has signed an agreement with the Group fo repay
RMB40,000,000 before 31 December 2016 but failed to fulfil the
payment. During the year ended 31 December 2017, an amount of
RMB9,500,000 was received. Accordingly, allowance of doubtful
debts of RMB58,803,000 (2016: RMB68,303,000] was
recognised as at end of Reporting Period.

Included in account receivables as at 31 December 2017 was a
gross carrying amount of approximately RMB26,134,000 (2016:
RMB30,434,000) due from a customer which the dredging project
was started since 2016 and is sfill in progress as af 31 December
2017 while the repayment of progress billings fell behind schedule.
Considering the payment pattern, the progress of the project and the
creditability of the customer, allowance of doubiful debts of
RMB10,728,000 (2016: RMB10,728,000) was recognised af
end of Reporting Period.

Included in account receivables as at 31 December 2017 was an
amount of approximately RMB323,465,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB428,236,000) due from customers who are large state-owned
enferprise or local governments which the respective projects were
already completed for more than one year. Considering the payment
pattern and the credibility of respective customers, allowance of
doubtful debts of RMB116,402,000 (2016: RMB141,598,000)
was recognised at end of Reporting Period.

Considering the latest repayment pattern of the remaining respective
customers, allowance of doubtful debts of RMB262,572,000 (2016:
RMB272,876,000) was recognised at the end of Reporting Period.

O.EWERARAKREMEKRRURE
NENC )

B et - (58)

(i) (#8)

RZZE—tF+ A=+ —BEHNERERBE
B —2EFF(EHBHRELEEBE T —WF
—ARRBRNEXREEEEBRN AR EE)
Z RIBHEREELD AR ¥58803000mT(=F
—NF: AR¥68,303,0007T) - ZEFHEAE
BEZ:iIHE UWR=_T—A"F+ZA=+—
H Al {E & 4 A R #40,000,0007T * B3 K &R
MR- RBE_Z—tF+-_A=+—HBItF
E BB ARES 5000007t 8 5K IE - ALt
%%%ﬁAE%588O3OOOE<_7 /\f'E A
R #68,303,0007T) E R & HARER ©

RIBE—tF+-A=+—BEHNEKERBE
BR—E2FFP (ERABENR_Z—RNFRHER
RZB—tF+_A=+—HIMEET M
EREEZFRNER) cRARRAENARK
26,134, OOOTE(:’—; NE: AR 30,434,000
L) BEIANMNKREX BREEEREBRER
E’\JEHZJ; RBEEHMRERABAREEBARYE
10,728,0007t (ZF — R4 : AR 10,728,000
o) ©

RZZE—tHE+-_A=+—HONEKRERE
%ﬁéﬁ”&@ﬁ(ﬁkiﬂﬁm%}%ﬁﬂﬁ S
—FENEEEXEMBEERT) ZHREHAR
#323,465000(=ZF—RF+ A =+—
H: AR#%¥%428,236,0007T) - ZEBEEFHEEF
MR RERAREE R|EHARE BRRRE
1%AE%116,402,OOO7E(:§*/*\¢!/\Eﬁ%
141,598,0007¢) °

ZRIKTABELPNRAHAMNREN - R,
EHREERRRBE ARE2062,572,0007T
(ZZ—RF: AR¥272,876,0007T) °

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts REEREST
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Ee———
1 January —H—H 437,777 425,900
Charged fo profit or loss STAEZ - 11,877
31 December +=-—A=+—H 437,777 437,777

—Z—HF 3R Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

20. Accounts and Other Receivables and
Prepayments (Continued)

20 B R EMERRUARE

AT )
Notes: (Continued) B et - (£8)

(i) Non-current accounts receivable, except refention money due after (ii)
one year from the end of Reporting Period, represents amounts due

JE BN EA e W BR R (B B R 5 R B 5t — SR 1R B A1
ZREBSINEREETEFZAHTIZNRE "
MAEAEOHEARNRBEREE —F 21K
ReRER BEMKRIOR(ZFB—RF : FH =X
During the year, interest income calculated at a rate of 10% per 10%) st EH F S WA K ARHB,316,0007T (=
annum (2016: 10% per annum) of about RMB8,316,000 (2016: T—RF: AR#11,879,0007T) B EHER -
RMB11,879,000) was recognised.

from several customers for contract works, for which the contracts
include clauses for extended payment terms beyond one year.

FEFEBRRZERAR 2 7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

(i) The aged analysis of the Group's bills receivable, presented based (iii)

ERNRIBEZEBERM2IN 2 AKERYK

on the relevant dates of certification of work done, is as follows:

SEROREITOT :

Aged andlysis of the Group’s bills receivable TEBEERRERRD T

2017 2016
—EB—tF =Z—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETT

E——
0-30 days 0& 30X - 1,500
31-60 days 31 260K 1,000 =
61-90 days 61 290K 700 2,100
91-180 days 91 & 180X 2,450 712
4,150 4,312

(v VAT paid of approximately RMB1,797,000 (2016:
RMB1,797,000) by the Group in connection with its construction-in-
progress could be setoff against future value added tax payable
generated from the Group. The amount is not expected fo be

recovered within one year from the end of reporting, and is

accordingly classified as non-current.

vy AREREERZTIEMAXHHEBEERODARKE
1,797,000 (=ZF — X4 : AR #¥1,797,000
TT) A F 1A 4 8 7K % ] S O 2E AR ) R R T 4
Blo N EHZERANA RN B|E B REF —
FRRE  MOBERIERED -
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21. Bank Balances and Cash and Pledged 21 RITERRA SN EIFRT
Bank Deposits =%
The pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2016 was carried RZZE—R"E+ZA=+—H BEEHRARTE
fixed inferest rate at 2.8% per annum and pledged fo secure a RIFEREEEEME28% 5 BIER—FR
bank borrowing which are matured in one year. S HRRATE A KR o
Bank balances that are denominated in a currency other than the UNEBEBRAGMNINEEBE LI EESTERN
functional currency of the relevant group companies are set out RITEAFHT 0T -
below:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

United States Dollar (“US$) Zrx((ZExl) 43 45
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$") B ([HExl) 627 512
22. Accounts and Other Payables 22. EATERFR N H b FE K
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Accounts payables JE& {5 BR 3K
Sub-contracting charge SBER 122,881 132,044
Fuel cost BAFL B A 18,923 36,080
Repair and mainfenance HIERIRE 23,667 15,270
Others H 3,593 5,703
169,064 189,097
Other payables H fth J& 1+t 5/ I8
Payable for property, plant and equipment M BB KR N ROA 11,654 11,880
Payable for construction cost of investment REWMEZERKAENRIE
properties 82,448 115,853
Accrual other taxes J& 5 H Ath 75 78 40,227 111,630
Accrual staff salaries and welfare Bt EIFHF S REF 25,848 26,576
Receipts in advance Ta M R IE 18,215 9,036
Inferest payable on the Bonds &% F B JE T ;E
(as defined in Note 27) (EZAME27) 849 4,334
Others H1th 20,478 16,740
199,719 296,049

368,783 485,146

—Z—tFF I Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

22. Accounts and Other Payables (Continued) 22 ENERRKREMESRK@®
The aged analysis of the Group's accounts payables presented AEEREREHRRREEQAHIN(HBER
based on the invoice date, except for sub-contracting charge BN HIREEZEZAHE2Y)MENERY
which is presenfed based on dates of the progress cerfificates, as BREE DT R -

at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ET—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

e

FEFEBRRZERAR 2 7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

0-30 days 0ZE 30K 51,147 45,771
31-60 days 31 260K 6,810 12,784
61-90 days 61 EQ0K 19,414 10,324
91-180 days Q12 180K 13,111 22,194
Over 180 days HBim 180K 78,582 98,024

169,064 189,09/

23. Amounts Due to Directors of the Company 23, FE{t & A R EEH1E

As at 31 December 2017, the balance represented advance from R-ZE—+tFE+-_A=+—H &&pERka L
and emolument payable fo certain direcfors of approximately ENETEENEREME G ARE2 804,000
RMB2,804,000 (2016: RMB1,981,000) and an amount due fo TT(ZZF—RF: AR¥1,981,000) 7T) & &t
Mr. Liv of approximately RMB6,798,000 (2016: BIEERRIBNHARKES,798,000L(=ZF — 7~
RMB26,499,000). All amounts are unsecured, interestfree, F: ARME26,499,0007T) c FTEZSEHREH A
repayable on demand and non-rade in nature. EER 28 AREZEREERIFESH ML -

24. Amounts Due to Non-Controlling Interests 24, FE{+ — R K B A T FE = R #E 2%

of a Subsidiary ™I

All balances are non-interest bearing except for an amount of rAEB AT ERE BREBEE_Z—+t&E+
approximately RMB 10,365,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: “A=+—HHZEHAEBIOI65000TT
RMB11,645,000) which is inferest bearing at 12% (2016: 12%). (ZZE—XE: ARMKET,6450007T) 1 12%(=
On 31 December 2017, cerfain non-contfrolling inferests agreed Z—RF:12%8)F BRI - RZFB—tF+=
nof to demand repayment of RMB68,252,000 of the amounts due A=+—B ETHEEREZRENR_Z—AN
to them before January 2019 (2016: RMB67,611,000 of the F— BRI TeBkESEMNKESZHEARK
amounts due to them before January 2018). All amounts are 68,252,000t (ZE—RNFE - R-_ZT—N\FE— A8
unsecured and non+rade in nature. ZHIEMFEEREBEARKSG7,611,0007T) ° FTE

ZEFRBEGRERALIEEZHE -
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25. Bank Borrowings 25. SR1TIEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT
e

Secured bank borrowings BEERBITEE
Payment schedule according fo contractual RENBRASEZ
repayment terms (nofe i ISR i 5% (Y aE)
Amount due for setflement within one year BN —ERNEBAEE 2 RE 371,192 485,215
(i) The effective interest rates of the secured bank borrowings are set (i) TREINEERRTEEZEEREF = :

out in the following table:

2017 2016
S N
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARBF T
e
Fixed interest at 6.4% 6.4% B F 7 2 - 20,000
Fixed interest at 3.81% to 7.40% 3.81%ZE7.40%E E F &
[(2016: 3.81% to 10.44%) (ZZ—"F :381%&
10.44%) 288,192 465,215
Floating interest at China Prime Lending Rate 2R (RTBERESERFE N
plus 0.92% to 1.36% 0.92% % 1.36%) 83,000 =
371,192 485,215
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group's bank RZE—tFR_FT—A"F+A=+—8"
borrowings were supported by the corporate guarantees given by REBRTEEAAFTHE(ER BRI R
Xiangyu PRC (defined in Note 37) and the Company. The Group's RAARMEHM AR ERESZF - REBEITHE
bank borrowings fo the extent of RMB257,000,000 (2016: BEARE257,000000L(ZF—RF: ARK
RMB436,608,000) were secured by certain assets of the Group [see 436,608,00070) A A EEAE TFTEE(RMFESID)
Notfe 31), and a property owned by a company in which Mr. Liu MBEBEERETHEAFESEEN —H QR
has beneficial interest and personal guarantees provided by Mr. BEERNYEURBRIEERBAR LS RREDN

Liu and Ms. Zhou respectively (see Note 33lii]). 18 A FE R (R B EE 33ii) fEHE 4R -
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26. Other Borrowings

27

26. Htufg &

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
Unsecured other borrowings HimEmEE

Without fixed repayment ferm and classified as EETEEEHRR
current liabilities DERARDEE 64,527 67,538
Classified as non-current liabilities DERIERBDAR 34,836 33,384
99,363 100,922

Included in the Group's other borrowings, approximately
RMB70,536,000 (2016: RMB88,868,000) carried fixed interest
rates ranged from 7.2% to 12% per annum (2016: 10% to 12%).
Other than that, the remaining other borrowings of the Group are
interestfree. All of the Group's other borrowings are unsecured,
without fixed repayment term and were borrowed from
independent third parties. On 31 December 2017, certain
counferparties agreed not to demand repayment before January
2019 (2016: 31 January 2018) and accordingly,
RMB34,836,000 (2016: RMB33,384,000) due fo these parties

are classified as non-current.

Bonds Payable

The Company issued unsecured convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) to
CITIC at a fotal nominal value of HK$243,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB191,970,000) on 8 November 2013, carrying an inferest
rate of 3% per annum with the maturity dafe of 7 November 2016
(the "Original Maturity Date”). The Bondholder being CITIC, had
an option to either convert the Bonds into the Company’s ordinary
shares at a conversion price of HK$2.7 per share, subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments, at any time after six months from the date of
issue and up to the Original Maturity Date, or fo require the
Company to redeem them at 133.792% of the nominal value of
the Bonds, which amounted to approximately HK$325,115,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB290,818,000 based on spot
exchange rate on 7 November 2016) (the “Original Redemption
Amount”), upon maturity. The Company had no right to early
redeem the Bonds.

27.

AAREBEEMEELHARK70,536,0007T (=
T —RF: AR%88,868,0007T) 1% & E F #
R72BFE12H(ZT—RE: 10%ZE12%) 5 B o
Btz REBRBOHEBERETFMNE -
MEASBEMEEYRERT YEEEE
PHEBBYLE=TER - R_F—tF+=
A=z+—BA ETHFHTREFAER=_F—N
F-—RA(ZE-—RE: ZZE-—N\NF-A=+—
B)ZRBREERE At BNZFINT
MARM34836000T(=F—RF: ARK
33,384,0007L) BB RIFRBEE °

ENEZ

KRABRZZFT—-—=Z%+— A\ BRCC
B 17 42 T H243,000,0007% T(F N A B
191,970,0007T ) & #& K M 7] % i & = ([ &
HD) MEREF R_ZF—-—XRF+—H
tBRB(REHMBEDIH - ZFEHFHE A
CMC) I 1T R MR NEAZRE M A M EMR
REEEUALBEGR27EBT (IR RESSE
HELERABE)BESFABKARANEER X
RENEIR ZRARAIREFHEEDN 133.792%
f& |- 4% 73251150008 m(BE = —
ANET-—ALtENAHEZREROARE
290,818,0007) ([RER]) - R B EERF
BEZEES -
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27. Bonds Payable (Continued) 27. BN &S @

At the time when the Bonds were issued, the Bonds were analysed ERTEEFE KEEEEEBELOMEBESRNE S

by the management of the Group fo contain two components, the
host debt component and the conversion option. The Bonds are
denominated in HK$, which is a currency other than the
Company's functional currency. Therefore, the conversion option in
the Bonds does not result in an exchange of a fixed number of the
Company's own equity insfruments for a fixed amount of cash,
denominated in HK$. Accordingly, the conversion option is
accounted for separately as a derivative liability, which is not
closely related to the host debt component. The fair values of the
debt component and the derivative component were determined at
the date of issue. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the debt
component was carried af amortised cost while the derivative
component was measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. The effective interest rate of the debt

component was 16.9%.

The Group had not paid the Original Redemption Amount and the
last inferest payment on the Original Maturity Date to CITIC.
Overdue interest of approximately HK$945,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB840,000) was incurred up to 31 December
2016. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
and CITIC entered info a framework agreement on 14 November
2016 (as amended by supplemental framework agreements,
collectively the “Framework Agreement’) and a standsfill and
amended agreement and supplemental deed to the original deed
poll regarding the Bonds (the “Amendment Agreement’) on 15
December 2016, pursuant to which CITIC agreed to a) extend the
maturity from the Original Maturity Date to 14 March 2017 and b)
reduce the principal amount of Original Redemption Amount to
approximately HK$275,415,000 (equivalent o approximately
RMB246,381,000) based on spot exchange rate on 31
December 2016, subject to certain conditions as stated in the

Amendment Agreement.

Furthermore, the conversion option under the Bonds was removed
under the Amendment Agreement. Accordingly, no embedded
derivative was recognised at 31 December 2016 and af the end

of subsequent accounting periods.

MEER D - BN EE AR 0 R R - 55 TI A
BLFE METRARRDEEENINNE
B Eil BEFMBRBRETESBABREHEN
AABEGEETARBBETEERRE (AET
FHE) Bt MERESIRAARIBITEERE
EERETEHBO LI VAR - EHEEBMD LT
ETABONAFERBEITRHNETE - T #
RIE BB DIRBERATE TETAR
MAZAFEFE RAFENZEPHNIERAMHE
R BHBNNERFMERR169%

REFHAE  AEEHKRACICXNREES &
RR-—ENE - BEE-_T-—R"EF+-_A=1—
H @B ELR45000F T (HERHAR
#840,0007T) - BE_ZE—RFT+_HA=+—
BIEFE AEER-_ZE—R"F+—-A+HmA
SCMCHFI M ER M (B EERBRIER - 5
BMERBZ]) YR -_FT—R"F+-_A+AHH
HCIMICET 32 B BME 7 W0 E 4 18 SR R AB 7T 1 #
AEFERBEHARB(ERTHED - &t
CNICRE#KERKHERIPAERE_F
—tF=ZATHEA: R RLRESASEE
#1275415000 8T (RIBE-_F—RFT A=
T — AR BVHIE R R E R AR 246,381,000
7o) - MEXRIMER] R AT & TR -

AN BRI ERIBER RS R o Bt
RZEBE-—RETZA=+—BREEN S H
IR - I EERANPTE T ABERER -
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Bonds Payable (Continued)

During the current Reporting Period, the Company has sefiled
approximately HK$39,113,000, (equivalent to RMB33,833,000)
to CITIC. The Company and CITIC entered into the second
amendment agreement and supplemental deed fo the original
deed poll regarding the Bonds (the "Second Amendment
Agreement”) on 21 March 2017, the third amendment agreement
and supplement deed fo the original deed poll regarding the
Bonds (the “Third Amendment Agreement”] on 5 June 2017, the
fourth amendment agreement and supplemental deed to the
original deed poll regarding the Bonds (the “Fourth Amendment
Agreement”) on 21 September 2017 to further extend the maturity
date to 22 January 2018 and to revise the principal amount of the
Bonds to approximately HK$304,867,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB254,842,000 based on spot rate on 31
December 2017). On 23 January 2018, the fifth amendment
agreement and supplemental deed to the original deed poll
regarding the Bonds (the “Fifth Amendment Agreement”) to further
extend the maturity date to 21 June 2018 and to revise the
principal amount of the Bonds to approximately HK$278,777,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB233,033,000 based on spot
rate on 31 December 2017).

Details of each of the agreements are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 7 November 2016, 15 November 2016,
16 November 2016, 16 December 2016, 22 March 2017, 5
June 2017, 22 September 2017, 1 December 2017 and 23
January 2018.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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27. BB &m0

KA EHRE - N2 FE mCMNCZ 4 4739,113,000
BT HE RN ARM33,833,000L KT —
tF=ZA=-+—H ARAECNCFTLE
BEEFNE_DEITHERRFEREHRAZE
TE—eslm#l)  R_T—tFARHE "
AVABEBESNFEF=NEITHEREFERE
MARE(FE=NETHZE) R_F—tFAh
A-+—B FIYBEREFNELDNER H#
MRVPERBAEARBE(EOMOETHE] -
NE—FREPEAERE_FT-N\F-A=-+
— B UEBESAZFERER E4304,867,000
BLTREBE-_ZE—tF T -_A=1+—"BRENHE
ERERAOAR®254,842,000L) - R =T —
NE-—RA-+=B FRBEFNELNHERH
ZLRFEZBHARB(ELNETHHED
HEHRE - FPERE_ZT-NFAZ+—
B YWERIEFHN AL RA278,777,00078 T
(RE-_F—tF+-HA=1+— B HEXIA
ER#H ARHK233,033,0007T) °

EEBENFEEHRNARAFTBRAZT—RF
+—AtB - ZZ2—X"FE+—A+HB =%
—R"E+—A+R~"B -ZET—AREFTZA+A
H —E—+F=A=-+=ZB - ZF—+FXAH
EFR -ZZ—+tFhA=-+=H —ZFT—+tF+
“A—BEZE-N\FE-RBZt+=Z=AzR%-
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27. Bonds Payable (Continued) 27. BN &S @
Based on the revised agreements, interest rate are as follows: BELEITNSOnE FIRAT :

Interest rate
per annum

Period H FRR
From 15 November 2016 and up o 14 December 2016 —E-RE+—HAThBEZE

—E-RFET-A+HEH 13%
From 15 December 2016 and up to 14 March 2017 ZE—ARFETZA+REABAE

—E—+HF=A+mWMA 15%
From 15 March 2017 and up to 4 June 2017 —TZ—+tHE=A+HAB=E

—E—tFRAMA 18%
From 5 June 2017 and up to 21 June 2017 —E—t&XARAHEZE

—E—+HFRA=-+—H 13%
From 22 June 2017 and up to 21 September 2017 —E—+tFAZ+=ZHZE

—E—+HFNAA-+—H 18%
From 22 September 2017 and up to 15 November 2017 —E—+tFARZ+ZBHE

—E—+tF+—HAt+HH 13%
From 15 November 2017 and up to 22 January 2018 —E—+F+—A+THBZE

—ZE-NF—-H=-+=H 13%

Note: The above interest shall accrue on a day to day basis and be Wi iRl ES B AL ENFEEESESE
calculated on the basis of a 365-day calendar year on the Reduced 3658 AREXETGHRAFTBZATTEER -

Redemption Amount/revised principal amount and compounded on
a monthly basis.

Under the abovementioned agreements were entered into the BiE M ARRQNRECTICET Y Z W ZEFHH
Company and CITIC, the Bonds are personally guaranteed by Mr. AEERERBRALZT(MELARARATES)
Liu and his spouse Ms. Zhou who are also the direcfors of the EAAER RACTICAR R ABRBARRFTE T
Company, and equity interests in cerfain subsidiaries of the WEBATRE BAEEEAY —EBE2REM &
Company are pledged in favour of CITIC a dredger, and an —EIXEFR—EREEME(FAEAARK
industrial premises and a residential property owned by the Group 279,186,0007C ' BIAME - R R &) °

included in property, plant and equipment with carrying value of

RMB279,186,000.
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27. Bonds Payable (Continued) 27. BN &S @)
The Bonds recognised in the consolidated statement of financia RV BERARERZTRRESTEWDT ¢

position are calculated as follows:

P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Conversion

option

Debt (derivative
component component) Total

B e

($T£EIT A
B2 #H2) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBET T ARETTT ARETTT

As at 1 January 2016 R-_ZE—XRF—F—H 249,553 7,030 256,583
Amortisation using effective PR BB A =R
interest method 30,668 = 30,668
Interest seflement FesgE (3,150) — (3,150)
Changes in fair value NEEE — (7,030) (7,030)
Accrued overdue interests JFE =t 380 HA 5| B 840 — 840
Amounts waived under BIEEEGZENED
the Framework Agreements G| (13,781) — (13,781)
Settlement under the agreements RIEER G HAE (34,453) — (34,453)
Exchange realignment bE A& 16,704 = 16,704
Accrued interests FEET B 4,334 - 4,334
At 31 December 2016 RZZT—RF
+—A=+—H 250,715 = 250,715
Interest Tl B 39,312 39,312
Seftlement # (42,483) - (42,483)
Exchange realignment BE 34 3 B (16,317) — (16,317)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F

+ZA=+—H 231,227 = 231,227
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27. Bonds Payable (Continued) 27. BN &S @
The bonds as the end of the Reporting Periods are represented by: RBEHBREFZHWOT ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT
e

Interest payable within one year included T AE M A FRIE 2
in other payable —FRENFE 849 4,334
Bonds payable within one year —FREMNES 230,378 246,381
231,227 250,715
28. Share Capital 28. 1 Zx
RMB
Number of equivalent
shares Amount amount
AR
K% & A &8 EAE£%E
‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
T B& FET ARETT
Ordinary Shares of HK$0.10 each BREEO. 108 T HY
TR
Authorised EE
Balance atf 1 January 2016, R-ZE—XRF—H—H"
31 December 2016 and 2017 —E-RE+=A
=E+—BRZZE—tF
+TZ A=+ —HMN&EH 10,000,000 1,000,000 N/A
Issued and fully paid ERTRAER
Balance af 1 January 2016 RZZBE—RFE—H—B®
FEg S 1,232,064 123,206 102,045
Placing of shares (nofe B & By (K at) 246,000 24,600 21,438
Balance at 31 December 2016 and W =T — /X4
2017 +ZA=+—BX
—T—+F
+TZ A=+ —HM&EH 1,478,064 147,806 123,483
Note: On 24 November 2016, the share placings of 246,000,000 W - R-_ZT—A"E+—A_-+WE ARAITKE
shares of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.35 were it & 8 & f& f% 15 0.357% Jt B2 & 246,000,000 %
completed. The net proceeds from the placing was approximately B o Bo & 2 BT 18 ;B F 58 4 A 86,100,000/

HK$86.1 million (equivalent to approximately RMBZ5.0 million). T (HBERH ARE75,000,0007T) °
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29. Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

(i)  Minimum lease payments paid

—tF+tA=t—BLHFE

29. KEHE

AEEEREHEA
i) ENREEERE

2017 2016
—E—tF —TNE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETT

Minimum lease payments paid under operating

e

FARER **fﬁ’la?iﬁﬂ’]

leases during the year: HIEBERIEA
Office premises NELYES 6,249 1,128
Transportation vessels i & i A 556 3,741
6,805 4,869

(i) Minimum lease payment commitments

At the end of the Reporting Period,

committed to make the following future minimum lease

the Group was

(i) REAEREAE
R R & SR - A o T R B B 9 0 7
HWAEMEOTAEHELBEES T

payments under non-cancellable operating leases for office RS ERE
premises which fall due as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBT T
EE——
Within one year —E R 414 929
In the second fo fifth years, inclusive E_EZFRHF
(BEERME) 326 326
740 1,255

The leases for office premises are generally negotiated for a

ferm between one fo fen years.

MAEMEHERBERER —E+F-
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29. Operating Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Renfal income from chartered vessels earned during the year was
RMB5,094,000 (2016: RMB6,208,000). The chartered vessels

have committed tenants for the next one to two years.

30. Capital Commitments

29. KEHE )

AEEEREEA

FREMEEMMRBRONESBRARARE
5,094,000t (= & — R F - A B #6,208,000
) FBEEMmMMAEREAREEE —=E=FmHil
Eo

30. EAAIE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Capital commitments contracted but nof BRI AVME W AR5 A T & HET
provided for relafing fo the following: RBENE A :
Acquisition of property, plant and WEMZ  BE R
equipment (nofe (i) (e 2 (i) 65,702 118,809
Investment in conducting capital REETESTREE
financing business (nofe (i) (B &£ (i) 7,122 7,122

Notes:

(i) Pursuant fo the investment agreement fo set up a wholly owned
subsidiary which principally conducts capital finance business, the
proposed registered capital of US$20 million will be contributed
in proportion to the respective equity holdings of the Company
and two other investors of US$16 million, US$2 million and US$2
million respectively. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, capital
of US$14.9 million was injected by the Group whilst the other two
investors are still in progress in obtaining approval from regulators for
capital injection.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group started
fo construct a hotel in Yancheng, the PRC and is expected to be
completed at the end of 2018.

(i) BERITZETEACREBLZEMNELR
Al H) & 15 % 0 225 Ak i & 220,000,000 7T
HHARRRBIMEREERS B 2RHE
% Bl 1 & 16,000,000 7T + 2,000,000% T &
2000000 L - R=ZE—tEFER T —RF
+TZA=+—8  ARFEEA14,900000%
T MBAIREREEDERTERSEE A
P HEAE -

il RBE-—T-—RNE+-A=+—-BLEE I
CERKEPREREE -—RBE 2 ITREE
AR - NFFRERTK -

—Z—HF 3R Annual Report 2017
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31. Pledge of Assets J.EEHR
At the end of the Reporting Period, the following assefs of the RBERR AEEEBUTEEEAEAR
Group were pledged fo secure bank borrowings, bonds payable FTAREBENRETEE ENEEREEENIER
and credit facilities granted to the Group during the year: A
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —F—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTTT

e

FEFEBRRZERAR 2 7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Dredgers included in property, plant and Zem (FI AW -
equipment BV &) 943,613 058,777
Properties included in property, plant and BFGIAYME - BE Rk&H)
equipment [see note 2.7) (RHt7E27) 39,006 -
Prepaid land lease payments EEDIE R 83,186 85,660
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMRRITER - 15,000
1,065,805 1,059,437
In addition, as at 31 December 2017, the Group's bank I RZF—+F+-_A=+—H & H
borrowing to the extent of RMB149,000,000 (2016: AR B14900000m(ZZFE—~"F: ARK
RMB17,415,000) was secured by one of the Group’s dredgers 17,415,0007T) R 1T & E Jh B 2 & B 1 {E 1K 47
with @ carrying amount of RMB223,477,000 (2016: RHETEAE ARBK223 4770007 (=T — X
RMB226,643,000) being held as a collateral. Details of such F o ARBED26 643,0007T) H) — 5812 B M8 1E 3K

bank borrowing are sef out in Note 25. o FRITEE R IBER AN E25 -
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32. 3R K& R

AEETFHEMBEARNES  ZATEMBT K

32. Retirement Benefit Plans

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017

of a statemanaged retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local government in the PRC. The Group is required to confribute a
specified percentage of payroll cost to the refirement benefit
scheme fo fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the scheme is fo make the specified contributions

according fo the state rules.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
refirement scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
fo make confributions fo the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 (2016: HK$30,000). Contributions to the scheme

vest immediately.

33. Related Party Disclosures

(i) Related party transactions

During the vear, the Group paid renfals of RMB96,000
[2016: RMB96,000) fo certain companies controlled by
M. Liu in respect of office premises.

In addition, the Group received other advances from, and
made repayments to, Mr. liv during the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016. As at 31 December 2017,
the amount due to Mr. Liu was RMB6,798,000 (2016:
RMB26,499,000).

FRENBRERRABANEOKE - AE
B 7R 1R 3 & B X B0 RFE B 0 AR R AR I 5 81 it
R REMNEHRES AKEHZFENE—F
TEREBEEZFZAELEAEEHRRK -

R R B QTS A B RO (F B AP 5485
B) AREREARBHRIETHREREZER
HEABEFE([RESFE])  BESHEE
—EHRBILEEATENREH/RIFORNKETE -
RERESHE BEIRERASAZERN
BB AzS%mBEest 80 B A ZHH
YA £ 730,000/ 7T (= F — /X4 : 30,0008
TO) e st EIH A RENEFRE o

B AELRE

) BELFXS

FA AKERBRAENER BB L EE
HleETRAXNEEARKE,000T
(ZE—RF: AR¥96,0007T) °

o BHEZE—+FR=ZT—R~"F+=
A=+—HLEE AEEEEREE L
EZHEMBREEREEEEREE - R
—E—+E+-A=+—H ERNBLE
HIEAARES,7980007T (=8 — K&
AR #26,499,0007T) °



R4 RAPR A F China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited .

]

i

FEl

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

33. Related Party Disclosures (Continved)

i)

(iii)

(iv)

Pledge of assets and guarantees in
support of the Group’s borrowings

As at 31 December 2017 and 20106, other than pledge of
assets of the Group, the Group’s bank borrowings and

bonds payable were also supported by:

[a)  corporate guarantee given by Xiangyu PRC;

[b)  personal guarantees provided by Mr. Liu and Ms.
Zhou; and

[c)  two properties owned by certain non-controlling
shareholders of the Company's subsidiary.

Bank borrowing of the Group of RMB88 million (2016:
RMB@8 million) was supported by a property owned by a

company in which Mr. Liu has beneficial interest.

Related party balances

Details of the balances due to directors are set out in Note

23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of directors who are also identified as
members of key management of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in Note 12 fo the consolidated

financial statements.

. EAEFEE @)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

AXRBAEAEEEREELENE
EEFRER
R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—"HE-_ZT—
F+-—A=1+—"H8 BRAEBEFEE
S REBETEERENES AT
BEERHE:

() AFHEELNDEER

b) BlxERBERZEIREHEOBEAER: &

[c) ANRBMERESETIEZERKRE
BRMEBEME -

AEE-ZRTEE R ARKS8,000,000
T(ZFE—7RF: AR%¥98,0000007T)
TR EEREEEaEAEN —HARES
B —TBMETIASH °

BAE 5 4 B
PN EF S ERNGA M REM
23 ©

TEEEEREFHMN

RBEME AESFRAEEIZEEE
KRENEEMEH NG M IBERRME
12
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34. Capital Risk Management M. EXxmEEER

The Group manages ifs capifal to ensure that the group companies
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
retum fo shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. Having considered the factors and circumstance
set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient liquidity fo
meet ifs cash flows requirements for next twelve months from the
end of Reporting Period.

The capifal sfructure of the Group consists of amounts due fo non-
confrolling inferests of a subsidiary, bank borrowings, other
borrowings and bonds payable as disclosed in Notes 24, 25, 26
and 27 fo the consolidated financial statements respectively and
equity atributable to shareholders of the Company, comprising
paid up capital /share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost and the risks associated
with each class of the capital. Based on the recommendations of
the Direcfors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

AEBEEREAFEEETHNARAGUFEL
2 RABBEE(LEBERAFEHABRRSE XK
RAEHK BEFEHINGZAPBEHRRME22
AELER EEEMAEERHEERRAR
HESTUBRNEARESHAREARK T @A

MBREREFE -

AEBNBEAEBEBRED NG A M BRERN
FE24 - 25 26} 27 B FR WO FE 5 — T Y /B8 & &) 3F
TiEmRIE RITBE HoEEREMNE
o URARBBRREE RS BREEHELRS
P S B fei 16

EXTHRNEAER (FRRIN—®o &
EEFEANKARE - BEARH SRR -
REEFHNEZ  AREKEBINERE - #17
MR RBETHEXBRBRITES FEAREER
EEEAREE-
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35. Financial Instruments

35. €@ T A
) €@ T BEEHR

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET ARET T
Financial assets SEEE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERkERZE(BERERE
and cash equivalents) +EEW) 1,380,424 1,465,888
Financial liabilities ctEAas
Amortised cost )N 1,148,559 1,416,231

(b) Financial risk management objectives b) HERREEEERBE

and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include accounts
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, accounts and other payables, amounts
due fo direcfors, amounts due to non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary, bank borrowings, other borrowings and bonds
payable. Defails of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market, credit and liquidity risks.
The policy on how fo mitigate these risks is sef out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a fimely

and effective manner.

FEENTEZsRMIARERERRE
Hib e - S|P RITHER - RITHER
ERE BNEREEMEMNK BNE
ERE BN -—EHNBRARFERES
RERITEE HOEERENES-
ZETMTANFBERSHAAMEF
KR -HzEemIAMBENERRBED
5 EERRBDESER - A HNFARK
ZERBOBRANTX EEEETER
ERZTRAR - ARERKE KB B R E
R
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35. Financial Instruments (Continued) 35. &/ T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BMEEKEREBZERBE®

and policies (Continued)

Market risk ™ 35 & Bz

(i)  Currency risk (i) E¥mEbk
The Group has foreign currency transactions, which AEBGFEEIINERS  BRAEBAE
expose the Group fo foreign currency risk. The AZIINERERE - ARAT BN EEER
Company will consider the use of foreign currency E BB AN R BIE 4R RRE R o
forward contracts to mitigate the risk when the need
arise.
At the end of the Reporting Period, the carrying RBEHR BEEEREBEANNHMN
amounts of foreign currency denominated monetary INEGTENEREERAERE
assefs and liabilities that are considered significant by N

the management are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE 8&
2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—+tF ZZ—RF —ZEB—tF ZT—1F
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT AR®BTR AREBTTT

I .

us$ ETT 43 46 - -
HK$ BT 627 399 284,647 286,075

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017
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35. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table defails the Group's sensifivity to a 5%
(2016: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional
currency of the relevant group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies and all other variable were
held constant 5% (2016: 5%) represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensifivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusfs their
franslation af the end of the year for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. On this basis, there will be an
increase in postax profit where the functional
currency of the relevant group entities weaken against
US$ by 5% or strengthen against HK$ by 5%, and

vice versa.

—tF+tA=t—BLHFE

35. €@ T A

*
=}

E

b) BEEREERZERBE®

™ 5 &l B (&)

(i)

15 W | B (48)
TRHFLMBEMAIEHERERT
BENBEAT AREHAREEER
MREER LA INE LA R TR
S5%(ZF—RF 5% BNBREE 5%
(ZE-—RF:SHREEBHRINE
FERMAIEA AL E B E L AORT M - 8
REDITRABEUIINEFENRE
NE%EE - i#ii?fﬁ?l\ﬁ%l‘i?ﬁ
BOo%HEHRGE - E EMEET
ﬁ%ﬁ%@%%ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ]ﬁ‘é%%ﬁ%mﬂz
B5% BT £ 5% Bi& &R FI
BN RZIRA e

Increase (decrease)
in post-tax profit

us$ e
HK$ BT

Bt #20% R 38 i CRi 2>)

2017 2016

—g—t% —T-AF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T
I

2 2

(14,201) (14,284)

In the opinion of the Direcfors, the sensitivity analysis
above is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

EEZRRLABRESTL TR
RAEERRR REZFRERL
TR 2 F R
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35. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rafe risk in relation fo variable-rate bank balances for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and
a variabletate bank borrowing carrying prevailing
inferest rates at LPR (see Note 25) for the year ended
31 December 2017 and 2016. In addition, the
Group was also exposed fo fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings, other
borrowings, bonds payable, amounts due to non-
controlling inferests of a subsidiary, certain accounts
receivables and pledged bank deposits as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant inferest rate exposure should the need

arise.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reasonably possible
change in interest rates for bank balances and the
variablerate bank borrowing is insignificant. No

sensifivity analysis is presented.

Credit risk

At the end of the reporting date, the Group's maximum

exposure fo credit risk which would cause a financial loss fo

the Group due fo failure by the counferparties to discharge

an obligation was arising from the carrying amount of the

respective recognised financial assefs as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position, especially from

the long due accounts receivables.

35. €@ I A @)

(b)

BEERMREERERBEE @

™ 5 & B (&)

(ii)

F 2= [ B
BHE_Z—tFEZT—RF+=
A=T—BLFE AEEXTZEAX
ERAEHMNERTEBNRESRE
MERBEBEE-_ZEZ—FtER_-Z
—ANF+_A=+—BLEFEHRE
WMITERERN R 2 ZBF R
BE(RHRFE25) - loh - RZT—+
FRZE—AF+ZA=+—8"
REBE AR A B EEREBITHE
E HEMmEE EBHES B —E
B AR e R IE & TRK
REREEBETTEROAFEFR
R ko

RE BB &N K HBEK R
- EREERNERER  IHRE
BREBHPERNNEER -

EFERA RUBHBRFHA KRR
THEEMNXTEHANAEZH T
Ko UBBREEZ D -

FERE
REBEHR AEBEAH T KERTE

TERARBEMBRIAMEHNRREER

I

Bk THREGEMBERARARERE
BReMEENEHZE  FhHEAHE
A Z EWRFK o

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017 .
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35. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Because of the nature of its dredging, water management
and marine related businesses, the Group normally transacts
with large PRC state-owned companies, local governments
and large private enferprises with solid financial
background, and hence the customer base is typically small.
The management of the Company has delegated a team
responsible for performing background check before
acceptance of new projects and defermination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Most of the customers have been
cooperating with the Group for many years and are
maintaining good relationship with the Group. Due fo its
small number of custfomers, management regularly visits each
cusfomer fo ensure that there is no dispute on the amounts
due and understand reasons for delaying repayment. In
case repayment fall behind schedule, the management
discusses with each of the customers for committing
repayment in reasonable time. In case customers are not
able fo commit repayment in reasonable time, the
management of the Company assesses impairment losses by
faking reference fo expected repayment amounts and dafes
and respecfive effective inferest rate of individual customer.
The management also reviews the recoverable amount of
individual customer regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amountfs.
Based on the settlement history of the major customers, the
Direcfors consider that the Group's credit risk on frade

receivables has been properly addressed.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

35. €@ T A um)
b) BEREMEEERERBE @)

EER B @)
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BEEEHE ETAERERSEEMLA
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35. €@ T A um)
b) BEEMEERZERBE @)

35. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) £ B & b2 (@)

The Group also has a significant concentration of credit risk AEETHSEAESEPAMN TNIE
in relation to ifs frade cusfomers as follows: AEESF R :
2017 2016
—E-tF — TR
% %

J& W B K& P IR FE

a percentage fo tofal accounts receivables RIBAERNE DL 16 18
Amount due from the five largest customers as  fE U 7 K & F 7RI (5 FE UL
RIBRENBE DL 51 51

Amount due from the largest customer as

a percentage fo fotal accounts receivables

As mentioned above, the number of customers is small. Due
to its small number, management regularly visits each
customer fo ensure that there is no dispute on the amounts
due. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's

concentration of credit risk is mitigated.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements fo ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash reserves to meet ifs liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term. Having considered the foctors
and circumsfances set out in Nofe 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficient liquidity fo meet its cash flows
requirements for the next twelve months from the end of the
Reporting Period.

The following tables defail Group's contractual maturity for
its financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based

on the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to

[y

The tables include both inferest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing interest rafe

af the end of the reporting date.

BMMIA EFrt - RPHERD - HREHK
BL EEREETHRISEPUBRRTE
RZERURRBELMD -SRI T - &
ER/AKEFESTRARDHEE-

REBESER
AEBZBRRAEHMERBAIRAR 2R
BHETH K KMERAKELEFTEHAR
CRENEBNEERHRBEENRDEST
K- RBEBGAVBREME2AHARER
RIERE EXEEMAKEREEGRAR
BESUAMEERSHRETARKT @
AMEEREFTHK

TRAJNAKESRABENSOIIHA -
ZRDBEBEASEANFOKF B HIRR
EREENARRRRERERA -

ZREFNEERAZHSRE - EFNER
ERFBMERMATRET - KRB A
BEHRNBITNESH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE—ZF—+tF+-_A=1+—HIEFE
35. Financial Instruments (Continued) 35. 2/ T B )
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BiFE B EE B ZRBEK @
and po||C|es (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBE SRR @
Liquidity and interest risk tables RBESRFRERR
Weighted On
average  demand/ Total
effective  lessthan 3 monthsto 1 yearto Over undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 2 years cash flows amount
mEFE  REXR/ =ZfAE FAERRE
ERA=E SRZ{EA -5 -EEWE WEAL RELE  RELHE

% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT AR%TR AR¥TR AR%Txn AR®TR AR¥TR

At 31 December 2017 RZE—LF

+=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabiliies F474 % B8 &
Accounts payables RS - 169,064 - - - 169,064 169,064
Other payables Hi M 5E
[excluding current portion of (T BETaR
convertible bonds) Bz EEH) - 198,870 - - - 198,870 198,870
Amounts due to directors ENESHE - 9,602 - - - 9,602 9,602
Amounts due fo noncontrolling  FEff —RI KT B 2
interests of a subsidiary iy Hﬂféﬁ%’}(
— nonvinterest bearing — B - 1,838 - 57,887 - 59,725 59,725
— inferest bearing at — RETEH XA
fixed rates 12 - - 11,609 - 11,609 10,365
Bank borrowings RITEE
— inferests bearing af — RETEH XA
fixed rates 5.25 29,377 195,053 70,794 - 295,224 288,192
— inferests bearing af —RFHF XA
floating rate 5.65 10,030 27,246 27,279 21,976 86,531 83,000
Other borrowings HiEE
— norvinterest bearing — B - 4,527 - - - 4,527 4,527
— inferest bearing at — RETEF XA
fixed rates 12 60,000 - 39,016 - 99,016 94,836
Bonds payable Rt E5 15.7 - 251,330 - - 251,330 230,378

483,308 473,629 206,585 21,976 1,185,498 1,148,559
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE =T —+tF + = A =1+—

35. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

BIEFE
35. €@ T A um)
b) BEEMEERZERBE @)

REE £ E @)
REBE S RFZERER (E)

Weighted On
average demand/ Total
effective lessthan 3 months fo 1 year fo Over undiscounted Carrying
inferest rafe 3 months 1 year 2 years 2 years cash flows amount
TS RER/ =Rz ABREE
ERME  LR=EA —F —FERFE WERL mEEHE FHeE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARBTT ARETR
At 31 December 2016 R=B-X%
T=B=t-BH
Non-derivative financial liabilities 4742 &8 &
Accounts payables JER R - 189,097 - - - 189,097 189,097
Other payables it M FE
[excluding current portion of (FERARK
convertible bonds) 52 B 7) ~ 239014 57035 - - 296,049 296,049
Amounts due fo directors ERESHE - 28,480 - - - 28,480 28,480
Amounts due fo noncontrolling I — IRt E 2 &
interests of a subsidiary FRREDTA
— noninterest bearing - Fit8 - 2,476 - 56,967 - 59,443 50,443
— inferest bearing at — REEHEH S
fixed rates 12 = = 11,922 = 11,922 10,644
Bank borrowings RIS
— inferesfs bearing af — REEHEH S
fixed rates 4.97 157,903 322,775 = = 480,678 467,800
— inferests bearing af ~ REBFEH S
floating rate 6.4 — 17,415 — — 17,415 17,415
Other borrowings HibfE &
— noninterest bearing - Fit8 - 3,538 - - - 3,538 3,538
— inferest bearing at — REEHEH S
fixed rates 12 = 70,400 = = 70,400 07,384
Bonds payable FEf 5 15 288,054 = = = 288,054 246,381
908,562 467,625 68,889 = 1,445,076 1,416,231
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

35. Financial Instruments (Continued) 35. W T A
(c) Fair value () AFE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are TRHEENCHAEENATFENBREAR
defermined in accordance with generally accepted pricing EEBEAZBERRBESREN T FH
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices REFABRMS RS BERIANEEREA
or rafes from observable current market fransactions as input. B MEE -
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EERRREHKAFTENERA U B RE
assets and financial liabilities measured ot amortised costs in rENEREERSCREENRESRENA
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair HEAFEMBSE -
values.

36. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from . HREETEMELEAGBZHIR

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TR AR E MEEIMELCEGE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash B BiERLRERSES BAREETHHREL
changes. liabiliies arising from financing activities are those for BEARSTNEY(HBRRERER)RNES
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in RO ARB I ARESRE %8
the Group's consolidated sfatement of cash flows as cash flows & o

from financing activities.

Amounts Amounts due

due to to non-
directors  controlling Non
Bank Other Bonds of the interest of controlling
Borrowings Borrowings payable Company  subsidiary interest Total

e BN —RKE
AN AEFER FER

RITEE HfEE ENEF ESRE EERE & st
RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTRT ARBTI AR®Tr ARETT ARBTI AR%BTx
(Note 25) (Note 26] ~ [Note 27]  (Note 23) (Note 24)

(Mez25)  (Kfat26) (KHat27)  (HfaE23) (Hfaz24)

At 1 January 2017 R=ZT—+F

—A—H 485,215 100,922 250,715 28,480 70,087 160,136 1,095,555
Financing cash flows BER &R E (137,192) (7,186)  (42,483)  (18,878) (1,969) (4,456)  (212,164)
Interest expenses MELZH 23,169 5,627 39,312 — 1,972 — 70,080
Results shared by non- JF 42 % 4% &5
controlling interest FE(h & - - - - - 1,164 1,164
Foreign exchange ~ E X E
translation — — (16,317) — — — (16,317)

At 31 December RZZE—+F
2017 +=-B=+—H 371,192 99,363 231,227 9,602 70,090 156,844 938,318
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37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 7. TEMB AR

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of AATRBERHRNDTERNBATIEFBLOT -

the Reporting Period are as follows:

Country of Issued and fully
operation and date paid ordinary share  Attributable equity
of incorporation/ capital/ registered interest indirectly held by

Name of subsidiary establishment capital the Company Principal activities Form of company
EEERREM BRTRAZEER ARARABEEED
WEAREH BRI/R LKA 8 RE/ERER P4 1 TEXH RAFR
2017 2016
Bt ZE-RF
I
Jiangsu Jicolong Salvage Harbour ~ PRC RMB72,754,776 51% 51% Provision of marine hoising,  Limited liability
Engineering Co. lid.* 22 July 1977 installafion and other
engineering services
IHERETEMBIRERAR #H AR REEBEREZE 15 ARE(E
—htt# 72,7547767C REMIERSE
tA=+=H
Jiongsu Xingyu Environment Protection PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Provision of dredging services  Limited liability
Company Limited* 20 March 2016
IHEATRRRRERAH HE AREK REGE RS BREE
“ERE 10,000,0007C
=A=tA
Jiongsu Xiangyu Environment PRC US$75,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of dredging ~ Wholly-owned foreign
Protection Equipment Co. Lid.* 18 August 2013 machines enferprise
IEATRRRBBERAA HE 75,000,000 HET e NEBELR
—2-=F e
NA+NR
Jiangsu Xingyu Holdings Group PRC RMB39,315,800 nofe ii nofe i Provision of dredging services  Limited liability

Limited* ("PRC Operational 13 July 2007
Entity”) (note i)

THETEREBEERDA e AR¥% (Kr&tii) (i) REERRY BREE
(mEgLER)) (M) —22+F 39,315,8007T
tAtT=R
Jiongsu Xiangyu Port Consfructing ~ PRC US$80,000,000 100% 100% Provision of dredging sevices  Wholly-owned foreign
Project Administration Company 11 June 2010 enferprise
Limited* (Xiangyu PRC") [nofe il
IHEATERIREEARAA TH 80,000,000 REGRRT NEBELR

(AE4E) (M)  —2-%F AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (confinved)

7. T EMBE QA AFE @

Country of Issued and fully
operation and date paid ordinary share  Attributable equity
of incorporation/ capital/ registered interest indirectly held by
Name of subsidiary establishment capital the Company Principal activities Form of company
LEEARREM BRORAZEAR ARAMERAN
WELAREH BRI/ H A8 BE/EREE P4k IR i IREH DAKR
2017 2016
ZE-t§ ZZ5F
L
Jiongsu Xiangyu Water Management PRC US$73,000,000 100% 100% Provision of dredging and Wholly-owned foreign
Company Limited* 3 August 2011 water management services  enferprise
IHEATKBERAT HE 73,000,000 REMARKBERRYE HBBEALE
—£—f e
NA=H
Power Wealth Engineering Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100%  Invesiment holding and Limited liability
3 July 2002 provision of dredging
consuliation services
NEIRBRAA BA 100,000 REZRREERAHDA AREE
“TTCE BT R#%
tA=H
Jiangsu Fengyu Property Development PRC RMB66,000,000 100% 100%  Property development and Limited liability
Company Limited* 4 December 2013 invesiment
IHETEXFRAR HE AR% NEEEREE BRERE
—T-=% 66,000,0007T
T-AWmA
Yancheng Juranzhijia Home Building  PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Property management Limited liability
Material Commercial 15 June 2016
Management Limited*
EREARZXRERM P AR® NEEE BREME
ARERFRAA =T NE 1,000,0007¢
ANATEH
Jiangsu Xingyu Commerce Company  PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Inacfive Limited liability
Limited* 16 Apiil 2015
THEFHBERAT HE AR% REBERH BRAEME
I ik 10,000,0007E

MA+RA
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37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Confinved)

Country of Issued and fully
operation and date paid ordinary share
of incorporation/ capital/ registered

7. TENBERAAFE @

Attributable equity
interest indirectly held by

Name of subsidiary establishment capital the Company Principal activities Form of company
EEERNEMR BRORAZEAR ARAMEEEN
WELAREH BRI/ K A8 BRE/EREE P4t IR 1 IREH RAFR
2017 2016
—E-tF ZE-R%E
L
Huaian Shi Xiangyu Technology ~ PRC US$20,000,000 80% 80% lending and venure capital  Limited liability

Microfinance Ltd*

EZTATRBBEER
BRAA

Jiongsu Xiangyu Environmental
Protection Industy Development
Lig*

IEATRRERER
BRAA

Jiongsu Lifu Infrastructure Construction
Co., lid*
IHENEERRRBRAA

11 September 2016

& 20,000,000
—Z-RE e
NA+—H

PRC US$50,000,000

27 August 2016

HE 50,000,000
—T-RE =Y
NAZ++H

PRC US$49,980,000
25 June 2012

a 49,980,000
S e

—+hH

100%

100%

financing business in the
technology secior
RETEEERBEES

100% Inacfive

RELEXRT

100% Inactive

Limited liability

BREE

Limited liability

BREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (confinved)

The a

bove table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the

opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of

the Group. To give defails of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

*

Notes:

(i

(i)

for identification only

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the Reporting Period, or at any time during the year.

Consolidated structured entity

PRC laws and regulations prohibit or restrict foreign investors from
owning more than 50% equity interest in any enterprise which owns
vessels for conducting dredging business.

On 19 April 2011, Xiangyu PRC, the PRC Operational Entity and
its respective equity participants, being Mr. Lliv and Ms. Zhou
entered info a series of agreements (the “Confractual Arangements”).
The PRC Operational Entity is engaged in the provision of dredging
services of the Group.

Key provisions of the Contractual Arrangements are as follows:
Option Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou entered
into an exclusive option agreement ("Option Agreement’) whereby
Mr. Lliv and Ms. Zhou have irevocably granted Xiangyu PRC an
option to acquire, directly or through one or more nominees, the
entire equity interest held by Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou in PRC
Operational Entity at a price (“Acquisition Cost”) equivalent to the
fair market value of such equity inferest or, where applicable, the
amount as permitted by the applicable PRC laws. The Acquisition
Cost, when received, will be contributed by Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
fo Xiangyu PRC as capital surplus. Subject to the compliance with
the PRC laws, Xiangyu PRC may exercise the optfion at any time, in
respect of all or part of the equity interest of PRC Operational Entity
and in any manner at its sole discretion.

7. T EMBE QA AFE @

ERBIEERREAEBEXEREERER
FEZARENBAR -BEERA WHEHIEM
MEBARZFBER<SREER TR -

* EHRHSE

(i) RIRE R HRFRERERE - HEME R
BEMBTEMERBEES

i) BffEBEER

BE 2 IR E 2R LR IR ) S B 4R B A A
BREAETREAXGENOMMENERTRERESB
50% H L #E -

RZE——FWA+IAE BAFHE HEELE
EREEEZ2EKET (AN EERARXRL)FIL—
ZomE((GHORE]D) HEEEERREIRM
REB B BURETS

ZEANTHNEIZGEROT
BB R =

ATHE PEEEERR EERBRLZL
—EBERERERS ((BRERZ]D B 2E
EREAREAAHEMAAFTRERT —RE
BRENEZIEB - BXZERRBARBER
% B B A S T (B 3 R R B R HEE B BURR
(m@Em) W ER(TRBRADWREREERE
HEINFREKEERTH N I RE - WK
ARWRREHEEERAZLTAAFHEX
NEREARRYG - AT HEA 2 EEENEM
B st R B S B 2 30 s B0 0 AR DA (]
ARITEBRE ERETHBEEAENRE
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37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Confinved)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) (Continued)

7. T EM B2 AFE @
Biat - (88)

(ii) (&)

Option Agreement (Continued)

Pursuant fo the Option Agreement, each of PRC Operational Entity,
M:r. Liu and/or Ms. Zhou has given undertakings that it shall perform

certain acts, or refrain from performing certain other acts unless with

the prior written consent of Xiangyu PRC, including but not limited o

the below matters:

(a)

(b)

c)

(d]

le)

(f

that PRC Operational Entity shall not alter its constitutional
documents or ifs registered capital;

that any of PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and/or Ms. Zhou
shall not incur any indebtedness or guarantee (other than
those incurred in the ordinary course of business and
disclosed to and approved by Xiangyu PRC in advancel;

that PRC Operational Enfity shall not provide any loan or
guarantee fo any third parties;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not dispose of or create
encumbrances over any part of its assets, business or revenue
and that Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou shall not dispose of or create
encumbrances over the equity interest held by them in PRC
Operational Entity, except the security created under the
Equity Pledge Agreement (as defined in (ii) below);

that PRC Operational Entity shall not enter into any material
contracts over cerfain amount other than those in its ordinary
course of business and disclosed fo and approved by
Xiangyu PRC in advance;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not distribute any dividend
(including any undistributed attributable profit payable to the
entity’s shareholders prior to the Option Agreement becoming
effective) to its shareholders and that Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou
underfake that such undistributed profit shall be refained in
PRC Operational Enfity as its capital and/or reserved fund
and shall give up and assign or transfer to Xiangyu PRC any
dividend declared and distributed thereafter and payable to
them by virtue of their holding of the equity interest in PRC
Operational Entity;

R 1R R 15 5 ()

REERERE TRLLER JRER X
AZtExa%i#E BRIFEESAFTHREMNEL
EERE ERETETOIRINRETET
HEMTR BEERNRNTSIERE:

a)

(b

()

(d)

le)

(f)

TEKEERS T ENEEETEXMHH
HiEMER

TREEER BEERHALLTER
— IR T EELEEMERLERG K
XBREFEERBRARAATFBEE
BREHEPEERIN)

TEEEERETEREME =S RM
EA R R IR

TREKEERETEREREE  XBX
W ERSBO KR TERARE - B
BAERAXLITERERSN T EHE
EEEBRANRENRMBEIERERLE
HERBEERERHECERRTX)DRE
B BR 5P

TEEEERK TSI VBES T
WERBERGH - EREBEXRBBRET
7] 32 R 4R A A A T e B R BR O 2 At A Y
BHIBRIN

TEEEERBTERERRDIRER
B B (B 15 00 BB AR 1o 7 £ R BT (E T R
& B A M 2 B CR B MR s A1) - R BISE A&
KA £ A2 S AR5 KR A K B E
REERRBEEEARAR LRBEES
Kot 2 3 (/) A P B 5 IR o 8B {E A
HBEEREDIRN ZRERPELER
BRANRENEMNESHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e

Bt 75 R 2R Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z =

37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (confinved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Option Agreement (Continued)

g that PRC Operational Entity shall not make investment or
engage in any merger or acquisition transactions; and

(h)  that ot the request of Xiangyu PRC, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
shall appoint such persons nominated by Xiangyu PRC to act
as the directors, supervisors and senior management

members of PRC Operational Entity.

The Option Agreement became effective on 19 April 2011 and will
expire on the dafe on which all the equity inferests held by Mr. Liu
and Ms. Zhou in PRC Operational Entity are transferred to Xiangyu

PRC and/or its nomineels).

Proxy Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou entered
into a proxy agreement (“Proxy Agreement”| pursuant fo which Mr.
Liv and Ms. Zhou have unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken
to authorise such person(s) as designated by Xiangyu PRC (being
PRC citizens) to exercise the shareholders’ rights in relation to
appointment of proxy and exercise of vofing rights in PRC
Operational Entity under the articles of association of PRC
Operational Entity and the applicable PRC laws. Such shareholders’
rights include but not limited fo (i) calling and attending the
shareholders’ meetings of PRC Operational Entfity; (i) exercising the
voting rights on all matters requiring the consideration and approval
of shareholders and those pursuant fo articles of association of PRC
Operational Entity.

Before Xiangyu PRC acquires the entire equity inferests in PRC
Operational Entity contemplated under the Option Agreement,
Xiangyu PRC can exercise the voting rights of shareholders of PRC
Operational Entity.

The term of the Proxy Agreement commenced on 19 April 2011
and will expire on 18 April 2026, and will be renewable at the
election of Xiangyu PRC for successive terms of 10 years each until
termination by Xiangyu PRC with a 30-day prior nofice to PRC
Operational Entity.

—tF+tA=t—BLHFE

7. T EMBE QA AFE @

Hf et
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37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Confinved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Composite Services Agreement

Xiangyu PRC and PRC Operational Entity entered into an exclusive
composife services agreement (“Composite Services Agreement”)
pursuant to which PRC Operational Entity will exclusively engage
Xiangyu PRC to provide consuliation and other ancillary services in
enterprise management and consultancy services, dredging project
management and consultancy services.

In consideration of the provision of the aforementioned services by
Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity agrees to pay to Xiangyu PRC
fees on an annual basis in arrears. Fees payable to Xiangyu PRC by
PRC Operational Entity will be equivalent to the tfotal audited
revenue less all the related cosfs, expenses, faxes and sfafufory
reserve of PRC Operational Entity. Xiangyu PRC reserves the right fo
identify the itfems of expenses fo be included as related expenses
when calculating the fees payable by PRC Operational Entity and is
entifled o adjust the fee payable by PRC Operational Entity anytime
based on the volume of service provided.

Pursuant to the Composite Services Agreement, PRC Operational
Entity shall not without the prior written consent of Xiangyu PRC to
dispose of or pledge its material assefs, operation rights and/or
business; alter ifs registered capital; alter its scope of business;
declare dividends; and/or remove any of its directors and senior
management members. Pursuant to the Composite Services
Agreement, Xiangyu PRC is required fo pay to PRC Operational
Entity a surety amount of not less than HK$22,276,000 for the
performance of its services provided to PRC Operational Entity under
the Composite Services Agreement. As a security for the due
payment of the consultation service fees and repayment of the surety
money by PRC Operational Enfity to Xiangyu PRC under the
Composite Services Agreement, PRC Operational Entity has agreed
fo pledge its inferest in the three vessels owned or (as the case may
be) jointly-owned by it to Xiangyu PRC.

The term of the Composite Services Agreement commenced from 19
April 2011, and will expire on 18 April 2026, which will be
renewable at the request of Xiangyu PRC for successive ferms of 10
years each until termination by Xiangyu PRC with a 30-day prior
written nofice to PRC Operational Entity.

7. TENBRAAFE @

ez - ()

(i)

(&)
R R &

ATHERTFECEERIT L HBREAR
BE (e R HRED B PEEEERE
BERZEATHTEREXERE RFEARS 0
REBEERF ARG REEAREMEER
% o

ZRIAFPEEHN LEARS  PRHELLE
BRAESFANATHTRAINEHNER - 7 H
REBRBENATHTENEAKEREEZK
SRBERMETELEEBARRA Fx
BREEFB BETEHEERERENNE
AR AFTRERBEZEMNERSIEFBARX
MR X IR B - A AR IR AT IR 4 ) AR 75 B BE B
HERESEERENNER -

REGAREHBE PREEERE AN RR
FAFHEEENEBRZF - HERERE
EAMEE KERR /S EH: BoHEEM
EARFHAEBEE: SRRE: RHER
HENEEREREEEKE - RES SRS
W ATFEARATELEEBINNER
22,276,0007 Tt {E & E R IEAR & RS 10 3 M
HELERBTRBORES (FRAPEKLSE
ERRESAREHEERRFATHBEXNE
ARBEAREEFESHNER  FELER
BERBRAATHREREMEELERBRM
E)FREAR = MM AR -

FRARBHENEHA T —FMOA+NA
Fte WASK T RFWA+/\HEwm LA
EAFTHENER  FRERTF EEATT
B EEEEREH =T RN ELAETAN
RRAERIE

—2—HF 3R Annual Report 2017



P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (confinved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Equity Pledge Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou entered
info an equity pledge agreement (“Equity Pledge Agreement’),
pursuant to which Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou granted a continuing first
priority security inferests over their respective equity interests in PRC
Operational Entity to Xiangyu PRC for guaranteeing the performance
of the Composite Services Agreement, the Option Agreement and
the Proxy Agreement. Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are responsible to
record the pledge of equity into the shareholders’ register on the
effective date of the Equity Pledge Agreement. PRC Operational
Entity, Mr. liv and Ms. Zhou are also responsible fo register the
pledge of equity in the State Administration for Industry and
Commerce 10 days affer the effective date of the Equity Pledge
Agreement.

Pursuant fo the Equity Pledge Agreement, without the prior writlen
consent of Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity shall not alter its
current shareholding sfructure and/or its nature or scope of business,
Mr. liv and Ms. Zhou shall not allow PRC Operational Entity to
transfer or dispose of its assets or pledge or transfer their respective
equity inferests in PRC Operational Entity in favor of or to other third
parties. Xiangyu PRC is entitled fo receive all dividends derived from
the pledged equity interests. Xiangyu PRC is entifled to demand
repayment of the secured indebtedness and/or to exercise ifs rights
to sell the pledged equity inferests on occurrence of certain events of
default including but not limited to non-performance or breach of any
of the Composite Services Agreement, the Option Agreement and
the Proxy Agreement; or failure fo repay other debts when due by
PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liv or Ms. Zhou (as the case may be).

The Equity Pledge Agreement became effective from the date of its
execution and shall terminate upon performance of all obligations
under the Composite Services Agreement, the Option Agreement
and the Proxy Agreement in full.
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37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Confinved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Vessel Pledge Agreements

PRC Operational Entity and Xiangyu PRC have entered info three
vessel pledge agreements (“Vessel Pledge Agreements’] dated 19
April 2011, pursuant fo which PRC Operational Enfity has pledged
in favor of Xiangyu PRC (i) its entire interest in the dredger “Zhuayang
No. 1017 (ii) its 50% interest in the dredger “Kaijin No. 1" and {iii)
its 50% interest in the dredger “Kaijin No. 3" to Xiangyu PRC, as
security for the due payment of the consultation service fees and
repayment of the surety money (as well as related interest and
expenses, etc.) then owing by PRC Operational Enfity fo Xiangyu
PRC under the Composite Services Agreement.

Pursuant to the Vessel Pledge Agreements, without the prior written
consent of Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity shall not pledge or
dispose of ifs interests in the pledged vessels or any part thereof.
Xiangyu PRC is enfifled to exercise ifs rights to sell the pledged
vessels on occurrence of certain events of default, including but not
limited to the non-payment of the secured indebtedness or non-
performance of the Composite Services Agreement.

The Vessel Pledge Agreements became effective from the date of its
execution and shall terminate upon payment or repayment of the
consultation service fees, surety money and all other related
expenses under the Composite Services Agreement.

The Group has a contractual commitment to provide financial
assistance fo the PRC Operational Entity. However, due to the
strategic importance of it to the Group, the Directors intended fo
provide financing to the PRC Operational Entity to support the
working capital requirements. As at 31 December 2017, the bank
borrowings of the PRC Operational Entity of RMB257,000,000
(2016: RMB329,022,000) are secured by pledge of assets jointly
owned by the PRC Operational Entity and the Group, corporate
guarantee by the Company and personal guarantees provided by
Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou, the directors of the Company. Unutilised
secured bank facilities amounted to approximately
RMB486,000,000 (2016: RMB121,778,000).
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37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (confinved) 37, = E M B 2 T £ 15 ()

Notes: (Continued)
(ii) (Continued)
Vessel Pledge Agreements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the amount of revenue and
assefs subject to the Contractual Arrangements accounted for 99%
(2016: 61%) and 62.9% (2016: 80.8%) of the Group's fotal

revenue and assefs respectively.

The Directors, after consulting legal opinion, are of the view that the
terms of the Confractual Arrangements have in substance enabled
Xiangyu PRC to have power over the PRC Operational Entfity, rights
to variable returns from its involvement with the PRC Operational
Entity, and has the ability to use its power to affect ifs returns, despite
the absence of formal legal equity interest held by the Group therein.
Accordingly, PRC Operational Entity is accounted for as a
consolidated structured entity as a subsidiary of the Company.

38. Subsidiary with Material Non-controlling 38. %
N

Interests

The Group held 51% equity inferest in Jiangsu Jiaolong at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

Proportion of
Place of establishment  ownership interests and voting
and principal place of rights held by non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business interest
EMER L B R FERBERENRAR
WEARAM TREXDEY RERRZELH

Hiat - (&)

(i)

(&)
i A 345 49 165 5 (4D

BE_ZT—+tHF+-_A=+-BHLFE X&
HEHBRRIBRAREESED AEAEER
Woas BB E299% (T — R 1 61%) }62.9%
(ZZ =K% :80.8%) °

EXEERAZLZEBERERAR BEAKEARS
DZHFRALBEREEANEERE  EEHR
HHEREEE LR TATHREZEH R R
EROEN ZARETELEERBOAZM
BN RTEEENTEERBHEN - E
- FEREEREAARENAHERIER
AR

BEXFERER KB

KEEBR - E—+tFR-_ZE—R"F+-_A=+
—HEAIERRIES 1L HE -

Profit allocated to Accumulated non-controlling
non-controlling interest interest
PREFERERNEF 2otk ERER

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
e L L e
t=A=t-B +2A=t-8 t=A=t-B A=t tzA=t-R 12A=t-8
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

it 3 2R

Jiangsu Jiaolong PRC 49% 49%
TER R i

I s

1,164 6,456 156,884 160,136
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38. Subsidiary with Material Non-controlling B HEEERIEERESZHKH B

Interests (Continued) I =) (#&)

Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangsu Jiaolong BABAIFIERERINTIHRENMEE R
which has material non-confrolling interest is sef out below. The AN o TR SRR /9 B 7 B R A 5 B R PR 8
summarised financial information below represents amounts before B 58 -

intragroup eliminations:

2017 2016
—E—tE  CFAE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AR T T
e

Current assets mEEE 297,336 247,321
Non-current assets ERBEE 238,163 239,330
Current liabilities mEBE (141,798) (93,124)
Non-current liabilities EMB B E (102,917) (100,365
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RATFE AEGER 133,940 133,026
Non-controlling inferests JEPE AR RS 156,844 160,136
Revenue o= 273,952 154,076
Expense B 2 (266,228) (140,900)
Profit for the year and tofal comprehensive income 4 A ¥ Fl| & 4 A 2 T Uk 25 42 58

for the year 7,524 13,176
Profit and fotal comprehensive income affributable 4822 & T 8 A FE 5@ 7 & 2 ™

fo the owners of the Company Wz 4a 58 3,837 6,720
Profit and fotal comprehensive income affributable  3E#5 & EEEGENRER

to the non-controlling inferests W 5 48 58 3,687 6,456
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 4 (A3 Fi 1 2 T 4R &5 48 58 7,524 13,176
Dividend paid to non-controlling inferests S TR R E A X (4,456) (4,456)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operatfing activities #& & /E B E £ IR & 7%

(/)fl‘lf ﬁ ) ik 1 3,822 (605)

Net cash outflow from investing activities REFHEENR SR L FE (16,916) (8,487)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEERHELNRESRAFR 5,377 3,503

Net cash outflow B FE (2,173) [5,589)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —_ T —+F+ A=+ —HILFE

39. Statement of Financial Position and . XN TNHBERREREFEE
Reserves of the Company
2017 2016
—®—tf A
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

e

P RFSBRIZERAR A7 China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE

Unlisted investments in subsidiaries KB AR EMKRE 259,214 259,214

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wz Bt /&8 & ] FRIE 942,913 979,465

Bank balances and cash RITEHRERE 159 173

943,072 979,638

CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Other payables H ftb J& 7 3R IE 4,756 8,716

Amounts due fo Directors FE & = FKIA 12,401 1,875

Bonds payable JEANREE 230,378 246,381

247,535 256,972

NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFEE 695,537 722,666

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A& ERABE RS 954,751 81,880

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXR#E

Share capital A& Zx 123,483 123,483

Reserves e 831,268 858,397

TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 954,751 ?81,880
The Company's stafement of financial position was approved and RAARMBBRARER=ZTE—NF=ZA=+
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018 NEESEgHAERKRENZE  SHUATAL
and are signed on its behalf by: REKEF:

LIU KAUIN ZHOU SHUHUA
2158 & B E
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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39 Statement of Financial Position and 39. X B Ky B #& AR R 3Rk K o 4 o)
Reserves Of the Company (Continued)
Movement in the Company's reserves: NAFEEOEE -
Share Share Other Accumulated
capital premium  reserves loss Total
BR A< R HEE Hitf# & ZitEiE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBETT ARKETRT ARKETRT ARBETT AR®ETZ

At 1 January 2016 R-TE—RF

—HA—H 102,045 869,127 165,238 (192,267) Q44,143
Placing of shares (Nofe 28) & B & (KaE28) 21,438 53,853 — — 75,291
Loss for the year FRNEE = = = [37,554) (37,554]

Total comprehensive expense  4F A & T i X%

for the year 4878 = — — (37,554) (37,554)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF

+—-A=+—H 123,483 922,980 165,238 (229,821) 981,880

Loss for the year F A Ei8 — — — (27,129) (27,129)

Total comprehensive expense 4 (A & T i X2 428

for the year — — — (27,129) (27,129)
At 31 December 2017 R=F—tF
+=ZRA=+—8H 123,483 922,980 165,238 (256,950) Q54,751
40. Major Non-cash Transaction 40. T EFREXRFH
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the net proceeds from REE_Z-—RFT+_A=T—BIEFE " K
the share placing was assigned to the vendor fo acquire prepaid NEEMGERIBFERE SN EEHAES S
land lease payments and property and machinery of approximately Al £ A R #7,410,0007T K 67,881,000/ Tt #I

RMB7,410,000 and HK$67,881,000 respectively. TEA Tt T & FRIE LA R W 3 R e o
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Event After the Reporting Period

Extension of maturity of the Bonds

On 23 January 2018, CITIC and the Group entered info the Fifth
Amendment Agreement fo further amend the ferms of the Bonds.
Under the Fifth Amendment Agreement, subject to further
undertakings as set out in the announcement of the Company on
23 January 2018, the principal amount of the Bonds shall be
amended to HK$278,777,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB228,248,000 based on spot exchange rate on 23 January
2018) and the maturity dafe of the Bonds shall be extended fo 21
June 2018 (the “New Maturity Date”) with inferest rafes amended
to 13% per annum. Unless previously redeemed or purchased and
cancelled, the total amount payable by the Company to CITIC to
redeem the Bonds on the New Maturity Date shall be
HK$273,671,000 [equivalent to approximately
RMB224,068,000 based on spot exchange rate on 23 January
2018) (the “New Redemption Amount’), provided that the
Company pays the New Redemption Amount in full on the New
Maturity Date. If the Company fails to pay the New Redemption
Amount in full on the New Maturity Date, the total amount
outstanding of the Bonds together with the accrued interest as at
the New Maturity Date shall be HK$293,671,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB240,443,000 based on spot exchange rate
on 23 January 2018). Defail are sef out in the Company’s

announcement on 23 January 2018.
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A HEHRSER

fiE = 18 55 2 1 B

R_E—NE—HA=-+=8" CINCHE K% H
RIMNERAMERHE WE—FETESHIF
o BEERGE & EXAQR =T —N
F—RAZT=HAEMENE —TEBMR -
BEH AL R EER] A278,777,0005 7T (1R #
—TE-N\F-A-+t=HNEHEXEERD
AR 228,248 0007T) &% K 2 8 A FE T 1%
E_T—)\FAAB=-+—RBUFHIHAD  FF
KIEFTR13% - BRIEXAER - BE RFEH A
ANTRFEN R B ERN FCTICIAE D E S8 458
& &273,671,0008 T(RE=_ZE—N\F—A=
T= BRI BEVHAE RBE R L ARK224,068,000
) ([#FES))  FIERARGARFEHE 2K
TRFES MARARKERTEHA2EHE
NHES RSP RESNmRESERRAE
@ fE 5t 7 B JE 5 293,671,000 7T (1BiE — & —
NF—A-+=ZAWMHHERRERDARE
240,443,0007T) - FBEHIN A AR ZF —N
E—A-+ZBHHAE-
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